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Company Overview

Applebee’s International, Inc., headquartered in Overland Park, Kansas, develops, franchises and operares casual

dining restaurants in 49 states, one U.S. territory and 16 international countnes:undcr the Applebee’s Neighborhood
Grill & Bar® brand. Each Applebee’s Neighborhood Grill 8 Bar is designed as an attracrive, friendly, neighborhood
establishment featuring moderacely priced, high-quality food and beverage items, table service and a comfortable
atmosphere that appeals to all ages. As “America’s Favorite Neighbor®” each Applebccs. restaurant reflects its local
neighborhood. The decor conveys this theme with photographs and mcmorabll‘la highlighting hometown heroes,
local schools and area history. Applebec’s nghborhood Grill & Bar is the largelst casual dining concept in America,
both in terms of number of restaurants and market share. As of December 31, 2006, there were 1,930 Applebee’s
Neighborhood Grill & Bar restaurants, of which 1,409 were operated by franchlsees and 521 werc operated

by the company.

|

The following table sets farrh our selected financial dara for the periods and the dates indicated. Fiscal 200(; contained 33 weeks. Fiscal 2002 through 2005
each contained 52 weeks. The following should be read in conjunction with the Consolidared Financial S(altemenrs and Notes thereto and “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condicion and Results of Operations” appearing elsewhere in our Formn 10-K.

(ine thousands, except per share amurints) ]:ISG] Year Ended
December 31, December 25, DlLemher 26, December 28, December 29,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

Sonamnene off Bamings Deee

Company restaurant sales..............., $ 1,196,258 § 1,082,641 3 :976,798 $ 867,158 & 724,616
Franchise royalties and fees ... 139,835 128,813 . 121,221 109,604 102,180
Other franchise income. ... ..o 1,808 5,196 13,615 13,147 2,688
Total operating revenues ...........c..cooeiiin $ 1,337,921 $ 1,216,650 $ 1,111,634 $ 989,909 § 829,484
Operating earmings ........ooovvvviiiiiinieeenn $ 130,784 $ 157,637 $ || 165,280 $ 152,677 5 126,590
NEU CaTMINES. .o oe e $ 80906 $ 101,802 $ ) 110,865 3 94349 $ 80,527
Basic net carnings pershare ... 3 1.09 $ 1,29 $ 1.36 3 1.14 $ 0.97
Diluted net carnings per share ...t 3 1.08 $ 1,27 $ ; 1.33 3 1.10 $ 0.94
Dividends declared per share ... $ 0.22 $ 0.20 $ 0.06 $ 0.05 $ 0.04
Basic weighted average shares owtstanding............... 74,001 78,650 81,528 82,944 83,407
Dilured weighted average shares outstanding............ 74,936 80,010 83,600 85,409 85.382
Bellance Shest Dam tvat ot |
Toral assets ... $ 935456 5 878,588 $ | 754,431 $ 651078 $ 573,647

Long-term debr, including current portion,
and notes payable ... $ 175185 $ 188,367 35,694 § 20862 $ 52,563

Stockholders’ equity ..o $ 486,654 $ 412,610 $ | 496,727 $ 453,143 $ 385,201

w5

™ Beginning in 2006, we began recording stock-based compensation expense in accordance with Stacement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R),
“Stock-Based Compensation.”
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President and Chicf Executive Officer

Dear Fellow Shareholders

|
|
' David L. Goebel
!
|
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2006 was a particulatly challenging year for Applebec’s
Internanonal as it was for many casual dining restaurant
compamcs In an increasingly competitive and crowded segment,
our goal is 1o become more relevant to more customers in
more ways than ever before ... building on our leadership
in value, convenience and our familiar, friendly atmosphere
with innovative food and beverage offerings.

|
2006 Financial Performance For the fiscal year ended
Deccmbcr 31, 2000, toral system-wide sales for the Applebee’s
blrand including both company and franchise restaurants,
grew 9.0 percent over the prior year, or 6.8 percent adjusted
f:%nr the extra week in 2006. Total company restaurant sales
climbed 10.5 percent for the year ro $1.2 billion and roral
operating revenues increased 10.0 percent ro $1.3 billion;
excluding the extra week, the increases were 8.3 percent and
77 percent, respectively,

| Fiscal 2006 net earnings were $80.9 million, or $1.08 per
diluted share, compared to net earnings of $101.8 million, or
$1 27 per diluted share, in fiscal 2003. Excluding stock-based
compensauon impairment and other restaurant closure costs
and legal expenses related o the pending settlement of a law-
suit, 2006 diluced net earnings per share were $1.36 compared
10 $1.32 the year before. The benefit of the extra week was
ap‘tproximarely $0.05 per diluted share in 2006. (Please refer
to our Form 8-K filed on February 15, 2007 for a reconcilia-
tion of non-GAAP measurements to GAAD resules.)

Applebee’s system-wide domestic comparable sales, com-

paring restaurants open for at least 18 months, declined 0.6
percent in 2006. Domestic franchise restaurant comparable
saJes for the year were down 0.5 percent, and company
comparable sales dropped 1.0 percent. While disappointing,

particularly in light of the system’s 31 consecutive quarters
I
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of comparable sales growth through the first quarter of 2006,
our results exceeded the average for the bar and grill segment,
as measured by Knapp-Track

We remain committed to having a highly disciplined
approach to cap:tal allocation and 1o focusing on relevant
long-term strategies to drive shareholder value, including
increasing our free cash flow generation through a significant
reduction in capital expenditures and new unic development
in 2007,

In 2006, the company repurchased over 1.7 million shares
of common stock at an average price of $21.88 for an aggre-
gate cost of $38!5 million. In November 2006, the Board of
Directors author’lzed up to $150 million in additional stock
repurchases, reﬂecrmg confidence in the company’s business
model and commltment to enhancing shareholder value. This
autherization supplemcnts the existing $175 million authoriza-
tion announced in October 2005, At year-end, approximately
$240 million remained available under the aggregate authori-
zation. Over thellast nine years, the company's strong cash flow
has enabled i IO! repurchase more than $650 million of stock,
including more than $330 million in the last three years.

In Dcccmbcr 2006, the Board declared an annual dividend
of 22 cents per share, marking the company’s 17th consecutive
annual dividend ‘and representing a 10 percent increase over
the prior year.

Industry Cllmate In 2006, the casual dining segment
suffered its worst slump in 15 vears — with Applebee’s and
other bar and gnll operators especially hard hit. The casual
dining secror experienced a 0.1 percent decline in comparable
sales and a 2.8 pf!‘rcent drop in comparable guest craffic for
the year, according to Knapp-Track™ A myriad of factors,
including high gas prices, rising interest rates, a softer real




estate market and continued improvements in quick service
restaurant offerings, together with a lack of differentiadion as
well as supply growth ourpacing demand in our category,
combined to pressure comparable sales and traffic.

A significant portion of our regular customers have house-
hold incomes of less than $50,000, a group thidt is far more
susceptible to macro economic variables thac reduce discre-
tionary spending. As economic factors strained family budgets
last year, many in this customer segment were forced to dine

out less frequently or trade down ro quick service restaurants.

Strategié Initiatives With that environment as a backdrop,
we are intently focused on improving the things that we know
are within our conirol. Qur long-term strategies are designed
to make Applebee’s more relevant to all of our guests with the
goal of driving guest traffic and higher average unit volumes
through our existing restaurants, with less emphasis on new
restaurant devefopment. Our key strategic initiatives in 2007
include continued improvement of our foed, evolution of our
advertising and a greater emphasis on communicating our value
proposition to our guests. We also may increase the amount of
capital we allocate to remodels in the next few years so we can
provide a more differentiated toral experience to the guest.

Food and Menu We continue to revamp our menu, making it
more compelling and contemporary in our ongeing effort to
provide greac-tasting food to consumers. Cur highest priority
continues to be improving both the quality and taste of our food,
appealing to customers seeking value, as well as those who want
more sophisticated offerings. We are convinced thar higher
quality menu items that deliver preference and cravability can
exist side-by-side with our more affordably priced value items
... something we have termed our high/low food strategy.

We are aggressively reinvigorating our food offerings by
infusing our menu with new great-tasting options. In 2006, we
accelerared the pace of our food innovation and introduced
more than 20 new or improved menu items featuring bolder,
more diverse flavors such as a Quesadilla Burger, Roasted
Garlic and Asiago Chicken and a whole new line of sandwiches
served on Ciabatta bread. We also upgraded all of our burgers
to 100 percent Angus beef. .

During the fourth quarter, we teamed with Food Network
star Tyler Florence in a ground-breaking partnership to bring
the culinary creativity of a celebrity chef to our restaurancs
across America. In conjunction with the final two promotions
of the year, we introduced five new Tyler-inspired menu items
that reflecr his passion for seeking our the most flavorful, satis-
fying food from across the country and his unique cooking
style — including Penne Rosa with Sweet ltalian Sausage,
Herb-Crusted Chicken Topped with Italian Country Salad,
Crispy Brick Chicken with Warm Spinach Salad, a Bruschetta

‘Applebee’s International, Inc. 2006 Annual Report & Form 10-K
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Ioutgrowth of our 2005 segmentation study, have now shown

-

Burger and a Seared Ribeye with Garlic Chili Shrimp. Going
forward, we believe this exciting affiliation will help broaden
the appeal of our brand and attract infrequent or lapsed
customers who are less sensitive to economic pressures.

So whar are consumers tetling us abouc this strategy?
More than 50 percent of alt consumers surveyed in the fourth
quarter of 2006 had improved perceptions of Applebee’s, with

tapsed users showing the most improvement at 62 percent.
Guest feedback from those who have tried the food has been
very positive, with all items having much higher scores than
our norms on the rest of the menu. As a result, we feel that
the Tyler message is meeting our objective and changing the
food perceptions among all of our users.

Qur consumer panel tracker results, which were the

four consecutive quarters of improvement in food scores — so
we believe we are starting to gain traction with our strategies,
but we know we are not yet where we need to be.

Beverage and Late Night One of the bright spots in 2006 was
the success we enjoyed with our beverage and late-nighr initia-
tives. Applebee’s beverage sales account for approximately 20
percent of restaurant sales, with aleoholic beverages accounting
for 12 percent. In 2006, we enhanced our beverage service to
take advantage of growing interest in new drink flavors with a
total revamping extending from cockeails to barware. We have
added contemporary new drinks like our popular Red Apple
Sangria and new martinis, as well as several smoothies and
other non-alcoholic beverage options. :

We also launched a late-night initiative in 2006 to stimu-
late traffic during the 9 p.m. to close period, supported by food
and drink specials. The late-night day-part showed the
strongest growth last year, accounting for approximarely 10
percent of sales. While total comparable sales in company restau-
rants were down 1.0 percent for the year, bar sales were up 2.4
percent on a comparable basis as a result of these initiatives.

Marketing Applebee’s boasts considerable marketing muscle,
with the largest advertising spend in casual dining.

. In February 2007, George Williams joined Applebee’s
as chief markering officer and a member of our senior man-
agement tearn, bringing a valuable mix of agency, consumer
goods and multi-uni retail experience. In this role, George
has responsibility for the company’s marketing and advertising,
as well as research und development, and the overall direcrion
of our food and menu strategy. One of his first actions has
been to purt our advertising account up for review, and we
expect to select a new agency by the end of the second quarter.

We continue to look for innovative ways to use our adver-

tising dollars to connect with customers. In a unique product
placement initiarive, Applebee’s has teamed with the cricically




1

1

acclalmed NBC relevision show, “Friday Night Lights,” set in
a fictional small Texas town with a championship high school
fpotbal] team. Applebee’s is integrated into the storyline and
serves as the setting for some scenes, while one of the show's
main charactets is a server at Applebee’s.

I' In 2007, we will place a greater emphasis in our advertising
on communicating our value proposition to our guests, as

we Lnow this continues to be a critical driver of visits. As an
example, to increase traffic during the lunch day-part and in
re‘sponse to increased pressure from quick service and fast-
casual operators, we introduced a Pick ‘N Pair lunch program
in February 2007, offering customization to our customers with
over 60 different combination choices. The program is being
promoted at a nationally advertised price point starting at $5.99
toldlrectly compete against the fast-casual dining category.

Unit Development Applebec’s continues to dominare the casual
dining segment, both in number of units and system-wide
sales. During 2006, Applebee’s opened a toral of 143 new
restaurants system-wide — the 14th consecutive year the system
has opened 100 or more units. Included in this total were
35|company, 90 domestic franchise and 18 international
franchise restaurant openings.

'Ac year-end, 1,930 restaurants were operating throughour
our worldwide system, including 521 company and 1,409
Fr;mchlsc units. We continue to believe the ultimate potential
of the Applebee’s system is at least 3,000 domestic and 1,000
mtelrnatlonal tocations.

lReﬂcccing our focus on driving improved performance in
our existing units and de-emphasizing new development in
light of the current business and ecenomic climate, we currently
anticipate opening berween 10 and 15 new company restaurants
in 2007, a much slower pace of growth than in recent years. In
addition, in March 2007, we announced our intention ro
close 24 company restaurants thar were not meeting acceprable

lt:vcls of return on investment and other key operating metrics.

Fran!d:ise Model Qur franchise-dominared business model,
withla vear-end mix of 73 percent franchise restaurants and
27 percent company units, remains unique in the induscry
with 'the highest franchise ownership level by far in casual
dining. Unlike the fast food category, our franchisees are large,
sophisticated businesses. At year-end, 44 domestic franchise
grou[ll)s were operating a total of 1,320 restaurants. The average
domestic Applebee’s franchisee operates 30 restaurants, and
our largest franchisee operates 132 restaurants. Today, over
93 percent of our ‘domestic franchise system is operated by
only 30 franchisees.

With the highest growth rate in the system, our interna-
tlona] franchise business achieved its most successful year ever
in 2006 opening 18 new restaurants. At year-end, our interna-

|
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rional franchise system included a total of 89 restaurants in
one U.S. temtory and 16 countries outside the United Srates,
pnmanly in Canada, Mexico and the Middle East.
Leadershlp Changes Our leadership transition, first
announced in January 2006, was implemented seamnlessly in
September as I assumed the additional responsibilities of CEO
from Lloyd Hill} Lloyd is continuing to serve as non-exccutive
Chairman of thc: Board. Over the cight-plus years of Lloyd's
tenure as sole-CEQ, Applebee’s total return to shareholders
exceeded 300 percent, a compound annual growth rate of
more than 17 percent. In recognition of his enormous
contribution to the growth and success of our company, we
are renaming the)Applebee’s Leadership Institure in his honor.

In ConclusiOI!I We believe it is important to periodically
reassess our strategies and capital structure, particularly during
times OFChallengi;ng industry and company performance. On
February 13, 2007, we announced that our Board of Directors
formed a committee of independent directors to explore
strategic alternatives for enhancing sharcholder value,

This commirtee has a broad mandare to conduct a compre-
hensive and indep‘cndent evaluation of the company’s strategic
alternatives. The committee is reviewing both the company’s
business and ﬁnan‘cial strategies.

From a busineds perspective, the committee is focusmg
on the company’s returns on capital, strategies for improving
same-store sales, the mix of company-owned versus franchised
restaurants, and overhead cost structure.

From a financial perspective, the commirttee is in the
process of reviewing a variety of alternatives to determine
its optimal capital structure, potential use of proceeds from
any additional borrowings, and the potential impact on the
company’s long-term value as a stand-alone entity. The
committee is also exploring a potential sale of the company.

" At this time, it is premarure to comment on the likelihood
or potential values in a recapitalization or sale relative to the
other options the C(immitree is evaluating. There can be no
assurance that a transacrion will be pursued or consummared,

Even in the current challenging environment, you can be
assured that all of our company restaurant and support center
associartes, as well as our valuable franchise partners, are focused
on improving our pcllzrformance. They are always a powerful
and constant reminder that we are in this for the long-haul.

David L. Goebel
President and Chief Executive Officer
March 2007
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PART I

Introductory Note

References to “Applebee’s,” “we,” “us,” and “our” in this document are references to Appiebee’s
International, Inc. and its subsidiaries and any predecessor companies of Applebee’s International, Inc.

On February 13, 2007, we announced that our Board of Directors has formed a committee of independent
directors to explore strategic alternatives for enhancing shareholder value, including a possible
recapitalization or sale of the company. There is no assurance that the process will result in any specific
transaction. However, the implementation of certain strategic alternatives could affect our current plans
and strategies, and any forward-looking statements in this document are qualified by reference to the
committee’s ongoing analysis. '

Item 1. Business
General

We develop, franchise and operate restaurants in the bar and grill segment of the casual dining industry
under the name “Applebee’s Neighborhood Grill & Bar®.” With over 1,900 system-wide restaurants as
of December 31, 2006, Applebee’s Neighborhood Grill & Bar is the largest casual dining concept in the
world, in terms of number of restaurants and market share(!). Applebee’s International, Inc. maintains an
Internet website address at www.applebees.com. We make available free of charge through our website
our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and all
amendments to those reports as soon as they are reasonably available after these materials are
electronically filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC™).

We opened our first restaurant in 1986. We initially developed and operated six restaurants as a
franchisee of the Applebee’s Neighborhood Grill & Bar Division, an indirect subsidiary of W.R. Grace &
Co. In March 1988, we acquired substantially all the assets of our franchisor. When we acquired the
Applebee’s Division, it operated 13 restaurants and had 10 franchisees, including us, operating 41
franchise restaurants.

As of December 31, 2006, there were 1,930 Applebee’s restaurants. Franchisees operated 1,409 of these
restaurants and 521 restaurants were company-owned. The restaurants were located in 49 states, 16
countries outside of the United States and one U.S. territory. During 2006, 143 new restaurants were
opened, 1ncludmg 108 franchlse restaurants and 35 company restaurants.

We continue to expect that the Applebee’s system will ultimately encompass at least 3,000 restaurants in
the United States as well as the potential for at least 1,000 restaurants internationally.

Our current operating strategy is to focus on increasing comparable sales and average unit volumes in
existing restaurants by improving the fundamentals of the Applebee’s concept and placing less emphasis
on new restaurant development for company-owned markets than in the past. As part of this strategy, we
are concentrating on leveraging our value posmon and broadening our appeal to guests through an
improved menu and consumer messaging. ‘

(M Source: Nation's Restaurant News, “Special Report: Top 100,” June 26, 2006.
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Fiscal 2006 contained 53 weeks Frscal 2005 and 2004 each contamed 52 weeks. The followmg table sets
forth certain unaudited financial information and other restaurant data relatmg to company and franchise
restaurants as reported to us by franchlsees _ _ S
‘ , Fiscal Year Ended
December 31;. - December 25, December 26,

. L e 2006 . {2005 2004

‘ _Numberofrestaurants: el . oo ‘

. Company o A ,.ﬂ'. - t R \

S . Beginning of year ......... I o 486 ' 424 . 383
Restaurant openings . - 350 o 52 .32
Restaurant CloSiNgS .........oeuevvevereeeeerenniinnns ‘ ' (4) | 1y | (D
Restaurants acquired from franchlsees ............. v 11 10
End OF YEar ... eressons S 521 : 486 - 424

Franchrse ) ‘ - ' :

' Beginning 0f YEar...........ivereneesesieveiereesiennns IR 1T S } 1,247 1,202
Restaurant openings 108 ; 92 . 77

r Restaurant closings............lveee. e B € ) I | (10) 22)

' Restaurants acquired by franchisor. .. e ¢ S (1) (10)
End ofyear...............................: ........ N Lo 1,409 |- 1,318 - 1,247

Total o o : . E - h -

_ Beginning of year .............. e s el T 1,804 i 1,671 .. 1,585
Restaurant openings... e e 143 0 0 144 , 109

I." Restaurant closmgs..........’.... R Y)] P an - (23)

| ) End of year......... v are e . - 1,930 i 1,804 1,671

. . . - [

' Weighted average weekly sales per restaurant ) R ; . .

' _ Company ... piens fee B0 44,637 ‘ 45552.  § 46,536
Domestlc franchise y $ 49,521 3 49,564 3 48,143
Domestic total................ e $ 0 0 48,134 $¢ 48,462 $ 47,737

r Change in comparable restaurant sales“) BT o ' St

ST T Company e b 0 (LOYR 09% . - 38%
Domestic franchise et v o (0.5)% ! 26 % 5.0%
Domestic total................. i e L (0.6)% * 1.7 % 4.7%

- Total operating revenues (in thousands): * - 7~ . -~ . - oo - _ S

) Company restaurant sales® .......cccoviennne. -8 . 1,196258 8 I 1,082,641 $ 976,798,

‘l - Franchise royalties and fees®'.. e, o 139,855 l 128,813 121,221
Other franchise income®. : e ‘1808 | 5196 13,615
TOtAl oo, 1,337,921 87 1,216,650 $ 1,111,634

. [ . - A ’
. N L TS . . - ot

s - e - * e ot

1
Rl . . - - . L - . q
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) When computing comparable restaurat sales, restaurants open \ for at least 18 months are compared from penod 10 penod o
@ Our 2006 fiscal year included 53 weeks while fiscal years 2005 and 2004 each mcluded 52 weeks. The 53" week in 2006
contributed $24,312, in thousands, to company restaurant sales,

) Franchise royalties are generally 4% of each franchise restaurant's reported fonthly gross sales. Reported unaudited franchlse
sales, in thousands, were $3,498,967, $3,223,505 and 33,001,287 in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respéctively. The 53" week in 2006
contributed approximately $73,500, in thousands, to reported franchise sales and approxlmately $2 900 in thousands, to
franchise royalties. Franchise fees typically are $35,000 for each restaurant cpened. - ;
@ Other franchise income includes insurance premiums from franchisee participation in ‘our captive insurance program in 2005
and 2004 and revenue from information technology producls and services provrded to certiam franchisees in all periods.
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The Applebee’s System

Concept. Fach Applebee’s restaurant is designed as an attractive, friéndly, neighborhood establishment
featuring moderately-priced food and beverage items, table service and a comfortable atmosphere. Our
restaurants appeal to a wide range of customers including young adults, senior citizens and families with
children. :

Since 2002, we have offered our customers the convenience of carry-out service featuring our Carside To
Go program. This program, offered at both company-owned and franchise restaurants, focuses on
convenience by allowing the customer to place their order by telephone, park in designated spots at our
restaurants and have servers deliver the order to their vehicle. During 2006, Carside To Go accounted for
9.7% of company-owned restaurant sales.

We have developed certain specifications for the design of our restaurants. Our restaurants are primarily
located in free-standing buildings, end caps of strip shopping centers, and shopping center malls. Each of
our restaurants generally has a bar and many restaurants offer patio seating. The decor, which frequently
highlights local history and personalities, gives each restaurant a unique, neighborhood identity, which is an
important aspect of the Applebee’s brand. In addition, we generally require.that each restaurant be
remodeled every six to seven years to embody the design elements of the current prototype. We are
continually evaluating our restaurant design to ensure that we keep our brand fresh and appealing to our

guests.

Menu. Each restaurant offers a diverse menu of moderately-priced focd and beverage items consisting of
traditional favorites and signature dishes. The restaurants feature a broad selection of entrees, including
beef, chicken, pork, seafood and pasta items prepared in a variety of cuisines, as well as appetizers, salads,
sandwiches, specialty drinks and desserts. Substantially all restaurants offer beer, wine, liquor and premium
specialty drinks. During 2006, alcoholic beverages accounted for 12.5% of company-owned restaurant
sales. )

In 2006, we began implementation of new initiatives to broaden the appeal of our brand. These initiatives
included advertising that targets both the frequent casual dining guest and those seeking value, beverage and
late-night programs, as well as the introduction of 20 new or improved menu items, including several which
were developed in partnership with celebrity chef Tyler Florence.

During 2004, we entered into a five-year exclusive strategic alliance with Weight Watchers International,
Inc. w offer Weight Watchers® branded menu alternatives to our guests. As part of our exclusive
"arrangement with Weight Watchers, we and our franchisees pay a percentagé royalty on the total domestic
sales of Weight Watchers menu items.

Restaurant Operations. We stipulate operating standards and specifications for our company-owned-and
franchise restaurants. These standards pertain to the quality, preparation and selection of menu items,
maintenance and handling of food, maintenance and cleanliness of premises and service procedures.

Training. We have comprehensive training programs for restaurant associates and managers. Restaurant
associates and managers complete a training and orientation process by certified training personnel upon
hire. In addition, associates and managers receive ongoing training to further develop their job skills and
knowledge.

Franchise and company restaurant managers also have access to the Lloyd Hiil Applebee‘s Leadcrship
Institute which offers learning and development opportunities. Programs and services include training,
leadership assessments and life coaching.




Marketing. We have historically concentrated our advertising and marketing efforts prlmanly on food-
specific promotions, Weight Watchers®, Carside To Go and Applebee’s branded messaging. Our
marketing includes national, regional and local expenditures, utilizing primarily television, radio, direct mail
and print media, as well as altemative channels such as the internet, product placement and the use of third-
party retailers to market our gift cards. : In 2006, approximately 4.1% of company restaurant sales was
allocated for marketing purposes. This amount includes contributions to the national marketing pool, which
develops and funds the specific national promotions, including Weight'Watchers and Carside To Go. We
focus the remainder of our marketing expenditures on local marketmg in areas with company-owned
restaurants. - . :

Information Technology. We believe technology can assist us in achieving our operational goals. Our
restaurant systems, including point-of-sale and food, kitchen and labor management systems, are tightly
dintegrated with our above-store data warchousing and decision support platforms. This integration
provides management with a timely, accurate and comprehensive view,of our business performance.

Supply Chain. Maintaining high food quality, system-wide consistency. and availability is the central focus
‘of our supply chain program. We establish quality standards for prodicts used in the restaurants, and we
maintain a list of approved suppliers and distributors from which we ahd our franchisees must select. We
periodically review the quality of the products served in our domestic restaurants in an effort to ensure
‘compliance with these standards. We have negotiated purchasing agréements with most of our approved
suppliers which result in volume discounts for us and our franchiseés. Due to cultural and regulatory
differences, we may have different requirements for restaurants opened outsnde of the United States.

Food Safety and Quality Assurance. We are committed to prov1d1ng our customers with products that meet
or exceed regula;ory and industry standards for food safety as well as our high quality standards. Qur
quality assurance department establishes and monitors our food safety programs in domestic restaurants,
mcludmg restaurant, supplier and distributor audits, food safety and#samtatlon monitoring, and product
testing, . _ o

|
Company Restaurants i

'Company Restaurant Openings. Our strategy is to cluster restauraﬁts in targeted markets to increase
consumer awareness and convenience and enabling us to take advantage of operational, distribution and
+advertising efficiencies. Our development experience mdlcates that ‘when we open multiple restaurants
within a particular market, our market share increases. 5
We believe our‘effectiveness as a franchisor is enhanced by owning company restaurants, Operating
company restaurants allows us to develop, implement and optimize restaurant initiatives and standards
before introducing them to the entire system. We continually evaluate the mix of company restaurants to
franchise restaurants and when it is consistent with our long-term: strategles we will re-franchise .or
acquire restaurants,




We opened 35 new company restaurants in 2006. The following table shows the areas where our company
restaurants were located as of December 31, 2006;

Area
New England (includes Maine, Massachusetts, New Hampshire,

New York, Rhode Island and Vermont) ......c.ocoocoineroinccocciicananns 77
Minneapolis/St. Paul, MINNesota...........coumninnineneieninnd v 67
Detroit/Southermn MiChigan ...........cococciiiveicionicncecnerenensereensenes 67
TEKAS ...voveerereereeeeeiemei et eeste s e b s ar e nsas s e e b ennn e nnencnsrennane 60
VITZIMIA oot bn bbb e 59
St. Louis, Missouri/IIiNois ... eeecviriiencicriecnsssee s veerereeeesanes 58
Kansas City, Missouri/Kansas.........ccoccivrernneicinscininsnisis 34
Washington, D.C. (Maryland, Virginia). ........c.ccoeoovvverirvcnimninniennnnn. , 31
San Diego/Southern California.........coeeecocicrricccciniiiiin, 24
Las Vegas/Reno, Nevada........c.ocnincninninimi s 16
Central Missouri/Kansas/ATKansas .........cccovnerienenmennsnnrencnnens C12
Albuquerque, New MEeXICO ...c.ccorvicirciimniiirnese it ' - 8
Memphis, TENNESSEE. .......cvvererrrrnrerrerrerierreerarismesrerrermsressiisiissssans . 8B

Restaurant Operations. The staff for a typical restaurant consists of one general manager, one kitchen
manager, two or three managers and approximately 60 hourly associates. Generally, managers of
company-owned restaurants receive a salary and may receive a performance bonus based on financial
performance, guest satisfaction and associate retention measures. As of December 31, 2006, we employed
three Regional Vice Presidents of Operations, 15 Directors of Operations and 85 Area Directors. The
Area Directors’ duties include regular restaurant visits and inspections which ensure the  ongoing
maintenance of our standards of quality, service, cleanliness, value and courtesy. We also have corporate
personnel that support operations with functions such as accounting, human resources, information
technology, marketing and training.

The Applebee’s Franchise System

Franchise Territory and Restaurant Openings. We currently have 75 franchise groups, including 31
international franchisees. We have generally selected franchisecs that are experienced multi-unit
restaurant operators who have operated other restaurant concepts. Our franchisees operate Applebee’s
restaurants in 43 states, 16 countries outside of the United States and one U.S. territory. We have
assigned development rights to the vast majority of domestic territories in all states except Hawaii or have
designated them for company development. ' ‘

As of December 31, 2006, there were 1,409 franchise restaurants. Franchisees opened 77 restaurants in
2004, 92 restaurants in 2005, and 108 restaurants in 2006.

Development of Restaurants. We make available to franchisees the design specifications for a typical
restaurant, and we retain the right to prohibit or modify the use of any set of plans: Each franchisee is
responsible for selecting the site for each restaurant within their territory. We may assist franchisees in
selecting appropriate sites, and any selection made by a franchisee is subject to our approval. We also
conduct a physical inspection, review any proposed lease or purchase agreement and make available
demographic and other studies.

Domestic Franchise Arrangements. Generally, franchise arrangements consist of a development
agreement and separate franchise agreements. Development agreements grant the exclusive right to
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develop a number of restaurants in a designated geographical area. The term of a domestic development
agreement is generally 20 years. The development agreements contain provisions which allow for the
continued development of the Applebee’s concept and support our long -term expectation of at least 3,000
restaurants in the United States.
: [ : :
The franchisee enters into a separate franchise agreement for the operation of each restaurant. Our
standard franchise agreement has a term of 20 years and permits renewal for up to an additional 20 years
upon payment of an additional franchise fee. For each restaurant developed, our standard franchise
arrangement requires an initial franchisee fee of $35,000 and a royalty fee equal to 4% of the restaurant’s
monthly net sales. We have executed agreements with a majority of our franchisees for restaurants
opened before January 1, 2000, which maintain the existing royalty rate of 4% and extend the initial term
of the franchise agreements until 2020. The terms, royalties and advemsmg fees under a limited number
of franchise agreements and the remaining franchise fees under older deve10pment agreements vary from
the currently offered arrangements. : }
: !

Marketing. We currently require domestic franchisees to contribute 1’2.75% of their gross sales to the
national marketing pool and to spend at least 1% of their gross sales on local marketing and promotional
activities. Under our current franchise agreements, we have the ability to-increase the amount of the
required combined contribution to the national marketing pool and the amount required to be spent on
local marketing and promotional activities to a maximum of 5% of gross, ‘sales.

Training and Support. We provide ongoing advice and assistance to franchisees in connection with the
operation and management of each restaurant through training sessions, meetmgs seminars, on-premises
visits and by written or other material. We also assist franchisees on request with business planning,
restaurant development, technology and human resource efforts. '

Operations Quality Control. We continuously monitor franchise restaurant operations, principally
through our full-time Franchise Area Directors (30 as of December 31, 2006) and our Directors of
Franchise Operations (five as of December 31, 2006). Company and third-party representatives make
both scheduled and unannounced inspections of restaurants to ensure that only approved products are in
use and that our prescribed operations practices and procedures are bcmg followed. During 2006, these
representatives made an average of two visits to each of our franchlse restaurants during which they
conducted an inspection and consultation in the restaurant. We have the right to terminate a franchise
agreement if a franchisee does not operate and maintain a restaurant in accordance with our requirements.
|

Franchise Business Council. We maintain a Franchise Business Council which provides us with input
about operations, marketing, product development and other aspects of restaurant operations for the
purpose of improving the franchise system. As of December 31, 2006, the Franchise Business Council
consisted of seven franchisee representatives and two members of our senior management team. One
franchisee representative is a permanent member. Franchisees elect; the franchisee representatives
annually. The Franchise Business Council is also responsible for the appointment of members to
ad\'!isory committees related to marketing, supply chain, informatton technology and food development.
Franchise Financing. Although ﬁnancmg is the sole responsibility of thc franchisee, we make available
to franchisees information about financial institutions interested in ﬁnancmg the costs of restaurant
development for qualified franchisees. None of these financial institutions is our affiliate or agent, and
we have no control over the terms or conditions of any financing arrangement offered by these financial
institutions. !
In 2004, we arranged for a third-party financing company to provide up to $250,000,000 to qualified
franchisees for loans to fund development of new restaurants through ‘October 2007, subject to our
approval. We will provide a limited guarantee of 10% of certain loans advanced under this program. We
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will be released from our guarantee if certain operating results are met after the restaurant has been open
for at least two years. As of December 31, 2006, there were loans outstanding to five franchisees for
approximately $65,800,000 under this program. , . "

International Development

. e ‘
International Franchise Arrangements. We continue to pursue franchising of the Applebee’s concept as
the primary method of international expansion. This strategy includes seeking qualified franchisees with
the resources to open multiple restaurants in each territory and those familiar with the specific local
business environment. We currently are focusing on international franchising primarily in Canada,
Central and South America, the Mediterrancan/Middle East and Mexico.  We currently have 31
international franchisees. These franchisees operated 89 restaurants as of December 31, 2006. The
success of further international expansion will depend on, among other things, local acceptance of the
Applebee’s concept and our ability to attract qualified franchisees and operating personnel. Our
franchisees must comply with the regulatory requlrements of the local jurisdictions.

We work closely with our mternatlonal franchisees to develop and implement the Applebee’s system
outside the United States, recognizing commercial, cultural and dietary diversity. These local issues
involve the need to be flexible and pragmatic on all elements.of the system,-including menu, restaurant
design, restaurant operations, training, marketing, purchasing and financing. .

Employees

As of December 31, 2006, we employed approximately 32,600 full and part-time associates. Of those,
approximately 680 were corporate personnel, 2,120 were restaurant managers or managers in training and
29,800 were employed in non- management full and part-time restaurant positions. Of the 680 corporate
associates, approXimately 240 were in management posmons and 440 were general office associates,.
including part-time associates.
We consider our associate relations to be good. Most associates, other than restaurant management and
corporate personnel, are paid on an hourly basis. We strive to provide working conditions and wages that
compare favorably with those of our.competition. We have never experienced a work stoppage due to
labor difficulty, and our associates are not covered by a collective bargaining agreement. )

Service Marks

We own the rights to the “Applebee’s Neighborhood Grill & Bar®” service mark and certain variations
thereof and to other service marks used in our system in the United States and in .various foreign
countries. We are aware of names and marks similar to our service marks used by third parties in certain
limited geographical areas. We intend to protect our service marks by appropriate legal action when
necessary. :

10
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Executive and Other Senior Officers of the Registrant t

, s g a . K
:Our executive and other senior officers as of February 23, 2007 are sho|wn below:’
} : B : '

Name . Age .. - ; Position -

* David L. Goebel ................. ' 56 Chlef Executive Officer and PreSIdent and Member of the
Lo ' ‘ * Board of Directors '

Steven K. Lumpkin............. 52 Executive Vice President; Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer,
. ‘ and Member of the Board of Directors
! Carin L. Stutz ..c.coovvviivenns 50+ -Executive Vice President of QOperations ‘

Stanley M, Sword............... 45 “Executive Vice President and Chief People Officer
. George S. Williams ............ 54  Executive Vice President and Chief Marketmg Officer-
t  Rohan St. George ............... 47  President of International Division -
. Philip R. Crimmins............. 55  Senior Vice President of Development
' Michael Czinege.........co..c... 53 Senior Vice President and Chief Information Officer
' Kurt Hankins .......ooevvecrveens 47 Senior Vice President of Menu Developrient and Innovation
. David R. Parsley................. 60  Senior Vice President of Supply Chain Management
. Carol A. DiRaimo............... 45 Vice President of Investor Relations
- Beverly O. Elving............... '3 Vice President and Controller * ~~ '

" Rebecca R. Tilden .............. 51 Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary

." . :
‘David L. Goebel was employed by Applebee’s in February 2001 as Senior Vice President of Franchise
Operanons and was promoted to'Executive Vice President of Operatrons in December 2002. In January
2004 Mr. Goebel was promoted to Chief Operating Officer. In January 2005, he was also named
President. In January 2006, Mr. Goebel was named to the Board of Directors and he assumed additional
‘responsibilities including serving as pnncrpal executive officer. In Scptember 2006, Mr. Goebel was
‘nanied Chief Executive Officer. ‘Prior to Jormng Applebee’s, Mr. Goebel headed a management company
that provided consulting, and strateglc planning services to' varlous businesses from April 1998 to
'February 2001. Prior to 1998, he was'a franchise principal with' an early developer group of the Boston
Market concept. Mr. Goebel’s business experience also includes posrtlons as Vice President of Business
Development for Rent-a-Center (a subsidiary ‘of Thom, EMI) and {Vice President of Operations for
Ground Round restaurants.

. i
Steven K. Lumpkin was employed by Applebee’s in May 1995 as Vlce President of Administration. In
January 1996, he was promoted to Senior Vice President of Admmlstranon In November 1997, he
assumed the position of Senior Vice President of Strategic Development and in January 1998 was
promoted to Executive Vice President of Strategic Development. He was named Chief Development
'Officer in March 2001, In March 2002, Mr, Lumpkin assumed the posmon of Chief Financial Officer
and Treasurer. In January 2004, he was appointed to the Board of Directors. Prior to joining Applebee’s,
Mr. Lumpkin was a Senior Vice President of a- division of the Olsten Corporation, Kimberly Quality
Care, from July 1993 until January 1995. From June 1990 unti] *July 1993, Mr. Lumpkin was an
‘Executive Vice President and a member of the board of directors of Kimberly Quality Care. From
January 1978 “until June 1990, Mr. Lumpkin was employed by Price Waterhouse LLP, where he served as
a management consulting partner and certified pubhc accountant o
Carin L. Stutz was employed by Applebee’s in November 1999 as Semor Vice President of Company
Operatlons In January 2005, she was promoted to Executive Vice President of Operations:' Prior to
joining Applebee’s, Ms. Stutz was Division Vice President with Wendy s International from July 1994 to
November 1999. From 1993 to 1994, she was Regional Operations Vice President for Sodexho, USA.
From 1990 to 1993, Ms. Stutz was employed by Nutri/System, ‘Inc as Vice President of Corporate
Operatrons Prior to 1990 Ms. Stutz was employed for 12 years w1th Wendy s Internatlonal

|
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Stanley M. Sword was employed by Applebee’s in August 2005 as Executive Vice President and Chief
People Officer. Prior to joining Applebee’s, Mr. Sword was employed for seven years as an executive
with Cerner Corporation. He was hired in August 1998 as Senior Vice President and Chief People Officer
and became President of Cerner’s Great Lakes region in August 2003. Prior to Cemner, Mr. Sword spent
five years with AT&T including three years as the Vice President of Organization Development of NCR
Corporation and two years as a client partner in the outsourcing practice of AT&T Solutions. Prior to
joining AT&T, Mr. Sword spent 10 years with Andersen Consulting, a division of Arthur Andersen &
Co., in a variety of roles within their systems integration practice.

George S. Williams was employed by Applebee’s in February 2007 as Executive Vice President and
Chief Marketing Officer. From 2002 until joining Applebee’s, Mr. Williams was an independent
marketing consultant and founder of Williams Enterprises. From 1997 to 2002, Mr. Williams was Senior
Vice President of U.S. Marketing for Blockbuster, Inc. Mr. Williams spent seven years in corporate brand
marketing positions with Pearle Vision, Inc., where he was Vice President of Field Marketing and Sales,
Long John Silver’s, where he was Vice President of Advertising and Promotions, and Days Inns of
America Inc., where he was Vice President of Marketing. Mr. Willtarns also has 12 years of advertising
agency experience with Marc U.S.A.

Rohan M. St. George was employed by Applebee’s in November 2004 as President of the International
Division. Prior to joining Applebee’s, Mr. St. George was a managing director for Yum! Restaurants
International which included responsibility for Puerto Rico, the U.S. Virgin Islands and Venezuela. From
1998 to 2003, he was Vice President of Global Operations for KFC, Pizza Hut and Taco Bell. Prior to
1998, Mr: St. George had 14 years operations experience with Pizza Hut and KFC in various management
positions.

Philip R. Crimmins was employed by Applebee’s in August 2002 as Vice President of Operations
Excellence. In September 2003, Mr. Crimmins was promoted to Senior Vice President of Development.
Prior to joining Applebee’s, he was employed by Pizza Hut, Inc. for 27 years, most recently as Vice
President of Service Strategies. - While at Pizza Hut, Inc., Mr. Criminins held several other positions of
increasing responsibility, including senior leadership positions in research and development, concept
development, customer satisfaction, field training and restaurant operations.

Michael Czinege was employed by Applebee’s in April 2004 as Senior Vice President and Chief
Information Officer. Prior to joining Applebee’s, Mr. Czinege was Executive Vice President of North
American operations for Celerant Consulting. From 1996 to 2004, he was a partner and later Vice
President of Cap Gemini Emst & Young, one of the world’s leading providers of consulting, technology
and outsourcing services. Mr. Czinege has nearly three decades of industry and consulting experience in
manufacturing and supply chain management operations, business planning, sales and marketing, and
information systems.

Kurt Hankins was employed by Applebee’s in August 2001 as Vice President of Research and
Development. In December 2003, Mr. Hankins was promoted to Senior Vice President of Menu
Development and Innovation. Prior to joining Applebee’s, he served as Vice President of Food and
Beverage for Darden Restaurants, Inc. from July 1999 through July 2001. From August 1994 to July
1999, he served as Director of Food Research and Development for Darden Restaurants, Inc. Prior to his
employment with Darden Restaurants, Inc., he held various positions in food and beverage research and
development within the restaurant industry.

David R. Parsley was employed by Applebee’s in April 2000 as Senior Vice President of Purchasing and
Distribution. In January 2003, Mr, Parsley was named Senior Vice President of Supply Chain
Management. Prior to joining Applebee’s, Mr. Parsley held several positions with Prandium, Inc.,
operator of El Torito, Chi-Chi’s and Koo Koo Roo, from November 1996 to April 2000, most recently as
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‘Senior Vice President of Quality and Supply Chain Management. He has also held purchasing positions
‘with The Panda Management Company, Carl Karcher Enterprises, Proﬁc1ent Food Company, Inc. and
Baxter Healthcare Corporation. } :
i , ; ' :
Carol A. DiRaimo was employed by Applebee’s in November 1993 'as Associate Director of Financial
'Planning and Reporting and was promoted to Director in 1995. She was named Director of Treasury and
Corporate Analysis in 1998 and Director of Investor Relations and Corporate Analysis in April 2000. She
.was promoted to Executive Director of Investor Relations in January 2003 and Vice President of Investor
‘Relations in February 2004. Prior to joining Applebee’s, she was employed by Gilbert/Robinson, Inc.
from May 1989 to November 1993. Ms. DiRaimo, a cert1ﬁed pubhcl accountant, was also employed by
Deloitte Haskins & Sells for six years.

Beverly 0. Elvmg was employed by Applebee s in June 1998 as D1rector of Corporate Accountmg In
,September 2002, Ms. Elving was promoted to Vice President of Acco'untmg In February 2005, she was
'named Vice President and Controller. Prior to joining Applebee’s, she was Chief Financial Officer from
1996 to 1998 for Integrated Medical Resources, a publicly-held management services company. From
1990 to 1996, Ms. Elving was employed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation as Director of
'Financial Operations and was later promoted to Vice President of Fmancml Operations & Accounting.

Ms Elving, a certified public accountant, was also employed by Arthur Andersen & Co. for five years.

l

‘Rebecca R. Tilden was employed by Applebee § in November 2003 and became Vice Pre51dent and
.General Counsel in January 2004, Prior to joining Applebee’s, Ms. T1lden was an independent consultant
, specializing in corporate comphance and ethics issues. From 1987 to 2000 Ms. Tilden was employed by
, Aventis Pharmaceuticals, Inc. in various positions of increasing respon51b111ty and served most recently as
- Vice President, Assistant General Counsel and Secretary. !

i
‘Item 1A.  Risk Factors . ‘ ;

Our business- and operatlons are subject to a number of nsks and uncertainties. Listed below are
‘important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from our historical results and from
 those projected in forward- lookmg statements contained in this report or in other filings with the SEC.

i

l
We and our franchisees may not be successful in operating restaurants profitably, generatmg
posmve operating cash flows and generating acceptable returns on invested capital.

"Qur financial success depends on our ability and the ability of our franch1sees to operate restaurants
. profitably, to generate positive cash flows and to generate acceptable returns on invested capital. The
returns and proﬁtab111ty of our restaurants may be negatively 1mpacted by a number of factors. The most
_significant are: , :

| .

¢ Declines in comparable store sales growth rates due to: ! ‘
o failing to consistently provide high quality products and innovate new products to retain
the existing customer base and attract new Eustomersl -
ol competmve intrusion in a market; | .
o opening new restaurants that may cannibalize the sales of existing restaurants and
| ! o less than effective national and local marketing.
e Negative trends in operating expenses such as:
' o increases in food costs including rising commodity costs
' o increases in labor costs 1ncludmg increases in minimum wage and other employment
laws, immigration reform, increases due to tight labor market conditions, health care and
‘workers compensation costs; and

|
' 13 ;
|




o increases in other operating costs including utilities, lease-related expenses and credtt
card processing fees.

¢ Our inability to open new restaurants at acceptable sales volumes.

Our inability to increase menu pricing to offset increased operating expenses.

¢ Negative trends in other expenses such as interest rates and the cost of construction matenals that
will affect our ability to maintain and refurbish existing stores.

e OQur ability to manage a large number of restaurants that may be impacted by unanticipated
changes in executive management, and availability of qualified restaurant management staff and
other personnel.- -

e Our ability to operate effectively in new and/or highly competitive geographic regions or local
markets in which we have limited operating experience.

¢  Our ability to manage a large number of restaurants in many geographic areas with a standardized

. operational and m_arketing approach.

Our profitability could be adversely mpacted by economie, demographtc and other changes that
impact guest traffic.

Our business is affected by changes in consumer tastes and by national, regional and local economic
conditions, demographic trends and traffic patterns near our restaurants. We can also be adversely
affected by publicity resulting from actual or alleged food quality, illness, injury or other health concems
or operating issues related to restaurant operations or from food supplters

Our profitability depends upon maintaining and growing the value of the Applebee’s brand.

Our business is dependent upon guest perceptions of the Applebee’s brand. Management believes it must
preserve and grow the value of the Applebee’s brand to be successful in the future. Brand value is based
upon actual guest experiences as well as consumer perceptions regarding a variety of subjective qualities,
and can be damaged by isolated business incidents that erode consumer trust, particularly if the incidents
receive considerable publicity or result in litigation.

Increased competition for locations, customers and staff could adversely impact our profitability.

Competition in the casual dining segment of the restaurant industry is expected to remain intense with
respect to price, service, location, concept and the type and quality of food. There is also intense
competition for real estate sites, qualified management personnel and hourly restaurant staff. Our
competitors include national, regional and local chains, as well as local owner-operated restaurants. There
are a number of well-established competitors, some of which have been in existence for a longer period
than us and may be better established in the markeéts where our restaurants are or may be located.

Qur future leverage could have an effect on our operations.

Our Board of Directors is reviewing various strategic alternatives to enhance shareholder value, While no
decision as to any particular course of action has been made, some of the alternatives under review could
lead us to increase our debt. Increased leverage and debt service obligations could have the following
consequences: : ' ‘ '

‘e We may be more vulnerable in the event of deterioration in our business, in the restaurant
industry or in the economy generally. In addition, we may be limited in our flexibility in
planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and the industry in which we operate.

- e We may be required to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flow to the payment of interest
or principal on our indebtedness, which could reduce the amount of funds availtable for operations
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and thus place us ata competltlve disadvantage as compared w1th competitors that are less highly
leveraged. - : . i :

¢ From time to time, we may engage in various capital markets bank credit and other financing

activities to meet our cash requirements. We may have dlfﬁculty obtammg additional financing
at economically acceptable interest rates. '

i e-_Qur new revolving credit facility contains, and any future debt obllgatlons may contain, certain
negative covenants including limitations on liens, consolidations and mergers, indebtedness,
capital expenditures, asset dispositions, sale-leaseback transactlons dividends and stock
repurchases. ' ¥ - | :

: . l
IWe and our franchisees may not be successful in opening additionafl restaurants.
. ‘{ ' . .
‘Qur continued growth depends, in part, on our ability and the ability of our franchisees to open additional
‘restaurants. The opening of new restaurants, both by us and our franch1sees depends on a number of -
factors, many of which are beyond our control or the control of our franchisees. The most significant
factors are: ' : :

the cost and availability of suitable restaurant locations;
acceptable leasing or financial terms;

the availability of capital to finance growth;
cost-effective and timely construction of restaurants (constru ction can be delayed due to, among
other reasons, labor disputes, local zoning and licensing matters and weather conditions); and

e securing required governmental permits and licenses.

, . . t
'

l
I
t.
I
I
1.

:Substantial increases in capital expenditure costs may adversely in'lpact future growth.

i
Our cap1tal expendntures are prlmanly related to the development or acqursmon of additional restaurants,
maintenance and refurbishment of existing restaurants and expansion 'of information technology systems
.and other corporate infrastructure. The costs related to restaurant development, maintenance and
refurblshment include purchases and leases of land, buildings, equrpr'nent and repairs and maintenance.
"The labor. and material costs expended vary by geographlcal location and are subject to genieral price
.increases. There can be no assurance that future capital expendtture costs will not increase. In addition,
capital expenditures will be required to maintain and refurbish restaurants as they age. There can be no
.assurance that we will remain profitable in these restaurants even after mamtenance and refurbishment
"has been completed. |
"Our’ contmued growth is, in part, dependent upon our abthty to find and retain quallfied
Aranchisees and for those franchisees to operate restaurants proﬁtably in compliance with our
‘standards, build new restaurants and plan for succession. !

'Although we have established criteria to evaluate prospective franchisees, there can be no assurance that
"our existing or future franchisees will have the business abilities or aecless to financial resources necessary
to open restaurants or that they will successfully develop or operate ‘these restaurants in their franchise
areas in a manner consistent with our standards.
l

-We intend to continue our efforts to franch1se restaurants in certain mternatlonal territories. The ability of
franchisees to open and operate restaurants outside of the United States is subject to the same factors as
are applicable to opening domestic restaurants described above, as well as factors related to additional
Jlegal, regulatory, cultural acceptability and building design issues mvolved in international locations.
"There can be no assurance that we will be able to attract qualified franchlsees or that such franchisees will
'be able to open and operate restaurants successfully

|
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Further penetratlng exrstmg mature markets could |mpact the sales and profitablllty of our exrstmg ‘
restaurants in those markets. .

Part of our restaurant development may occur in more mature. markets. Our restaurants typically attract
customers within a limited trade area. Sales and profitability of ex1snng restaurants may be negatively
1mpacted by the opening of a restaurant within thls trade area. .- ..

The.lmpact of government regulatlon may cause s to incur additional costs or liabilities.

Our restaurants are subject to various foreign; federal, state and local government regulations, including
those related to the sale of food and alcoholic beverages and labor. laws. Failure to obtain or maintain the
necessary licenses, permits and approvals, including food and liquor licenses, could adversely affect our
operating results or delay or result in our decision to. cancel the opening of new restaurants. Local
authorities may suspend or deny renewal of our food and liquor licenses if they determine that our
conduct does not meet applicable standards or if there are changes in regulations in which we are unable
to comply.

We are subject to “dram shop” statutes in some states These statutes generally allow a person 1nJured by
an intoxicated person to recover damages from an cstabhshment that wrongful]y served alcoholic
beverages to the intoxicated person. A _]udgment substantlally in excess of our- insurance coverage could
harm our financial condition.” : :

Various federal and state labor laws related to' emiployment eligibility, minimum wage reqiirements,
overtime pay, meal and rest breaks and other matters have an effect on our operatmg costs. Changes in
these laws, including additional government-lmposed increases in minimum wages overtime pay, paid
leaves of absence and mandated health . beneﬁts and increased tax reporting and tax payment
requirements for associates who recelve trps ora reductlon in the.nuinber of states that allow tlpS to be
credited toward minimum wage requlrements could harm our operanng results

The federal Americans with Disabilities. Act prohlblts dlscrlmlnanon on the bas1s of dlsab111ty in publ1c
accommodations and employment. Although our restaurants are designed to be accessibie to the disabled,
we could be required to make additional modlﬁcatlons to our restaurants to prov1de service to, or make
reasonable accommodations for, disabled persons.- We are also subject to various federal and’state
envifonmental regulations that could delay or prevent development of new restaurants in certain locatlons
We are also subject to foreign, federal and state laws that regulate the offer and sale of franchises and the
relationship with our franchisees. These ‘laws and regulatlons together with decisions of several state and
federal courts, may limit our ablllty to enforce certam pr0v151ons of or alter or termmate our franchise
agreements. . :

A significant increase in litigation could have a materlal adverse effect on our results of operatlons,
financial condltlon and busmess prospects. ‘ Yo

[
-

We are subject to complaints or litigation from guests allegmg 1llness injury or other food quality, health
or operational concerns. Adverse publicity resultlng from these allegations could harim the operation and
profitability of our restaurants, regardless of whether the allegatrons are. valid, whether we are liable or
whether the claim 1nvolves our restaurants or one of our franchisees. .

Failure to comply with the various federa] and state labor laws pertammg to minimum wage, overtime

pay, meal and rest breaks, unemployment tax rates, workers” compensation rates, citizenship or residéncy
requirements, child labor requirements and sales taxes may have-a material adverse effect on our business
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or operations. Further, employee claims based on, among other thirllgs, discrimination, harassment or
wrongful termination may divert our financial and management resources and -adversely affect our
.operations. oo Co

|

|
'Our growth and profitability could be impacted by the lack of nee(Iled inventories.’

Our profitability depends, in part, on our strategies to control food costs. Qur dependence on
commodities subjects us to the risk that shortages or interruption in supply, caused by adverse weather or
other conditions, could negatively-affect the availability, quality or cost of ingredients. -Changes in the
price of commodities, particularly beef and chicken, could materially, impact our profitability. We may
not be able to react to increased food costs by adjusting our supply 'cha:in practices or menu pricing which
‘would negatively impact our operating results: o : i : S

-Our global supply chain may be subject to interruptions, dislocation or may be rendered less effective for

a variety of reasons suchas: ' - Lo
. i . L . . : . ’ £
political unrest; o

L)

animal borne disease or illness; ; . '
contamination of growing fields, water supplies or animaliprocessing facilities;

1

inadequate storage facilities; and _ :
loss of effective climate controls in storage facilities and plrocessing plants.

l .
Our continued growth depends on our successful adaptation and'implementation of our operating
systems. ' ' ) e T : -
. . . - - . ‘
?System-wi,de'expar!sion has and ‘will continue to require the implementation of enhanced operating
systems. There can be no assurance that we will be able to anticipate, invest in and effectively manage
' the information technology and logistical résources necessary to su'ppciyrt the growth of our business.

Our future growth may depend, in part, on our acquisition of 'Applebee’s restaurants from our
franchisees. ' - '

i’
v

. We may acquire Applebee’s restaurants from our franchisees. 'l"'li_c;relis no assurance that we will be able
to acquire franchise restaurants at favorable prices. In ald‘dition, if we complete acquisitions in'the future,
 the acquisitions may involve the following risks: ' o '
! e increases in our debt and contiﬁgen’t liabilities; L N i
.~ e entry into geographic markets in which we have little or no direct prior experience; and
' unanticipated or undiscovered legal liabilities or other 'obligatiohs of acquired_' franchise
restaurants. '

0

' Even if we are successful in acquiring franchise operations, there is,no assurance that we will be able to

_ operate. the acquired restaurants profitably. The integration of aéqu'i'red restaurants into our operations
‘may involve a number of issues, any of which could. materially and'adversely affect our operations and
financial performance. These issues include: i

burdens on our management resources; '. o
diversion of cash flows; !

acquisition integration issues, such as business process and S):rste_m incompatibilities;
potential loss of key personnel of acquired franchise restaurants; and

potential loss of customer relationships and related revenues.’
|
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Item 1B, Unresolved Staff Comments
Not applicable.
Item 2. Properties

As of December 31, 2006, we operated 521 company restaurants.. Of these, we leased the building for 86
sites, owned the building and leased the land for 230 sites, and owned the land and building for 205 sites.
In addition, as of December 31, 2006, we owned five sites for future development of restaurants and had
entered into 11 lease agreements for restaurant sites we plan to open during 2007. Our leases generally
have an initial term of 10 to 20 years, with renewal terms of 5 to 20 years, and provide for a fixed rental
plus, in certain instances, percentage rentals based on gross sales. In addition, our leases in many
instances include escalation of rent payments during the initial term and/or during the renewal terms. Qur
company-owned restaurants have an average of 4,940 square feet and seat an average of 168 guests.

Under our franchise agreements, we have certain rights to gam control of a restaurant site in the event of
default under the franchise agreement.

We own an 80,000 square foot office building and lease a 23,000 square foot office building in Overland
Park, Kansas, located in the Kansas City metropolitan area, in which our corporate offices are
headquartered. In September 2006, we began to actively market our existing 80,000 square foot
headquarters under a plan approved by management. We also lease office space in certain regions in
which we operate restaurants.

In January 2006, we purchased land for a new corporate headquarters in Lenexa, Kansas, located in the
Kansas City metropolitan area, We anticipate relocating to our new corporate headquarters in the fourth
quarter of 2007.
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The following table sets forth the 49 states, 16 countries outside of the United States and one U.S.
territory in which Applebee’s are located and the number of restaurants operating in each state or country

as of December 31, 2006: - y
Number of Restaurants
State or Country Company Franchise Total System
Domestic: \
Alabama.... — , 28 28
Alaska....... — 2 2
Arnzona...... — 32 32
ATKANSAS. ...coiviearire et 2 9 11
California ......cocevveeeveriecssrirseereeesens 25 87 112
C01orado......ocvivernrirenreenesmeeenens — 31 3
CONNECHICUL ..ovivviinirisreeeemeeeeeoene s — . i 11 11
DElaWALE o vvereseeeecereesesreseessereerenns 3 8 n’
Flotida.......cooccooveeneer e - " 106 106
B € (<) - - WUV — . % 71 : 71
: | 1571 T O SO OO —_ T 10 o 10
TLIROIS cooveerverirereroreeeeereemeereresasenseras 13 1 54 67
INAIANA ..coecovereerreonmerennnes 7 o, 58 65
lowa .....coeeeenn — v25 25
Kansas.......... 16 .19 15
Kentucky...... 5 ¢ 3 36
Louisiana — t16 16
MANE ....o.oiriereerersreenmeanes 11 — ' 11
Maryland 2 ) 26
Massachusetts ....c.oovevvereereecrceereneens ‘ 38 T 38
MICHIZAM 1vvveeieeceene e 67 ¢21 38
Minnesota..... ‘ 63 b2 65
Mississippi 3 13 16
Missouri ....... 61- 2 63
Montana ....... - i 7 7
Nebraska...... — 19 19
Nevada .o eere e 15 — 15
New Hampshire ......oocoovnevviennennens 16 . 16
NEW JEISEY 1rvrrirreranenrererresensenisins — ~ 50 50
New MeXiCO. .o rrneneenens 8 10 18
New York......oovvnreeeees | 94 95
North Carolina ... 2 b os3 55
North Dakota.......... — I 10 10
Ohio i — ; 92 92
Oklahoma............... — , 19 19
OFEON «.vvornervreesseemsremssressaresenes — L 17 17
Pennsylvania ... 1 | 63 64
Rhode Island ......ccccovconmrvemviinianaans 8 . — 8
South Carolina .............. — P41 41
South Dakota.......eeeeeeeereeereecioennns — 7 7
TENNESSEE ....coeeveeversirrereerrnreniseanes 5 L 39 44
TEXAS ...vviervirirerirnssrereseenereeeessarans 60 34 94
ULAR. o — 15 15
VIO ..ovvvveeeeeeneeecccvsinsimenncsnnen 3 = 3
Virginia ........... 70 2 72
Washington — 36 36
West VIrginia.....ocovveenaeieeeeecnniean. 2 14 16
WISCONSIN.....ereerreeesrscmrersnsnrerroncene 4 43 47
WYOMING ..oovovrieeieeerce e — 5 5
Total Domestic.....c..covcnerrevervnennes 1,841

L
>
—_
o —
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. L Number of Restaurants
State or Country Company Franchise Total System

International:
Bahrain.......cccveeevccencniiine e —_
Brazil......... . - . : '
Canada .....ooovvinie e — T
Chile...ccoooeiiirirrieeeeneera e —
Ecuador......cooeveeeiceriiiinieieee e, —_
Egypt.........
GIEECE cuvvvicecrtirceees v rtrere s eese —
Guatemala ........ooeeenererrrnresiennes ’ —
Honduras
Jordan.....cooiiecciree e, —
Kuwait....cooeoreeiceeiiriricceeee e —
Lebanon ....
Mexico......
L0 ;17 | SO —
Saudi Arabid........cocovrevveennennnenns —
United Arab Emirates :
ULS. Territories. . ...coovniinsniieinrine ) —
Total International...........cceennn.ee ' —
Total System ......cccvveeerrecerine 521 1,409 1,930

[}
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are subject from time to time to lawsuits, claims and governmental inspections or audits arising in the
ordinary course of business. Some of these lawsuits purport to be class actions and/or seek substantial
damages. In the opinion of management, these matters are adequately covered by insurance, or if not so
covered, are without merit or are of such a nature or involve amounts that would not have a material
adverse impact on our business or consolidated financial position.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a2 Vote of Security Holders

Not applicable. ’
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PARTII | e

Item 5. ‘Market for Registrant’s Common Equlty, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer
' Purchases of Equlty Seeurltles " . }
i oL ¢ * N . e £,

1. Our common stock trades on The NASDAQ Global Select Market-under the symbol APPB.

. " The table below sets forth for the fiscal quartcrs mdlcated the reported high and low sale prices of
| our common stock, as reported on The NASDAQ Global Select Market

|
|

2006 2005
_ 4 High Low ! High Low

b * First Quarter ) $ 72647 % 21.62 $, 2919 § 24.69
o Second Quarter s 2504 0§ - 1943 $1 2865 8 24.25
L Third Quarter $ 2307 % 17.29 $1 2679 § 19.95

Fourth Quarter $ 2547 % 20.77 $i 2398 % 19.73 -
2. Number of stockholders of record at February 23, 2007 1279
3. We declared an annual dividend of $0.22 per common share on December 7, 2006 for

stockholders of record on December 22, 2006, and the d1v1dend was paid on January 22, 2007.
Weé declared an annual dividend of $0.20 per common share i 1n October 2005 for stockholders of
record on December 23, 2005, and the dividend was paid on January 23,2006. “

We presently anticipate continuing the payment of cash dmdends which will be dependent upon
. -future earnings and cash -flows, capital requirements, our financial condition, returns -to
. shareholders and certain other factors. There can be no assurance in 2007 or future years as to the
amount that will be available for the declaration of dividends, 1f any.

4. For ‘information on our equity compensation plans, refer to ltem 12, “Security Ownership of
Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.”

‘ |

5. . Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities ) |
. - During fiscal 2006, we repurchased 1,760,506 shares of our coiﬁmon stock at an average price of
+ $21.88 for an aggregate cost of approximately $38,522,000. The table below sets forth purchases

of our common stock during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006: 1

1

Purchases of Equity Securitiest” |
i ' (a). ___(b) © (d
o T R e Total Number oﬁ Shares | Maximum Dollar Value of Shares
Total Number Average Purchased as Part of that May Yet Be Purchased Under
. of Shares Price Paid Publicly Announced the Plans or Programs
! Period Purchased ~ Per Share Plans or Programs (in thousands) .
September 25, 2006 through : A : : . ‘
October 22, 2006 4,200 $20.96 4,200 ! $101,351
October 23, 2006 through |
November 19, 2006 20,800 $23.97 20,800 | $250,852
November 20, 2006 through I
December 31, 2006 449,606 $23.15 " 449,606 $240,445
Total 474,606 474,606 !

(1 1n October 2005, our Board of Directors authorized repurchases of our common stol:k of up to $175,000,00¢ during 2005 and
2006 subject to market conditions. In November 2006, with approximately 5100 000,000 of the previous authorization
remaining, our Board of Directors authorized additional repurchases of our common stock of up to $150,000,000, subject to
market conditions, for a total of approximately $250,000,000 in authorized repurchases'

M i
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6.  Performance Graph

The following graph compares the annual change in our curmulative total stockholder return for
the five fiscal years ended December 31, 2006 (December 30, 2001 to December 31, 2006) based
upon the market price of our common stock, compared with the cumulative total return on the
NASDAQ Market Index and the Hemscott Group Index assuming $100 was invested and
dividends were reinvested. The NASDAQ Market Index includes both domestic and foreign
companies that trade on the NASD Capital, NASD Global and NASD Global Select Markets The
Hemscott Group Index includes approximately 80 restaurant companies.

Comparlson of five-year cumulative total return among Applebee’s International, Inc.,
NASDAQ Market Index and Hemscott Group Index

3200
3175

& 8—

- 8150
8125 -
$100

R YA

$50

$25

$0 : T 7 T T
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

—e— APPLEBEES INTERNATIONAL, INC. — -8 — HEMSCOTT GROUP INDEX
| ~—t— NASDAQ MARKET INDEX

Source: Hemscott Industry Group

Measurement Period i
: December 30, December 29, December 28, December 26, December 25, December 31,
Company/Index/Market 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
Applebee’s International, Inc. ........... $ 100.00 3 10372 $ 169.81 § 16792 § 15378 $ 166.10
Hemscott Group Index ...................... § 100.00 $ 7982 $ 109.90 $ 13423 $ 14281 17565
NASDAQ Market Index.................... § 100.00 $ 6975 $ 10488 § 11370 § 11619 $ 12812
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Item 0, Selected Financial Data

The following table sets forth our selected financial data for the penods and the dates mdlcated Fiscal
2006 contained 53 weeks. Fiscal 2002 through 2005 each contained 52 weeks. The following should be
read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and. Notes thereto and “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Fmanmal Condltlon and Results of Operatllons” appearing c¢lsewhere in this

Form 10-K. , Lo . b
o *
| . | .
N ' ' : Fiscal Year Ended
December 31, * December 235, Dece::mber 26, December 28, December 29,
© 20060 - 2005¢ 2004 2003 2002

(in thousands, except per share’amounts)
STATEMENT OF EARNINGS DATA: . ‘ ! . ‘
Company restaurant sales..................eie. $1,196,258 $1,082,641 $ 976,798 - $ 867,158 $ 724,616

Franchise royalties and fees............ eeeeins - 139,855 128,813 121 221 109,604 . - 102,180
Other franchise iNCOME ...vvvvvvvversoon. il - 1,808 © 5,196 ]3 615 13,147 2,688
Total operating revenues................... $1,337,921 $1,216,650 $1,111,634 - $ 989,909 $ 829,484
Operating earmings......oeoeeeeereeeseseeeerccns $ 130,784 $ 157,637 $ 165 280 $ 152,677  $126,590
NEE CAIMINES «eoeveoeeeeereereeer e cnreenesnsieens $ 80,906 $ 101,802 $ !10 865 '$ 94349 . $ 80,527
Basic net earnings per share...........cooeee.... $ 1.09 $ 129§ | 136 $ 1.4 $ 097
Diluted net earnings per share.................. $ 1.08 $ 1.27 $ l 1.33 $ L1060 -8 094
Dividends declared per share..........cov.e.. $ 0.22 $ 0.20 $ | 006 § 005 5§ 004
Basic weighted average shares ~ .~ = . : - :
oULSTANAING ......cceveeiriinisinieirrinis 74,001 78,650 ' 81,528 82,944 83,407
Diluted weighted average shares ' '
OUSLANGING ... 74,936 80,010 183,600 85,400 85382
S i . ‘ :
BALANCE SHEET DATA i
(AT END OF FISCAL YEAR): ' . ! .
Total ASSEES.1eurerereririrerrerneer e reeneenenranir e T $ 935456 $ 878,588 § 754,431 $ 651,078 $ 573,647
Long -term debt, including o 3 e
current portion, and notes payable........ §° 175,185 $ 188367 $ 135694 ° § 20,862 $ 52,563
Stockholders’ equity .......cooccoviniinininiinans § 486,654 $ 412,610 $ 496,727 $ 453,143 - § 385,201

f

U} Beginning in 2006, we began recording stock-based compensation expense inlaccordancc with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 123(R), “Stock-Based Compensation™,

1
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations : . :

Forward-Looking Statements

The statements contained in the “Management’s Discussion and’ Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations” section regarding restaurant development, comparable sales, revenue growth,
restaurant margins, commodity costs, general and administrative expenses, capital expenditures, return on
equity and financial commitments are forward-looking and based on current expectations. There are
several risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those described.
These risks include, but are not limited to,.our ability and the ability of our franchisees to open and
operate additional restaurants proﬁtably and generate positive operating cash flows and return on invested
capital, the impact of economic and demographic factors on consumer spendlng, maintaining and growing
the value of the Applebee s brand, the impact of intense competition in the casual dining segment of the
restaurant industry, the impact of future leverage on our operations, the failure to open the restaurants
* anticipated, the impact of increases in capital expenditure costs on future development, our ability to
attract and retain qualified franchisees, and the impact of further penetration of restaurants in-existing
markets. For'a more detailed discussion of the principal factors that could cause actual results to be
materially different, you should read our risk factors in Item 1A of this Form 10-K. We disclaim any
obligation to update forward-looking statements.

General
We operate on a 52 or 53 week fiscal year endmg on the last Sunday in December. Our fiscal years are as

follows: .
Fiscal Year Number

Fiscal Year * Ending - of Weeks S
2004 December 26, 2004 52
2005 December 25, 2005 .52 .
2006 . December 31, 2006 : 53
2007. December 30, 2007 52

Our operating revenues are generated from three primary sources:

* Company restaurant sales (food and beverage sales)
* Franchise royalties and fees
e  Other franchise income

Beverage sales consist of sales of alcoholic beverages, while non-alcoholic beverages are included in food
sales. -

Franchise royalties are generally 4% of each franchise restaurant’s monthly gross sales. Franchise fees
typically are $35,000 for each restaurant opened.

Other franchise income includes revenue from information technology products and services provided to
certain franchisees. In 2005, other franchise income also included insurance premiums for the current
year and premium audit adjustments for prior years from franchisee participation in our captive insurance
program. In 2006, we discontinued writing insurance coverage for new or existing participants.
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. .
Certain expenses relate only to company-owned restaurants. These include:

F_ood and beverage costs !
Labor costs ' - |
Direct and occupancy costs ) |
Pre-opening expenses _ i

'

Cost of other franchise income mcludes costs related to mformanon technology products and services_
provided to certain franchisees. In 2005 .cost of other franchise income included the costs related to
franchisee participation in our capnve insurance program. In 2006, vslfe discontinued writing insurance
coverage for new or existing participants. Cost of other franchise meome includes costs related to the
. (esolution of claims arising from franchisee participation in our captive insurance program.

Other expenses such as general and admmlstratwe and amortization expenses relate to both company-
owned restaurants and franchlse operatlons l
Overview . . o i
Applebee’s International, Inc. and our subsidiaries develop, franchise and operate casual dining
restaurants under the name “Applebee’s Neighborhood Grill & Bar®,” Wthh is the largest casual dining
‘concept in the world ‘with over 1,900 system-wide restaurants open as of December 31, 2006". The
casual dining segment of the restaurant industry is highly competntwe‘ and there are many factors that
affect our profitability. Our industry is susceptible to changes in economic conditions, trends in lifestyles,
ﬂuctuatmg costs, govemment regulation, availability of resources and consumer perceptions. When
evaluating and assessmg our financial performance, we believe there are ﬁve key factors:

, '
. Deve!opment — the number of new company and franchise restaurants opened during the period. Our
expansion strategy has been to cluster restaurants in targeted markets thereby increasing consumer
awareness and convenience, and enabling us to take advantage .of operational, distribution and
advertising efficiencies. We currently expect that the Applebee’s system will ultimately encompass
at least 3,000 restaurants in the United States, as well as the potentlal for at least 1,000 restaurants
internationally. In 2006, we and our franchisees opened 35 and 108 restaurants, respectively.
Together, we have opened at least 100 restaurants system-wide each year for the past 14 fiscal years.

‘.. Comparable restaurant sales — a year-over-year comparison of sale.s for restaurants open at least 18
months. Changes in comparable restaurant sales are driven by changes in the average guest check
and/or changes in guest traffic. Average guest check changes result|from menu price changes and/or
changes in menu mix. During 2006, the impact of menu price increases on company restaurants was

+ approximately 2.2%. Although we may have changes in our average guest check from period to

" period, our mdin focus has been increasing guest traffic as we v1ew this component to be more

indicative of the long-term health of the Applebee’s brand. We are constantly seeking to increase
guest traffic by focusing on improving operations and enhancmg our menu- with new food and
‘beverage offerings. In 2006, we began implementation of a plan to substantially improve the quality
and flavor profile of our food and beverage offerings as a result of comprehensive consumer research
we completed in 2005. In 2006, company comparable sales decreased 1.0%, while domestic

-+ franchise and domestic system-wide comparable sales decreased 0.5% and 0.6%, respectively. We

"' believe ‘our sales and traffic have béen negatively impacted by multiple factors. Lower income

' households, which represent a significant portion of our guests, have|beén impacted by higher energy

* costs and interest rates. The bar and grill category of the restaurant industry has been negatively

" impacted by increased trade-down to quick-service restaurants. In addition, the supply growth of

tH .Source: Nation’s Restaurant News, “Special Report: Top 100,” June 26, 2006.
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units opened in the category in 2006 and 2005 has outpaced demand contributing to weaker sales
trends.

¢ Company restaurant margins — company restaurant sales, less food and beverage, labor, direct and
occupancy restaurant costs and pre-opening expenses, expressed as a percentage of company
restaurant sales. Company restaurant margins are susceptible, to fluctuations in commodity costs,
labor costs and other operating costs such as utilities. Company restaurant margins were 12.1%,
13.4% and 15.6% in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. ‘ '

o General and administrative expenses — general and administrative expenses expressed as a percentage
of total operating revenues. General and administrative expenses were 10.5%, 9.0% and 9.4% in
2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Stock-based compensation included in general and administrative
expenses was 1.5%, 0.2%, and 0.1% in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

o Return on invested capital — net earnings expressed as a percent of average invested capital. We
believe this is an important indicator as it allows us to evaluate our ability to create value for our
shareholders. ' C

Application of Critical Accounting Policies

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations is based upon
our consolidated financial statements, which were prepared in accordance with accounting principies
generally accepted in the United States of America. These principles require us to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts in the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto.
Actual results may differ from these estimates, and such differences may be material to our consolidated
financial statements. We believe that the following accounting policies involve a significant degree ‘of
judgment or complexity.

Inventory valuation: We state inventories at the lower of cost, using the first-in, first-out method, or
market. Market is determined based upon our estimates of the net realizable value.

We may periodically purchase and maintain inventories of certain specialty products to ensure sufficient
supplies to the system, to ensure continuity of supply, or to control food costs. We review and make
quality control inspections of our inventories to determine obsolescence on an ongoing basis. These
reviews require management to make certain estimates and judgments regarding projected usage which
may change in the future and may require us to record an inventory impairment.

Property and equipmen:: We report property and equipment at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation. Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
assets. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lesser of the lease term or the estimated useful
life of the related asset. The useful lives of the assets are based upon management’s expectations. We
periodically review the assets for changes in circumstances which may impact their useful lives. If there
are changes in circumstances that revise an asset’s useful life, we will adjust the depreciation expense
accordingly for that asset in future periods.

Stock-based compensation: Beginning in 2006, we account for stock-based compensation in accordance
with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment”. As
required by SFAS No. 123(R), stock-based compensation is estimated for equity awards at fair value at
the grant date. We determine the fair value of equity awards using a binomial model. The binomial
model requires various highly judgmental assumptions including the expected life, stock.price volatility
and the forfeiture rate. If any of the assumptions used in the model change significantly, stock-based
compensation expense may differ materially in the future from that recorded in the current period.
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Impairment and other restaurant closure costs! We periodically Ereview restaurant property and
equipment for impairment on a restaurant-by-restaurant basis using certain market and restaurant
operating indicators including historical cash flows as well as current.estimates of future cash flows
and/or appraisals. We review other long-lived assets at least annually and when events or circumstances
indicate that the carrying value of the asset may not be recoverable. The recoverability is assessed in
most instances by comparing the carrying value to its undiscounted cash flows.- This assessment process
requires the use of estimates and assumptions regarding future cash ﬂows and estimated useful lives,
which are subject to a significant degree of judgment. If these assumptlons change in the future, we may
be required to record impairment charges for these assets. _ ‘

Income taxes: We record valuation allowances against our deferred tax assets, when necessary, in
accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” Reallzatlon of deferred tax assets. is
dependent on future taxable earnings and is therefore uncertain. We assess the likelihood that our
deferred tax assets in each of the jurisdictions in which we operate will be recovered from future taxable
income. Deferred tax assets do not include future tax benefits that we deem likely not to be realized.

We are penodlcally audited by foreign and domestic tax authorities for both income and sales and use
taxes. We record accruals when we determine it is probable that we have an exposure in a matter relatmg
to an audit. The accruals may change in the future due to new developments in each matter.
i :

Legal and insurance reserves: We are periodically involtved in various legal actions. We are required to
assess the probability of any adverse judgments as well as the potential range of loss.. We determine the
required accruals after a review of the facts of each legal action. !
We use estimates in the determination of the appropriate Iiabi]itieé for general liability, workers’
compensation and health insurance. The estimated liability is established based upon historical claims
data and third-party actuarial estimates of settlement costs for incurred claxms Unanticipated changes i in
these factors may reqmre us to revise our estimates. ; * : : tw

. , L,
We periodically reassess our assumptions and judgments and make adjustments when s1gmﬁcant facts
and circumstances dictate. A change in any of the above estlmates could impact our consolidated
statements of earnings, and the related asset or liability recorded in our consolldated balance sheets would
be adjusted accordingly. Historically, actual results have not been materlally different than the estlmates
that are described above. ;
l

Acquisitions ' o - .

All of our acquisitions discussed below have been accounted for using the purchase method of accountmg
and, accordingly, our consolidated financial statements reflect. the, results of operations for each
acquisition subsequent to the date of acquisition. The assets acquired and liabilities assumed are recorded
at estimates of fair value as determined by management based upon mformauon available. We finalize
the allocation of purchase price to the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed when we obtain
information sufficient to complete the allocation, but in each case, no longer than one year after the
acquisition date, :
i - l
In April 2004, we completed the acquisition of the operations and assets of 10 Applebee $ restaurants
located in Southern California for approximately $13,800,000 in cash, fl"he purchase price was allocated
to the fair value of property and equipment of $2,500,000, goodwill of §10 800,000, and other net assets
of approximately $500,000. i
|
I
l
|

4
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In May 2005, we completed the acquisition of 12 Applebee’s restaurants in” Missouri, Kansas and
Arkansas, which included one restaurant under construction, for approximately $39,500,000 in cash. The
purchase price was allocated to the fair value of property and equipment of $17,500,000, goodwill of
$21,500,000, reacquired franchise rights of approx1mately £300,000, and other net assets of
-approximately $200,000. :

In January 2006, we completed the acquisition of four Applebee’s restaurants in the Houston market for
approximately $8,100,000 in cash. The .purchase price was allocated to the fair value of property and
equipment of $7,400,000, goodwill of approximately 3$500,000, reacquired franchise nghts of
approximately $100,000, and other net assets of approximately $100,000. . .

The following table is comprised of actual company restaurant sales for the three restaurant acquisitions
above, which are included in our consolidated financial statements for each period presented, and pro
forma company restaurant sales. The:pro forma company restaurant sales for 2006 include sales related
to the January 2006 acquisition discussed above as. if the acquisition had occurred as of the beginning of
2006. The pro forma company restaurant sales for 20035 includes sales related to the January 2006
acquisition and the May 2005 acquisition discussed above as if the acquisitions had occurred as of the
beginning of 2005. The pro forma company restaurant sales for 2004 includes sales related to the May
2005 acquisition and the April 2004 acquisition discussed above as if the acquisition had occurred as of
the beginning of 2004.

2006 2005 2004
Actual company restaurant sales
for acquired restaurants........c..oveeeeererrcrcncneeae $ 6400 $ 17,000 § 17,600
Pro forma company restaurant sales -
for acquired restaurants.......c..coeereererioneieeenes $ 7,100 § 32800 § 52,600

In April 2005, we completed the acquisition of eight Applebee’s restaurants in the Memphis market,
which were closed in 2004 by a former franchisee, for approximately $8,800,000 payable in cash. In
connection with this acquisition, we paid approximately $800,000 in 2004 and $8,000,000 in 2005. The
purchase price of $8,800,000 was allocated to the fair value of property and equipment of approximately
$8,200,000 and goodwill of approximately $600,000. We have remodeled and opened seven restaurants
and the remaining restaurant was sold to a third-party.

Captive Insurance Subsidiary

In 2002, we formed Neighborhood Insurance, Inc., a Vermont corporation and a wholly-owned captive
insurance subsidiary to provide Applebee’s Intemational, Inc. and qualified franchisees with workers’
compensation and general liability insurance. In 2005, we reduced the types of insurance coverage plans
offered which resuited in fewer franchisee participants in our captive insurance program. Through 2005,
Applebee’s International, Inc. and covered franchisees made premium payments to the captive insurance
company which pays administrative fees and insurance claims, subject to individual and aggregate
maximum claim limits under the captive insurance company’s reinsurance policies. Franchisee premium
amounts billed by the captive insurance company were established based upon third-party actuarial
estimates of settlement costs for incurred and anticipated claims and administrative fees. Franchisee
premiums were included in other franchise income ratably over the policy year and the related offsetting
expenses were included in cost of other franchise income. In 2006, we discontinued writing insurance
coverage for new or existing participants. Cost of other franchise income includes costs related to the
resolution of claims arising from franchisee participation in our captive insurance program. We do not
expect franchisee participation in the captive insurance company to have a material impact on our net
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earnings. Our consolidated balance sheets include the following balances related to the captive insurance
subsidiary: :

e Franchise premium receivables of approximately $400,000 and $1,700,000 as of December 31,
- 2006 and December 25, 2005, respectively, included in receivables related to captive insurance
subsidiary.

e Cash equivalent and other long-term investments restricted for the payment of claims of
approximately $12,600,000 and $18,600,000 as of December 31, 2006 and December 25, 2003,
respectively, included in restricted assets related to captive insurance subsidiary.

o Loss reserve related to captive insurance subsidiary of approximately $12,600,000 and
$20,700,000 as of December 31, 2006 and December 25, 2005, respectively. Approximatcly

, $6,500,000 and $10,500,000 for December 31, 2006 and December 25, 2005, respectively, is
included in other non-current liabilities.

+
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Results of Operations ' -

The following table contains information derived from our consolidated statements of earnings expressed as

a percentage of total operating revenues, except where otherwise notc'd Percentages may not add due to
rounding,

Fiscal Year Ended
December 31,  December 25, - December 26,
2006 2005 L2004
Operating revenues: ) . .
Company restaurant sales o B94% B89.0% . - B79%
Franchise royalties and fees ...... 10.5 10.6 10.9 .
Other franchise INCOME..............ovvevecrrereenns 0.1 04 1.2
Total operating revenues.......oveeeieeeveveccensinncensirnsns 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Cost of sales {as a percentage of company restaurant sales): .
Food and Beverage. ... ermecrerenrcssnini s ssssssnsens 26.7% 26.5% ] 26.5%
LBDOE ....ocvvvveevvssesresssssnssessesseseesseseessssessossssassessassnisnnsees BT 33.1 32.5
Direct and 0CCUPANCY «..eovcviererecrenrecne e s 27.1 26.6 . 254
Pre-0pening EXPENSE . .....coovveeereesisirssisninisnnnssrrercneses 04 0.4 0.3
Total cost of SaIES ..o e 87.9% 86.6% 84.4%
Cost of other franchise income (as a percentage of other
franchise INCOME) ...ooovririniiiiiisin e 149.3% 94.1% 105.8%
General and administrative EXPEnSes. ..o imrenieinnmcinnnneni 10.5 9.0 9.4
Amortization of intangible assets . 0.1 0.1 0.1
Impairment and other restaurant closure costs.. 0.7 0.3 —
Loss on disposition of property and equlpment ...................... 0.2 0.2 0.2
Operating CarminNgs........covveeeriereerisraserseresriressss s ssessemsesseseeses 9.8 13.0 14.9
Other income (expense): '
INVESIMENT INCOME...overiremeciiinsis e ser s 02 0.1 0.1
INEErESt EXPEMSE wovvvireerncrmerees bbb s (0.9 0.4) (0.1)
Other income . — 0.1 0.3
Total other income (expense) (0.6) (0.1) 0.3
Earnings before income taxes and cumulanve effect of
change in accounting principle ..........cocoincrnninnnnens 9.1 12.9 15.2
Income taxes............... et aes 3.1 45 - 5.2
Earnings before cumulalwe effect of change in
accouUnting principle ... 6.0 8.4 10.0
Cumulative effect of change in accountmg prmcnple
NEE OF LAX oveiveens et ceme et e e — — —

NEL CATTHIES ... vveesermeeeaeceiraesrerasrerrm e eam s s e eeesen e rsse st aees 6.0% 8.4% 10.0%
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Flscal Year Ended December 31, 2006 Compared With Fiscal Year Ended. December 25, 2005

.8

Company Restaurant Sales. Total company restaurant sales mcreased $113, 6]7 000 (10.5%) from
$1,082,641,000 in 2005 to $1,196,258,000 in 2006. The percentage mcrease in total company restaurant
sales was due to an increase in the number of restaurant weeks open of approx1mately 13%. ‘The 53"
week contributed $24,312,000 to company restaurant sales. Excluding the 53" week, company restaurant
sales increased by 8.3%. Thisi Increase was partially offset by a decline t m average weekly sales of 2.0%.

Comparable - restaurant sales' at company restaurants decreased by 10% in 2006. Weighted average
weekly’ sales at company restaurants decreased 2.0% from $45, 552¢ in 2005 to $44,637 in 2006.
Excluding the 53" week in 2006, company average weekly sales decreased 2.3%. The decrease in
average weekly sales was due to a decline in guest traffic of approxrmate]y 3.5% in 2006, as well as the
underperformance of restaurants open less than 18. months. In 2006, we experienced more significant
guest count declines in New England and Virginia, where approximately 25% of our company restaurants
are located. These decreases were partially offset by an increase in the average guest check resulting
from menu price increases of approximately 2.2% in 2006, We took a price increase of approximately
1.4% in January 2007. ‘ ) ‘ ':
Franchise Royalties and Fees. Franchise royalties and fees lincreai\sed $11,042,000 (8.6%) from
$128,813,000 in 2005 to $139,855,000 in 2006 due primarily to the! mcreased number of franchise
restaurants operating during 2006 as compared to 2005 and the .impact of the 53™ week in 2006 which
contributed approximately $2,900,000 to franchise royalties. Excluding the 53" week in 2006, franchise
royalties and fees increased 6.3%. Domestic franchise weighted average weekly sales and franchise
comparable restaurant sales decreased by 0.1% and 0.5%, respectively, in 12006 Excluding the 53" week,
domestic franchise weighted average weekly sales decreased 0.5% in 2006.
f t
Other Frarichise Income. Other franchise income de’creased $3,388,000 (65%) from $5,196,000 in 2005 to
$1,808,000 in 2006 due primarily to the decision to discontinue wntrng ‘new coverage in our captive
msurance program, _ . , ‘ !
Cost of Company Restaurant Sales. Food and beverage costs increased from 26.5% in 2005 to 26.7% in
2006. Food and beverage costs were negatively impacted by improved menu offerings which had higher
food, costs as a percentage of sales, an enhanced bar menu, and higher alcoholic beverage costs as a
percentage of sales, partlally related to our late~mght value strategy. These i mcreases were partially offset by
menu price increases of ‘approximately 2.2% in 2006. We currently expect net commodity costs o increase
by approx1mately 1% in 2007. .

I
Labor costs increased from 33.1% in 2005 to 33.7% in 2006. The increase in 2006 was due primarily to
higher management and hourly wage rates including the impact of state mrmmum wage rate increases and
payroll taxes, which were partially offset by lower health insurance and workers compensation expenses.
We currently expect labor costs to be negatively impacted by recently enacted state hourly mrmmum wage
mcreases in 2007. ' l

Direct and occupancy costs increased from 26.6% in 2005 to 27.1% in 2006 due primarily to higher utility
costs and unfavorable year-over-year comparisons for depreciation, as a{percentage of sales, due to its
relatively. fixed nature. These increases were partially offset by the favorable impact of a change in
accountmg conventron for smallwares that was implemented-in the second quarter of fiscal 2006,

Cost of Other Franchrse Income. Cost of other franchise income decreased $2,193,000' (45%) from
$4, 892 000 in 2005 to $2,699,000 in 2006. This decrease was due to the decision to discontinue wrrtmg
new coverage in our captive insurance program, which was pamally offset by $1, 500 000 recorded in
2006 for estimated insurance 10sses from franchise participants. }
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General and Administrative Expenses. General and administrative expenses increased from 9.0% in 2005 to
10.5% in 2006 due primarily to the recognition of stock-based compensation related to adoption of SFAS
No. 123(R), higher compensation expense due to staffing levels and expenses incurred related to the
development of international markets which increased our general and administrative expenses by 0.4%,
as a percentage of total revenues. Stock-based compensation included in general and administrative
expenses was 1.5% and 0.2% in 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Impairment and Other Restaurant Closure Costs. Impairment and other restaurant closure costs
increased $4,900,000 from $3,900,000 in 2005 to $8,800,000 in 2006. In 2006, we recorded the
following costs:
e $5,500,000 to decrease the carrying amounts of property, equipment and lease acquisition costs of
restaurants for which the original carrying value was not deemed recoverable
* $1,500,000 to decrease the carrying amount of an investment of which the original carrying value
was deemed to be greater than the fair market value
$900,000 to record lease obligations for restaurants closed during the year
»  $900,000 to decrease the carrying amount of a corporate aircraft of which the original carrying
value was deemed to be greater than fair market value

In 2005, we recorded the following impairment and restaurant closure costs:
s $2,600,000 to decrease the original carrying amounts of property and equipment of restaurants for
which the carrying value was not deemed recoverable
e $1,300,000 to decrease the original carrying amount of a long-lived asset that was abandoned

Interest Expense. Interest expense increased $7,056,000 from $4,365,000 in 2005 to $11,421,000 in 2006
due primarily to higher interest rates and increased borrowings under our credit facility used to fund
capital expenditures and repurchases of our common stock.

Income Taxes. The effective income tax rate, as a percentage of earnings before income taxes, decreased
from 34.9% in 2005 to 33.8% in 2006 due to higher employment tax credits and the resolution of state tax
matters. ' )

Net earnings. Net earnings decreased $20,896,000 (21%) from $101,802,000 in 2005 to $80,906,000 in
2006 due primarily to the recognition of stock-based compensation related to adoption of SFAS No.
123(R) and lower restaurant margins due to a decrease in average weekly sales which resulted in an
increase in labor and direct and occupancy costs, which were partially offset by the impact of the 53™
week in 2006,

Fiscal Year Ended December 25, 2005 Compared With Fiscal Year Ended December 26, 2004

Company Restaurant Sales. Total company restaurant sales increased $105,843,000 (11%) from
$976,798,000 in 2004 to $1,082,641,000 in 2005. The percentage increase in total company restaurant
sales was due to an increase in the number of restaurant weeks open of approximately 13%, which was
partially offset by a decline in average weekly sales of 2.1%.

Comparable restaurant sales at company restaurants decreased by 0.9% in 2005. Weighted average
weekly sales at company restaurants decreased 2.1% from $46,536 in 2004 to $45,552 in 2005. These
decreases were due, in patt, to a reduction in guest traffic of approximately 3.0% in 2005 as compared to
2004 due to the launch of our Weight Waichers® menu system-wide in May 2004. In addition, we
experienced more significant guest count declines in Kansas City, Minnesota and New England, where
approximately 40% of our company restaurants are located, which was consistent with industry trends in
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these markets. Weighted average weekly sales declined more than comparable sales due to weaker new
restaurant opening volumes in Kansas City, Minnesota, New England; St. Louis and Virginia. These
decreases were partially offset by an increase.in the average guest check resulting from menu price
increases of approximately 2.5% in 2005 and our Carside To Go initiative. Carside To Go sales .mix
increased from 9.3% of company restaurant sales in 2004 to 10.0% of company restaurant sales in 2005.

t ' - B ) -
Franchise Royalties and Fees. Franchise royalties and fees increased $7,592,000 (6%) from $121,221,000
in' 2004 to $128,813,000 in 2005 due primarily to the increased number of franchise restaurants operating
during 2005 as compared to 2004 and increases in comparable franchise réstaurant sales. Weighted average
weekly sales and franchise comparable restaurant sales each increased by 2.7% in 2005. These increases
were due primarily to the implementation of the Carside To Go program which was completed in early
2005. L . ‘ ) |

Other Franchise Income. Other franchise income decreased $8,419,000 (62%) from $13,615,000 in 2004 to
$5,196,000 in 2005 due primarily to fewer franchisee participants in our-captive -insurance program
resulting from the reduction of the types of insurance coverage plans offered Franchise premlums are
mcluded in other franchlse income ratably over the policy year. C

Cost of Company Restaurant Sales. Food and beverage costs were 26.5% ‘m both 2004 and 2005. Food and
beverage costs were favorably impacted by menu price increases of 2. S% in 2005, which were offset by
higher commaodity costs and lower order incidences of both alcoholic and non-alcoholic beverages which
have a lower cost of sales. In addition, 2004 was unfavorably impacted by the company portion of the June
2004 impairment of approximately $500,000 for excess nblet mventones whlch no longer met our quahty
standards. :

Labor costs increased from 32.5% in 2004 to 33.1% in 2005 The i mcrease in 2005 was due primarily to
higher management and hourly costs due to lower sales volumes, hlgher wage rates, payroll taxes and
group insurance costs, which were partially offset by lower managemient incentive compensation and
workers’ compensation expense. | .

|
t

i .
Direct and occupancy costs increased from 25.1% in 2004 to 26.6% in 2905. Direct and occupancy costs
were unfavorably impacted due primarily to lower sales volumes at company. restaurants, which resulted
in unfavorable year over year, comparisons for depreciation, rent and property tax expenses as a
percentage of sales, due to their relatively fixed nature, as well as higher utilities and packaging costs.

Cost of Other Franchise Income. Cost of other franchise income decreased $9,509,000 (66%) from
$14,401,000 in 2004 to $4,892,000 in 2005. This decrease was due primarily to fewer franchisee
participants in our captive insurance program resulting from the reduction of the types of insurance
coverage plans offered and the franchisee portion of the June 2004 impairment of approximately
$1,600,000 for excess riblet inventories which no longer met our quality § standards.

Genéral and Administrative Expenses. General and administrative expenses decreased from 9.4% in 2004
10 9.0% in 2005 as a result of the absorption of general and administrativ:e expenses over a larger revenue
base, lower incentive compensation expense and a reduction in costs’ associated with compliance with
Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. These decreases were partially offset by higher compensation
expense due to higher management training costs and increased regional operations management staffing
relating to the increased number of company restaurant openings as compared 10 2004,

Impafrment and Other Restaurant Closure Costs. In 2005, we recorded an asset lmpalrment charge of

$3 900,000 consisting of a $2,600,000 write-down of the carrying value of the property and equipment of

four restaurants and a $1,300,000 write-down of one other ]ong -lived asset (Note 6 of the consolidated

financial statements).
i

]
|
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Interest Expense. Interest expense increased from 31,626,000 in 2004 to $4,365,000 in 2005 due
primarily to increased borrowings under our credit facility used to acquire 12 restaurants in May 2005 and
to fund capital expenditures and repurchases of our common stock. :

Other Income. Other income decreased $1,795,000 from $3,557,000 in 2004 to $1,762,000 in 2005, In
2004, we recorded several significant items which resulted in higher other income for that year. These
items consisted of income of $1,600,000 for the resolution of certain previously disclosed long-running
international franchise disputes and $600,000 of income for final con51derat10n related to the sale of 12
restaurants in Philadelphia in 1999.

Income Taxes. The effective income tax rate, as a percentage of earnings before income taxes, increased
from 34.2% in 2004 to 34.9% in 2005 due to an increase in state and local income taxes.

Net earnings. Net earnings decreased $9,063,000 (8%) from $1 I10,865;000 in 2004 to $101,802,000 in 2005
due primarily to lower restaurant margins due to a decrease in average weekly sales which resulted in an
increase in labor and direct and occupancy costs.

iiguidi;y and Clapital Resources

Our primary sources of liquidity are cash provided by operations and borrowings under our credit facility.
Our need for capital resources historically has resulted from the construction and acquisition of
restaurants, refurbishment and capital replacement for existing restaurants, the repurchase of our common
stock and investment in information technology systems. We obtain capital through our ongoing
operations and debt financing. '

Cash flows from our operating activities primarily include the net cash generated from company and
franchise operations and management of credit from trade suppliers. Cash flows used by investing
activities include capital expenditures for restaurant construction, refurbishment, information technology,
acquisitions of franchise restaurants, sale-leaseback transactions and asset sales. Cash flows used by
financing activities include borrowings and repayments of debt, repurchases of our common stock,
dividends to shareholders and the cash received from the exercise of employee stock options. The
following table presents a summary of our cash flows for 2006, 2005 and 2004 (in thousands):

2006 2005 2004
* Net cash provided by operating activities........ $ 174,594 $ 221,203 $ 190,605
~ Net cash used by investing activities ............... (121,672) (187,718) (134,055)
: Net cash used by financing activities............... (43,653) (31,087) (63,775)
Net increase (decrease) in cash _ .
and cash equivalents ..........cccoceeveerirrrcnncnnns 3 9,269 $ 2,398 5 (7,225

Capital expenditures, excluding franchlse acquisitions, were $122,896,000 in 2006, $139,396,000 in 2005
and $104,620,000 in 2004.

Excluding costs related to the construction of our new corporate headquarters, capital expenditures are
expected to be between $70,000,000 and $80,000,000 in 2007 and will primarily be for the development
of new restaurants, refurbishment and capital replacement for existing restaurants and the enhancement of
information systems. Costs for the new corporate headquarters are expected to be approximately
$30,000,000 in 2007. We intend to enter into a sale-leaseback transaction with respect to the new
headquarters upon its completion or thereafter, depending upon market conditions. We currently expect
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to open between 10 and |5 company restaurants in 2007. . Because we expect to continue to purchase a
portion of our restaurant sites, the amount of actual capital expendlturesl will be dependent upon, among
other things, the proportion of leased versus owned properties. If we construct more or fewer restaurants
than we currently anticipate, or acquire additional restaurants, our capltal requirements will increase or
decrease accordmgly . . !

In January 2006, we completed the acqursmon of four Applebee $ restaurants in the Houston area for
approx1mately $8,100,000 in cash. |

In May 2005 we completed the acquisition of 12 Applebee’s restaurants in Missouri, Kansas and
Arkansas, which included one restaurant under construction, for approxnmately $39,500,000 in cash.

Ini April 2003, we completed the acquisition of eight Applebee’s restaurants in the Memphis market,
which were closed in 2004 by a former franchisee, for approximately $8 800,000 payable in cash. In
connecnon with this acqulsltron we pald approximately $800 000 in 2004 and $8 000,000 in 2005

In Apnl 2004, we completed the acquisition of the operations and: assets of 10 Applebee’s restaurants
located in Southern California for approximately $13,800,000 in cash. |

In ‘December 2006, we entered into a new five-year revolving credit facility. -The terms of the bank credit
agreement provide for $400,000,000 in unsecured revolving credit as well as an additional $200,000,000
of revolving credit upon satisfaction of the conditions set forth in the credit facility. The facility is subject
to various covenants and testrictions which, among other things, requlre the maintenance of stipulated
fixed charge and leverage ratios, as defined. There is no limit on cash d1v1dends or repurchases of our
common stock provided the declaration and payment of such dividend or repurchase of stock does not
cause a default of any other covenant contained in the agreement. The facﬂlty is subject to other standard
terms, conditions, covenants and fees. As of December 31, 2006, we were in compliance: with the
covenants ¢ontained in our credit agreement. We had borrowings of $170 000,000, standby letters of
credit of approximately $15,600,000 outstandmg and approximately $214 400,000 available under our
revolving credit facility.

In October 2005, our Board of Directors approved a $175,000,000 authonzatton to repurchase our
common stock, subject to market conditions. In November 2006, with approxtmately $100,000,000 of
the previous authorization remaining, our Board of Directors authonzed additional repurchases of our
common’ stock of up to $150,000,000, subject to market conditions! for a total of approximately
$250,000,000 in authorized repurchases. During 2006, we repurchased 1,760,506 shares of our common
stock at an average price of $21.88 for an aggregate cost of approxlmately $38,522,000. As of December
31, 2006 we had approximately $240, 400 000 remammg under our repurchase authortzattons
| .
I October 2006, we entered into a sale-leaseback arrangement with a third-party finance company
mvolvmg five restaurant propertics. As a result of this transaction, we recelved approximately
$3,100,000 in cash. _ !
In IDecember 2006, the Board of Directors declared an annual dividend*' of $0.22 per share payable to
shareholders of record on December 22, 2006." We paid approx1mately $16,300,000 in January 2007
related to this dividend. l
b | . P !

As of December 31, 2006, our liquid assets totaled $22,602,000. These assets consisted of cash and cash
equivalents in the. amount of $22,309,000 and short-term investments in‘the amount of $293,000. The
working capital deficit decreased from $107,400,000 as of December 25 2005 to $81,626,000 as of
December 31, 2006. This decrease resulted primarily from a combmanon of factors which included
decreases in accounts payable and inventories, an increase in receivables and accrued income taxes, a
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reclassification of property and equipment to assets held for sale and hlgher saIes of gift cards as
compared to the redemption of gift cards. s

We believe that our liquid assets and cash generated from operations, combined with available
borrowings, will provide sufficient funds for operating activities, capital expenditures, currently approved
repurchases of our common stock and the payment of dividends for at least the next 12 months and
thereafter for the foreseeable future. e e

The following table shows our debt amortization schedule, future capital lease commitments (including
principal and interest payments), future operating lease commitments (operating leases in Note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements) and future purchase obligations :as of December 31, 2006 (in
thousands):

Payments due by period o
Certain ' Less than 1" '1-3 '35 -- - More than-
Contractual Obligations Total . year - Years Years 5 years -
Long-term Debt (excluding capital : S ' . . T
lease obligations) and Notes o ) g . : TN

Payable! ........coocooviir e $ 171,269 § 77§ 90 - $ 170,108 . $ . 994
Capital Lease Obligations........c.coeevieee. . 7,322 822 1,731 1,792 3,177
Operating Leases ™................ rrrenenseneesene - 402,019 29,307 58211 56,842 257,659
Purchase Obllgatlons-_Company(j) reeeenn - 206,395 49,145 127,903 29,347 .=
Purchase Obligations - Franchise .......... 475,126 52,776, 342,983 79 367,_ o=

() The amounts for long-term debt are prlmarlly borrowmgs under our revolving credit facrhty and exclude interest payments '
which are variable in nature.
@ The amounts for operating leases include option periods where failure to exercise such opt:ons would result in an economic
Fenatty such that the renewal appears reasonably assured.

The amounts for company purchase obligations include commitments for food.items, energy, supplies, severance and
employmem agreements, our new corporate headquarters, and other mlscellaneous commitments. .

) The amounts for franchise purchase obligations “include commitments for food items and supplles made by us for our
franchisees. We contract with certain suppliers to ensure competitive pricing. These amounts will only be payable by us 1f our -
franchisees do not meet certain minimum contractual requrremenls

Other Contractual Obli,qations

In connection with the sale of restaurants to franchisees and other parties, we have, in-certain cases,
remained contingently liable for the .remaining lease payments. As of December-31, 2006, we have
outstanding lease guarantees of approximately $15,300,000. - In addition, we or our subsidiaries: are
contingently liable for various leases that we have assigned in connection. with the sale of restaurants to
franchisees and other parties, in the potential amount of $12,300,000. These leases expire at'various
times with the final lease agreement expiring in 2018. We did not record a liability related to_these
contingent lease liabilities as of December 31, 2006 or December 25; 2005 R

In 2004, we arranged for a third-party financing company to provlde up to $250,000, 000 to quallﬁed
franchlsees for loans to fund development of new restaurants through October 2007, .subject .to our
approval. We will provide a limited guarantee of 10% of certain loans advanced under this program. We
will be released from our guarantee if certain operating results are met after the restaurant has been open
for at least two years. As of December 31, 2006, there were loans outstanding to five franchisees for
approximately $65,800,000 under. this:program. The fair:value of our guarantees under this financing
program is approximately $130,000 and is recorded in non- current liabilities in our consolidated balance
sheet as of December 31, 2006. : '
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We have severance and employment agreernents with certain officers providing for severance payments.

to, be made in the event the associate resigns or is terminated not related to a change in control, some of
which require payments to be made only if we enforce certain terms in the agreements. If the severance
payments had been due as of December 31, 2006, we would have been required to make payments
totaling approximately. $10,600,000. In addition, we have severance and employment agreements with
certain officers which contain severance provisions related to a change in control. The agreements define
the circumstances which will constitute a change in control. Those provisions would have required
additional aggregate payments of approxnmately $s5, 300 000 if such officers had been terminated as: of
December 31, 2006, : !

|

l

In March 2006, the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) issued EITF Issue 06-3, “How Taxes Collected
from Customers and Remitted to Governmental Authorities Should Be Presented in the Income Statement
(That Is, Gross versus Net Presentation).” A consensus was reached that entities may adopt a policy of
presentmg sales taxes in the income statement on either a gross or net ba51s If taxes are significant, an
entity should disclose its policy of presenting taxes and the amounts of taxes The guidance is effective
for periods beginning after December 15, 2006. We present company sales net of sales taxes. The impact
of this adoption did not change our method for recording sales taxes in our consolidated financial
statements. . - L o . . : :

New Accounting Pronouncements

)

In' July 2006, the Financial- Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) iissued FASB Interpretation No.
(“FIN”) 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes,” which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty
in income taxes recognized-in the financial statements in accordance wrth SFAS No. 109, “Accounting
for Income Taxes.” FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. The impact of
this adoptlon will not be material to our consolldated financial statements. : :
In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No 157, “Fair Value Measur]ements ” This statement defines
fair value, establishes a framework for using fair value to measure assets and liabilities; and expands
disclosures about fair value measurements. The statement applies whenever other statements require or
perrmt assets or liabilities to be measured at fair value. SFAS No. 157 1s effective for fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2007. The 1mpact of this adopnon will not be material to our consolidated
financial statements. . ‘ o

{
\

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS- No. 158; “Employers’ f}ccounting for Defined Benefit
Pension and Other Postretirement Plans.” This statement requires companies to recognize a net liability
or asset and an offsetting adjustment to accumulated other comprehensive income to report the funded
status of defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefit plans. The statement requires
prospective application, and the recognition and disclosure requirements ;are effective for companies with
fiscal years ending after December 15, 2006. Additionally, SFAS No. 158 requires companies to measure
plan assets and obligations at their year-end balance sheet date. This réquirement is effective for fiscal
years ending after December 15, 2008. The impact of this adoption was ‘not material to our consolidated
financial statements and we are in complrance with the measurement date prov1s1ons of this statement as
of December 31, 2006. - T : ;
|

In September 2006, the SEC 1ssued Staft Accountmg Bulletin (“SAB”) No 108, “Considering the Effects
of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements,”
which provides interpretive guidance regarding the consideration given to prior year misstatements when
determining materiality in current year financial statements. SAB No: *108 is effective for fiscal years
ending after November 15, 2006. - The 1mpact of this adoption was not material to our consolidated
firlancial statements. '

|

i
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[n October 2006, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) FAS 123 (R)-5, “Amendment to FSP
FAS 123 (R)-1.” FSP FAS 123(R)-5 addresses whether a modification of an instrument in connection
with an equity restructuring should be considered a modification for purposes of applying FSP FAS
123(R)-1. This FSP states that no change in the recognition or the measurement (due to a change in
classification asa result of a modification solely to reflect an equity restructuring that occurs when the
holders are no longer employees) of the instruments will result if two conditions are met: (1) there is no
increase in fair value of the award or the antidilution provision is not added to the terms of the award in
contemplation of an equity restructuring and (2) all holders of the same class of equity instruments. are
treated in the same manner. The effective date of FSP FAS 123(R)-5 is the first réporting period
beginning after October 10, 2006. The 1mpact of this adoption was not material to our consolidated
financial statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Liabilities.” " This statement permits entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain
other items at fair value. If the fair value option is elected, unrealized gains and losses will be recognized
in earnings at each subsequent reporting date. SFAS No. 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007. We are currently evaluating the impact of this adoption on our consolldated
financial statements.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Quélitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We are exposed to market risk from fluctuations in interest rates and changes in commodity prices. Our
revolving credit facility currently bears interest at either the bank’s prime rate or LIBOR plus 0.50%, at.
our option. As of December 31, 2006, the total amount of debt subject to interest rate fluctuations was
$170,000,000, which was outstanding on our revolving credit facility. ‘A 1% change in interest rates
would result in an increase or decrease in interest expense of approximately $1,700,000 per year. We
may from time to time enter into interest rate swap agreements to manage the impact of interest rate
changes on our earmings. A substantial portion of the food products and utilities we purchase are subject
to price volatility due to factors that are outside of our control such as weather; seasonality and fuel costs.

As part of our strategy to moderate this volat;llty, we have entered into fixed price purchase
commitments. :

Item 8.  Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
See the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements on Page F-1.

i

Item9.  Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accountmg and -Financial

Disclosure
Not applicable.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

As of December 31, 2006, we have evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our
disclosure controls and procedures, under the supervision and with the participation of the Chief
Executive Officer (“CEO”) and Chief Financial Officer (“CFO™). Based on this evaluation, our
management, including the CEO and CFO, concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are
effective.

During the fourth fiscal quarter, there have been no changes in our internal control over financial

reporting that occurred that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect our
internal control over financial reporting.
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Management’s Report on Intemal'Control over Financial Regorting {

t

The management of Applebee’s Intérnattonal, Inc is respon31ble for estabhshlng and maintaining
adequate internal control over financial reporting, as defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). OQur
internal control system was designed to provide reasonable assurance to'the company’s management and
board of directors regarding the preparation and fair presentation of publlshed ﬁnanmal statements in
accordance w1th generally accepted accounting principles. '

Management recognizes that there are inherent limitations in the effecttyeness of any. system of internal
control, and accordingly, even effective internal control can provide only reasonable assurance with
respect to financial statement preparation and fair presentation.  Further, because of changes in

COI‘ldlthIlS the effectiveness of mternal control may vary over time. +
i

: £ .
Under the superv151on and with the part101pat10n of our management mcludlng our CEO and CFO we
assessed the effectiveness of the company’s internal control over ﬁnancml reporting as of December 31,
2006. In making this assessment, we used thé criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring
Orgamzauons of the Treadway Commission in Internal Control—lntegrated Framework. Based upon our
- assessment, we conclude that, as of December 31, 2006, the company’ s internal control over, financial

reporting is effective, in all material respects, based upon those criteria. -; v I,
| : '

Our mdependent tegistered public accountmg ﬁrm Deloitte & Touche LLP issued an attestatlon report
dated February 28, 2007 on our assessment and on the effecttveness of the company s 1nternal control
over financial reportmg, which is mcluded herein.

1
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGIS"I;ERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

- r

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of .
Applebee’s International, Inc. and Sub31d1ar1es
Overland Park, Kansas '
We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, that Applebee’s Intemational, Inc. and subsidiaries (the
“Company”) maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006,
based on ‘criteria established in’ Internal Control—integrated Framework, issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company’s management is responsible for
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s
assessment and an opinion'on- the effectlveness of the Company s mtt,mal control over ﬁnancnal reportmg
based on otr audlt

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of interal control over financial reporting,
evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision
of, the company’s principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar
functions, and effected by the company’s board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (“generally accepted accounting principles”). A company’s internal control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2} provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
not be prevénted or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of
the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that the Company maintained effective internal control over

financial reporting as of December 31, 20086, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
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Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Also in our opinion,|the Company maintained, in all .
material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as| of December 31, 2006, based on
the criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. - '
!

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Publlc Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31,
2006, of the Company and our report dated February 28, 2007 expressed an unquallﬁed opinion on those
financial statements and included an explanatory paragraph regarding a change in accounting for stock-
based compensation upon adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), “Share-

Based Payment.” i l

b
DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP |
Kansas City, Missouri |

)

February 28, 2007

Item 9B. Other Infoﬁnation

Not applicable. o o i

1
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PARTIIT
Item 10.  Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

If you would like information about our executive officers, you should read the section entitled
“Executive and Other Senior Officers of the Registrant” in Part I of this report. You should read the
information under the caption “Information About the Board of Directors and Executive and Other Senior
Officers” for information on our Board of Directors and audit committee of the Board of Directors and
the caption “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” for information regarding our
Section 16(a) reporting compliance located in the definitive proxy statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting
of Stockholders (the “Proxy Statement”). We incorporate that information in this document by reference.

Our Board of Directors has adopted a Code of Conduct for all associates and directors. A copy of this
document is available on our website at www.applebees.com, free of charge, under the Investors section.
We will satisfy any disclosure requirements under Item 5.05 on Form 8-K regarding an amendment to, or
waiver from, any provision of the Code with respect to our principal executive officer, principal financial
officer, principal accounting officer and persons performing similar functions by disclosing the nature of
such amendment or waiver on our website or in a report on Form §8-K.

QOur Board of Directors has determined that Mr. Eric L. Hansen, a member of the audit committee and an
independent director, is an audit committee financial expert, as defined under 407(d)(5) of Regulation S-
K.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

If you would like information about our director and executive compensation, you should read the
information under the caption “Executive Compensation” and “Information About the Board of Directors
and Executive and Other Senior Officers — Director Compensation and — Compensation Committee
Interlocks and Insider Participation” in the Proxy Statement. We incorporate that information in this
document by reference.

Item 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related
Stockholder Matters

If you would like information about the stock owned by our management and certain large stockholders
and information about our equity compensation plans, you should read the information under the captions
“Stock Ownership of Officers and Directors” and “Stock Ownership of Major Stockholders” and
“Executive Compensation — Equity Compensation Plan Information” in the Proxy Statement for the
Annual Meeting of Stockholders. We incorporate that information in this document by reference.

Item 13.  Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

If you would like information about certain transactions which we have completed or certain relationships
which we have entered into, you should read the information under the caption “Related Party
Transactions” in the Proxy Statement. For information on director independence you should read the
information under the caption “Information About the Board of Directors and Executive and Other Senior
Officers — Corporate Governance” in the Proxy Statement. We incorporate that information in this
document by reference.
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If &ou would like information about fees paid to our auditors, you should read the information under the
caption “Fees and Services of Deloitte & Touche LLP” in the Proxy Statement. We incorporate that

information in this document by reference. -
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‘Item 14.  Principal Accounting Fees and Services

3
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I;ART v
ftem 15. E;hibits, Fina'nciel. Stgtement Scl_ledu!es L o !
(a) List of documents ﬁleti‘as‘l.)e;t Qf‘ thlS _r,eport; o
1. Financial Statertlente: |

The financial statements are listed in the accompanying “Index to Consolidated Financial
Statements on Page F-1. '

2. Fmancml Statement Schedules
None. -
3. Exhibits:

The exhibits filed with or mcorporated by reference in thls report are llsted on the Exhlblt
Index begmnmg on page E-1. :

i
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exch;mge Act of 1934, the registrant
has_duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, tl}ereunto duly authorized.

b
APPLEBEE’S INTERN?T[ONAL; INC.

Date:, . February 28, 2007 ' ' “By: /s/ David L. Goebel
' David L. Goebel |
! \ , : Director, Chief Executrve Oﬁicer and
b . " President "
(principal executive ofﬁcer)

‘ S o POWER OF ATTORNEY *
KNOWN TO.ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person M’hose 51gnature appears below
constitutes and appoints David L. Goebel and Rebecca R. Tilden, and each of them, his true and lawful
attorney -in-fact and agent, with full power of substitution and resubstrtutlon for him and in his name,
place and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any amendments to this Form 10-K, and to file the same,
with exhibits thereto and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities. and Exchange
Commission, hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorney-in-fact or his substitute or substitutes,
may do or cause to be done by virtue hereof. : }

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by
the followmg persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacntles and on the dates indicated.

By: /s/ David L. Goebel ' Date:
*+ David L. Goebel '
Director, Chief Executive Officer and President
(prmcrpai executive officer)

February 28, 2007

February 28, 2007

By: /s/ Steven K. Lumpkin ‘ - Date:
- Steven K. Lumpkin '
\- Director, Executive Vice President, Chief
Financial Officer and Treasurer
(principal financial officer)

By: /s/ Beverly O. Elving Date:
Beverly O. Elving : o - -
i Vice President and Controller
(principal accounting officer)

February 28, 2007

By: /s/ LloydL.Hill . Date: | February 28, 2007
, Lloyd L. Hill ' ' '
' Director, Chairman of the Board
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By:

By:

By:

By:

By:

/s/ Erline Belton

Erline Belton
Director

/s/ Gina Boswell

Gina Boswell
Director

/s/ Douglas R. Conant,

Douglas R. Conant
Director

/s/ D. Patrick Curran

D. Patrick Curran
Director

s/ Eric.L.- Hansen

Eric L. Hansen
Director '

‘fs/ Jack P. Helms

Jack P. Helms
Director

/s/ Rogelio Rebolledo

Rogelio Rebolledo
Director

/s/ Burton M. Sack

Burton M. Sack
Director

/s/ Michael A. Volkema

Michael A. Volkema
Director
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

. )

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Applebee’s International, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Overland Park, Kansas

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Applebee’s International, Inc. and
subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2006 and December 25, 2005, and the related consolidated
statements of earnings, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2006. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audlts

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting -Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. . We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion. -

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as of December 31, 2006 and December 25, 2005, and the results of its operations
and its cash flows for each of the three fiscal years in the period ended December 31, 2006, in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method of
accounting for stock-based compensation upon adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment.”

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December
31, 2006, based on the criteria established in Jnternal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 28,
2007, expressed an unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting and an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company s
internal control over financial reporting.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Kansas City, Missouri
February 28, 2007
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_ . o APPLEBEE’S INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

: CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS |
' (in thousands, except share amounts)

T e ot

December 31,

December 25,

|
1
|
! 2006 2005
; T o R : o
f L ASSETS
¢ Currem assets: ' ' ‘
;' L090 Cash anid Gash eqUIVALENS oo.otorveeccairerssesssnresesessssene CS TSSO RSOOSR SN $ 22,309 $ 13,040 -
; 1 Short-térm investments, at market value .o O evereeens 203 L1286
Receivables, net of allowance.....,..cccceemennee. S ; : » r 47,771 37,857
Receivables related to captive insurance subsidiary ey 453 1,712
TOVENIOTIES 1ovvvvvooe oo ceeeessssessessess e sssnssscenee . 11,524 20,373
a A'Pr"e'paid income taxes ' i { 55 3,488
Lid Prepaid and other CUITENT ASSETS. v enrrerareeernions SO T 15,255 . 13,518
. ,’ Assets held for sale... OO PO VOO OO DYDY P PP P f 7,633 - —
<+ Total CUMTENT ASSELS....ouriiiesrremscareensneenmmssasssnissnns rerereeeenerenenens IOV 105,293 90,274
Property and equtpmem net . S ; e f 636,031 590,593
GOOAWITL ... orersssssssnnioessmmssssssssssstsessssssssessens e o e 138,950, 138,443
Restricted assets related to captive insurance SULSIdIATY ... veeeceurerernsiisinnens N s | 13,356 19,329
. Other intangtble assets, net......... e eeeeeeetaeeeeaEsbeitirstTRIATEERTSeAeatar et b ek bbbt srnp e ' 6,408 8,050
OHRBE BSSEUS, NEL c.uvvrnrrrrriitecmressseesear st s o oo bR s ! 35,418 31,899
B S . I' 5 935456 'S 878,588
y . : : o '
e LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY I
Current liabilities: o : Ca I oL oy
Current portion of long-term debt ................ : $ 265 $ . 259
Notes payable ..o — 7,900
, Accounts payablc s 43,235 63,445
" Accrued expenses and olher current I1ab1!mes ....... — 113,641 100,995
Loss reserve related to captive insurance subsidiary 6,094 10,235
Accrued dividends ......oooeeeereeee e 16,299 14,840
Accrued income taxes...... : s 7,385 —
, TFotal current liabilities ....... 186,919 197,674
Non-current liabilities:
Long-term debt, less current portion 174,920 180,208
. Deferred income taxes....c..onuirenns: 25,126 37,722
Other nan-current Habiliies. ... eneens ‘61,837 50,374
.. Total non-current liabilities 261,883 268,304
, Total liabilities ... 448,802 465,978
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 12, 13 and 18) i . ’
Stockholders’ equity: !
Preferred stock — par value $0.01 per share: authorized — 1,000,000 shares, [
1o shares 1ssued.......iooven i SO A — —
Common stock — par value $0.01 per share: awthorized — 125,000, 000 shares; i ) "
issued — 108,503,283 SHATES cvvvreeeereeecreresseisesssssesssssrsss s st saes st st s 1,085 1,085
AdAitionat PAId-In CAPTAL .......—ooooocrvvssrmsssssssessreresssssse s o 265,122 234,988
Uneamned cOMPENSation .........cccoemermrenenasss ' ..... —_ (2,614)
Retained eamings ..... OOV UV O UO VPP POPPROR N 774,884 710,277
i 1,041,091 943,736
Treasury stock — 34,393,331 shares in 2006 and 34,304,693 shares in 2005, at cost........ L (554,437) (531,126)
TOta] SIOCKNOLACES” ©QUILY wevvrrrreeees s coeesesssssersssmsseessesssnes st sesssssessassnreesessns - 486,654 412,610
{ $ 935,456 $ 878,588
1
b
I
i

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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APPLEBEE’S INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES |
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

- . Fiscal Year Ended
) . . December 31, December 25, December 26,
- ) . . 2006 2005 2004
Operating revenues: .

Company reStaurant SalE5........ocuvvvereinninnninini e crerssevesenssese s $1,196,258 $1,082,641 $ 976,798
Franchise royalties and fees 139,855 128,813 . 121,221
Other franchise income 1,808 5,196 13,615
Total OPErating TEVENUES........cueueueeeeenmseeecsssssss e 1,337,921 1,216,650 1,111,634

Cost of company restaurant sales:

319,813 286,522 259,134
403,516 358,563 317,659
Direct and occupancy 323,843 287,656 . 244,707
Pre-opening expense .......o.ovieieceenenencnens 4,348 4,767 . 3,025
Total cost of company TESAUrANE SALES -..oorrovevveerrreeeeeereerer, 1,051,520 937 508 824,525
Cost of other franchiSe MMCOMIE v..vvierienninniiss v 2,699 4,892 . - 14,401
General and administrative expenses. 140,824 109,768 104,810
Amortization of intangible 8SSE15 ............ v 721 878 663
Impairment and other restaurant closure costs............... s reeneneenaanans 3 8,800 3,900 —
Loss on disposition of property and equlprnem ........................................ 2,573 2,067 ‘1,955
Operating eamings 130,784 157,637 165,280
Other income {expense): .
Investment income ] 2,768 1,695 1,284
INTEIESt EXPENSE....ciriiiirecrereessrererersrsrsrs e seac e erererenerens v (11,421) (4,365) (1,626) =~
Other INCOME. ......cerererriivere s ST R e 16 1,762 3,557
Total other income (expense)............... {8,637) (908) 3,215
Earnings before income taxes and cumu]anvc effect of change n ' .
ACCOUNLNG PHNCIPLE ..o e e e s 122,147 156,729 168,495
" Income taxes.. : 41,241 54,702 57,630
Eamings before cumulaiwe e.ffect of change in accountmg pnncxple ...... 80,906 102,027 110,865
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of tax............... — {225) =
Net earnings $ 80,906 $ 101,802 $ 110,865
Basic net earnings per common share:
Basic earnings before cumulative effect of change in .
ACCOUNLING PHNCIPIC. coueeereeee s 3 1.09 3 1.30 $ 1.36
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of tax ...... — — —
Basic net earnings per cominon share ................ SO b 1.09 5 1.29 $ 1.36 .
Diluted net earmings per common share:
.. Diluted earnings before cumulative effect of change in . : .
ACCOUNTING PRNCIPIC..cvcciececreccnrerrr e e sn - § 1.08 3 1.28 3 1.33
Cumulative effect of change in accounting pnncnple net of tax ...... — — —
Diluted net eamnings per COMMON ShaTe.......ovvriiiireemecccnensrannnrsrnrennne 3 1.08 5 1.27 $ 1.33
. 1 .
Basic weighted average shares outstanding ..o, 74,001 78,650 81,528
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding 74,936 80,010 83,600

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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APPLEBEE’S INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Additional . Total

Comman Stock Paid-In \Uineamed Retained Treasury Stockholders®

.. Shares Amount Capital Compensation Eamnings Stock Equity
Balance, December 28, 2003 108,503 § 1,085 5201951 $ (1377 $517,365 § (265,881) $ 453,143
Net eamings............ — — — — 110,865 — 110,865

Purchases of treasury stock.....ccoeeoeeeeeseceenenecenns — — — :
Dividends declared on common stock, $0.06 !

— —_ T {99,723) (99,723)

pershare ... — —_ . -— — (4,867) — {4,867)
Stock options exercised and related tax benefit .... — — 13,756 i = — 16,200 29,956
Shares issued under employee benefit plans.......... — - 3,747 L= — 2,232 5,979
Nonvested shares awarded under equity . ) . ;

incentive plans, net of forfeitures .....ccoverennno — — , 1,443 {1,969) —_— 526 - —
Amortization of unearned compensation relating o ] .

to nonvested shares........cooree e — — S — 'o1,422 — — 1,422
Dividends paid for fractional shares .......oeeereenene. — — — I {48) — (48)

Balance, December 26, 2004 108,503 1,085 220,897 T (1,924) 623,315 {346,646) 496,727
NEt BAIMINES. ..oovraveerrraersssrseeseesesceseesseressssaseasesons - — — ;o 101,802 — 101,802
Purchases of treasury stocK........nnnnn, — — : — = —_ {196,066) (196,066}
Dividends declared an common stock, $0.20 w

PET Share ..cvvvveececrereee e ‘ —_ — — . = {14,840) — (14,840)
Stock options exercised and related tax benefit ... — — 9,274 ;o — 9,080 18,354
Shares issued under employee benefit plans........ —_ = 2,586 ;= — 1,816 4,402
Nonvested shares awarded under equity ‘ T

incentive plans, net of fOrfeitures .........coceceeenes — — 2,231 ' (2,021) — 690 —
‘Amontization of unearned compensation relating D

to nonvested shares...... — — — v 2,231 — — 2,231

Balance, December 25, 2005 108,503 1,085 234,988 lr (2,614) . 710,277 (531,126) 412,610
NEt BAMINES...covsrrnrrasniiinriire s — — — N 80,906 80,906

Purchases of treasury stock
Dividends declared on common stock, $0.22 '
per share ............ — — S - (16,299) — (16,299)
Reclassification of unearned compensation related - ‘ '
to the adoption of Statement of Financial

— - = = — (38522)  (38,52D)

Accounting Standards No. 123(R) (Note 3)...... — — (2,614) { 2,614 — — —
Stock options exercised and related tax benefit .... — — 10,017 i — — 11,981 21,998
Shares issued under employee benefit plans......... _ - 1,935 . — — 2,232 4,167
Nonvested shares awarded under equity |

incentive plans..........cooiinnn, y — — (998) — — 998 —
Stock-based compensation expense related to o {

employee-based equity awards.........cocrevevceenes — — 21,794 — — — 21,794

Balance, December 31, 2006 108,503 § 1,085 § 265,122 5 — § 774,884 $ (554,437 $ 486,654

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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APPLEBEE’S INTERNATIONAL; INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)

Fiscal Year Ended
December 31, December 25, December 26,
-t 2006 2005 2004
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: - : :
NEE CAITHIES ... cececeeccntsssesesisasisiss et ememsassmcassaees s et s e v e rsasasasasantececasseaccn $ 80,906 $ 101,802 $ 110,865
Adjustments o reconcile net earnings to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of tax......c..... — 225 —
Depreciation and amOmtiZAtiON. . .....ocvrevrrverenesieeiesieneisssersasssssessasssssnanns 64,738 54,580 46,051
Amortization of intangible aSSets ...........coveiiiiiiiii e T 721 878 663
Stock-based compensation 21,794 2,231 1,422
Other amortization..,......c.cocovererreerersiorearsrrrnin ‘ 366 246 309
Deferred income tax provision (benefit)......... (12,083) 9,871 25313
Inventory impairment ... — — 2,000
Impairment and other restaurant closure costs . 8,800 3,900 —
Loss on disposition of property and equipment......... S 12,573 2,067 1,955
Income tax benefit from stock-based compensation 2,757 5,370 10,459
Changes in assets and liabilities, exclusive of effects of acquisitions:
ReCeivables ..o (9,202) 1,371 {7,218)
Receivables related to captive insurance subsidiary .........ococonmirininnne. 1,259 154 (2,116)
INVENIOTIES ... : 8,907 15,753 (16,925)
Prepaid and other CULTENt BSSELS .....o.ooveeeieee e e srerenene (2,246) - {2,583) (665)
ACCOUNLS PAYADIE ...ovvviirrisiinnreses s (16,194) 18,757 5,197
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities .......ocoooeerecenvsninin 13,694 11,842 (3,542)
Loss reserve and uneamed premiums related to
captive insurance subSIAary ..o (8,143) (1,202) 6,380
INCOME LAXES.....viii e ste et es st ssa bbb e sessesn e b e rnrns Bt 10,818 (5,941) 8,378
Other non-current liabilities 7,070 4,866 2,702
Other... e {1,941) (2,984) (1,123)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES ................... 174,594 221,203 190,605
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property and eQUIPIIENE ......vve.eeereeeeereerereereeseresnrens P (122,896) - (139,396) (104,620)
Change in restricted assets related to captive insurance 5ub5|d:ary 5,973 (1,943) - (6,623)
Acquisition Of FESIAUTANLS .....ococcrmrrerirrrrrrerrr s sssseser (8,120) (47,616) (13,817)
Lease acquisition COSIS........merrmmiiecee e saeee — - *(4,875)
Acquisition of other intangible asset...........ccco..c.... — — (2,809}
Proceeds from sale of propetty and equipment ... ceccrererenns 281 1,237 66
Proceeds from sale—leaseback transaction ............ 3,090 — —
Maturities and sales of short-term investments — — (253)
Other investing activities ... e — - — (1,124)
NET CASH USED BY INVESTING ACT-[VITIES ............ o, (121,672) (187,718) {134,055)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of treasury stock.......ovviiineneeee. (38,522) (196,066} (99,723)
Dividends paid... oo (14,840) (4,867) 3911}
Issuance of common slock upon exercise of stock optlons 17,072 12,984 19,497
Shares issued under employee benefit plans..........ccccocoerrrrirrrrrresnnnecee 4,167 4,402 5,979
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation 2,169 — —
Net debt proceeds (PAYMENIS) ...t ceeerene (13,182) 152,673 14,832
Deferred financing costs relating to issuance of long-term debt ..o.oeecuevnenene 517 (213) (449)
NET CASH USED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES .........cocoovmrnnne (43,653) (31,087) (63,775)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ........ 9,269 2,398 (7,225)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of period ..............cccccivvnnnnnn 13,040 10,642 17,867
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of period ........ooocoviiiiinivesereneneennns $ 22,309 $ 13,040 § 10,642
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" APPLEBEE’S INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS - (Continued)
(in thousands) ‘

+

s - ) {

. Fiscal Year Ended
, ., December 31, December 25, December 26,
B 2006 ' 2005 2004

. . ¥
¥
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH :
FLOW INFORMATION: : §

! Cash paid during the year for: : . - "
i, INCOME tAXES...coccviiirece g $ . 37,580 3 45,402 $ 12,428

OIS s 81878 8 3340 8 1056

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

We issued nonvested shares (referred to as restricted stock prior to fiscal ?006) with grant date fair values of
$4,500,000 in 2006, $2,921,000 in 2005 and $1,945,000 in 2004.

In 2002, we entered into a rabbi trust agreement to protect the assets of the nonqualified deferred
compensation plan for certain of our associates. The plan investments are included in other assets and the
offsetting obligation is included in other nori-current liabilities in our consolidated balance sheets. We had
non-cash increases in these balances of $3,357,000, $3,940,000 and $3,881,000 in 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. .. .- T SRR ' oo

We.made matching contributions in shares of our common stock to a profit sharing plan and trust established

in accordance with Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code of $1,308,000 in 2004. In 2005, we began
matching contributions in cash. g Co - ‘ :

Wej had property aﬁd equipmént pur.chases accrued- in accounts payable of approximately $10,400,000 and
$11,100,000 as of December 31, 2006 and December 25, 2005, respectively.

We declared cash dividends of $16,299,000, $14,840,000 and $4,867,00b in 2006, 2005 and 2004 which
were subsequently paid in the following year. . . C :

T See notes to consolidated. financial statements.

o
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APPLEBEE’S INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization

Applebee’s International, Inc. and our subsidiaries develop, franchise and operate casual dining restaurants
under the name “Applebee’s Neighborhood Grill & Bar.” As of December 31, 2006, there were 1,930
Applebee’s restaurants. Franchisees operated 1,409 of these restaurants and 521 restaurants were company-
owned. These restaurants were located in 49 states, 16 countries outside of the United States and one U.S.
" territory. :

On September 20, 2002, we formed Neighborhood Insurance, Inc., a regulated Vermont corporation and a
wholly-owned subsidiary, as a captive insurance company. Neighborhood Insurance, Inc. was established to
provide Applebee’s International, Inc. and qualified franchisees with workers’ compensation and general
liability insurance. In 2006, we discontinued writing insurance coverage for new or existing participants
(Note 14). - - ‘

2,- Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of consolidation: The consolidated financial statements include our accounts and the accounts of
-our wholly-owned subsidiaries. We have eliminated all intercompany profits, transactions and balances.

Fiscal year: Our fiscal year ends on the last Sunday of the calendar vear. The fiscal year ended December
31, 2006 contained 53 weeks. The fiscal years ended December 25, 2005 and December 26, 2004 each
contained 52 weeks. These fiscal years will be referred to hereafier as 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Cash and cash equivalents: We consider all money market investment instruments to be cash and cash
equivalents. Periodically, we have outstanding checks that are written in excess of the cash balances at our
bank which create a book overdraft and are required to be presented as a current liability. As of December
25, 2005, we had checks written in excess of a bank balance of $13,430,000 which were included in accounts
payable in the consolidated balance sheets. ThlS balance was subsequcnt]y funded through our credit facility
in 2006. :

Financial instruments: Our financial instruments as of December 31, 2006 and December 25, 2005 consist
of cash equivalents, short-term investments, accounts receivable, notes payable and long-term debt,
excluding capitalized lease obligations. The carrying amount of cash equivalents and accounts receivable
(including receivables related to the captive insurance subsidiary) approximates fair value because of the
short maturity of those instruments. We based the carrying amount of short-term investments on quoted
market prices. We based the fair value of our long-term debt, excluding capitalized lease obligations, on
quotations made on similar issues. The fair value of these financial instruments appr0x1mates the carrying
amounts reported in the consolidated balance sheets.

Investments: We have certificates of deposit that are included in short-term investments and auction rate
securities that are included in restricted assets related to the captive insurance subsidiary in our consolidated
balance sheets. We have classified all investments as available-for-sale. Due to the short time period
between reset dates of the interest rates, there are no unrealized gains or losses associated with the auction
rate securities. The contractual maturities of the auction rate securities range from 2030 to 2033,

Inventories: We state inventories at the lower of cost, using the first-in, first-out method, or market. When

necessary, we record inventory reserves for obsolescence and shrinkage based upon inventory turnover
trends, historical experience and the specific identification method.
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Property and equipment: 'We report pfope_rty and equipment at historical cost less accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation is recorded on a straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. ‘Leasehold

improvements are amortized over the lesser of the lease term, as defined in operating leases below, or the
estimated useful life of the related asset. The general ranges of original depreciable lives are as follows:

.

. Buildings . ‘ - 20 yéars
. Leasehold improvements " 15-20 years
. Furniture and equipment 2-7.years’

— e —— e

We record capitalized interest in connection with the development of new restaurants and amortize it over
the estimated useful life of the related asset. We capitalized $959,000 in interest costs -during 2006,
$462,000 during 2005 and $189,000 during 2004. l g ! =

Software costs: Costs incurred in connection’ with the development of internal-use software are capitalized
'ar;ld amortized over the expected useful life of the asset. - oot : coon -
doodwill.‘ Goodwill is not subject to amortization but is tested for impiairment annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the asset might be impaired. If an impairment is
indicated, the fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill is determined by allocating the unit’s fair value to its
assets and liabilities (including any unrecognized intangible assets) as ifithe reporting unit had been acquired
in a business combination. The amount of impairment for goodwill is measured as the excess of its carrying
value over its implied fair value. : L '
i ]

Impairment of long-lived assets: We review our restaurant property and equipment for impairment quarterly
on a restaurant-by-restaurant basis using historical cash flows as well as current estimates of future cash
flows and/or appraisals. : S f 'I ,

\ | . 4 .
We review other non-amortizing long-lived assets annually ‘and when events or circumstances indicate that
the carrying value of the asset may not be recoverable. The recoverability is assessed in most instances by
comparing the carrying value to its undiscounted cash flows. . { - L
Use of estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity!with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management.to make-estimates and assumptions. These
eétimates, which are frequently made in consultation with certain third-party advisors, include, but are not
limited to, estimates for legal actions and general liability, workers’ compensation and health insurance,
lt;nng-term incentives and the collectibility of receivables. ' : ' ‘ '
‘We are periodically involved in various legal actions arising in the normal course of business. We are
required to assess the probability. of any adverse judgments-as well as the potential range of loss. -We
determine the required accruals after consideration of the probability of adverse judgment and a review of
the facts of each legal action. ~ | )

The estimated liability for general liability, workers’ compensation and health insurance is established based
upon historical claims data and third-party actuarial estimates-of settléfment costs for incurred claims. We
recognized expense of $24,168,000 in 2006, $27,557,000 in 2005 and $25,1 16,000 in 2004 related to these
types of insurance in our consolidated financial statements. Unanticipated changes in these factors may

require us to revise our estimates.

! . o

‘We have various long-term associate incentive compensation plans which require us to make estimates to
determine our liability based upon projected performance of plan criteria. If actual performance against the
criteria differs from our estimates in the future, we will be required to adjust our liability accordingly.

|
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We continually asscss the collectibility.of our franchise receivables. We estabhsh our allowance for,bad
debts based on several factors, including historical collection experience, the current economic env1ronment
and other specific information available to us at the time. The allowance for bad debts may change in the
future due'to changes in the factors above or other new developments. -

Estimates and assumptlons used by management affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the
.dtsclosure of contingent assets and liabilities.at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. | .

Revenue Recognition. We recognize company restaurant, sales when food and beverage items jare-sold.
Company restayrant sales are reported net of sales tax collected from our guests and are remltted to .the
. appropriate taxing authorities, : o o o

. - s
[ PRI S|

We record a hablhty in the, period in Wthh a grft card is 1ssued and prOceeds are recelved As grft cards are
redeemed, this liability is reduced and revenue is recogmzed We recognize gift card sl1ppage income when

the likelihood of the redemption of the card becomes remote.

N 1

We recogmze royaltres ona franchrsee ] sales in the perrod 1n wh1ch the sales are. reported to have occurred
The recognition of franchise fees is-deferred until we have perfomled substantlally all of our re!ated
obligations as franchisor, typically when the restaurant opens. Franchise fees, included in franchise royaltles
and fees in the consolidated statements of .earnings, totaled $3,957,000 for 2006, $3,358,000 for 2005 and
..$3096000for2004 S ‘ , ‘ - N A
Other franchise income includes it insurance premrums from franch1see participation in our captwe insurance
program in 2005, and 2004 and revenue. from.information technology products and services provrded to
certain franchisees in all periods. Income from franchlsee premiums and information technology services is
recognized ratably over the related contract peried. - Income from 1nformatlon technology products is
recognized when the products are 1nstalled at the restaurant. ‘ - oy

Adyertzszng costs: We recogmze company-owned restaurant contributions to the national marketing pool in
the period the contribution accrues. We expense most local advertising costs for company-owned restaurants
as we incur them, but we expense the production costs of advertising the first time the advertising takes
place. Advertising expense related to company-owned restaurants was $56,731,000 for 2006, $51,969,000
for 2005 and $46,324,000 for 2004.

Operating leases: We account for our restaurant.and office space leases in accordance with .Statement of
Financial Accountmg Standards (**SFAS”) No.13, “Accounting for Leases” and other authoritative guidance.

We recognize rent expense for our operating leases, which have escalating rentais over the term of the lease,

on a straight-line basis over the initial term and those option periods where failure to exercise such options
would result in an economic penalty such that the renewal appears reasonably assured In addmon the lease
term is deemed to commence on the date we become legally obligated for rent payments. Prior to 2006, we
capitalized the straight-line rent amounts during the construction period of leased properties. In 2006, we
changed our policy to expense the straight-line rent during the construction period as required by FASB Staff
Position (“FSP”) 13-1, “Accounting for Rental Costs Incurred during a Construction Period.” The impact of
FSP 13-1 was not material to our consolidated financial statements, Straight-line rent subsequent to the
construction period and prior fo the restaurant opening is recognized as expense. We use a consistent leasé
term when calculating depreciation of leasehold improvements, determining straight-line rent ¢xpense-and
determining classification of our leases as either operating or capital. Contingent rents are generally amounts
due as a result of sales in-excess of amounts- stlpulated in certain restaurant leases and are mcluded in’ rent
expense as they accrue. S T CL : R

" A
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Certain of our lease agreements contain tenant improvement allowances,l rent holidays, lease premiums, rent
escalation clauses and/or contingent rent provisions. .For purposes of recognizing incentives, premiums, rent
holidays and minimum rental expenses on a straight-line basis over the terms of the leases, we use the date of
initial possession to begin amortization, which is generally when we enter the property and begin to make

improvements in preparation of its intended use.

-

t
f

For tenant improvement allowances, we record a deferred rent liability|in either other current liabilities or
other non-current liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet and amorti'lze the deferred rent over the term of
the lease as a reduction to direct and occupancy costs in the consolidated statements of earnings. e

s

Asset Retirement Obligations: In 2005, we adopted FASB Interpretation lT\Io. 47 “Accounting for Conditional
Asset Retirement Obligations” (“FIN 47”). We have entered into certéin leases which may require us 10
return the property to the landlord in its original condition. Beginningiin 2005, we recorded expenses for
these leases in our consolidated financial statements in direct and occupancy costs. We recorded an expense
of $350,000 ($225,000, net of income taxes) for years prior.to 2005 asja cumulative effect of a.change in
accounting principle as required by FIN 47. I -

Pre-opening expense: We expense direct training, food and beverage costs and other costs, including rent

expense subsequent to the construction period but prior to restaurant opening, related to opening new or
relocated restaurants as they are incurred, which is typically in the month of opening. -

Income taxes: We use the asset and liability method to determine deferred income taxes. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are computed based upon future tax consequences associated with' differences between the
financial statement carrying amount and the tax bases of assets and liabiliiies.
| f

Net earnings per share: We compute basic net earnings per common share by dividing income available to
common shareholders by the weighted average number of common sﬁares outstanding for the reporting
period. Diluted net earnings per common share reflects the potential dilution that could occur if holders of
options or other contracts to issue common stock exercised or conve'rtedi their holdings into common stock.
Outstanding stock options, stock appreciation rights and other equity-based compensation represent the only
dilutive effects on weighted average shares. The chart below presents a reconciliation between basic and
diluted weighted average shares outstanding and the related net earnings per share. All amounts in the chart,
except per share amounts, are expressed in thousands. ‘ o

Co o 2006 | 2005 2004

Nt BIMINES..oeres Lo vrveereeeeneemsessessssassaorieneeceecos $ 80906 $1101,802 $§ 110865
: ) Basic weighted average shares outstanding ........ 74,001 ; 78,650 81,528
| Dilutive effect of stock options and ' ‘ :

- equity-based compensation ............ RN 935 1,360 2,072

Diluted weighted average shares outstanding ..... 74,936 ' 80,010 83,600 "
\ ' T

{ .

" Basic net earnings per common share ................. b 1.09 S 1.29 $ 1.36
| =

Diluted net earnings per common share............... $ 1.08. §1 127 $§ - 133 '

Wé excluded stock options and stock appreciation rights (“SARs”) with exercise prices greater than the
average market price of our common stock for the applicable periods: from the computation of diluted
weighted average shares outstanding asthe effect would be anti-dilutive. We excluded approximately
5,400,000,. 2,800,000 and 1,500,000 of these options and SARs from our diluted weighted average share
computation for 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. g ' '

L]
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Cash flows: For purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows, we consnder ali highly 11qu1d
investments purchased wnh an original maturity of three months or less to-be cash equivalents.

" New accounting pronouncements: In March 2006, the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) issued EITF
Issue 06-3, “How Taxes Collected from Customers and Remitted to Governmental Authorities Should Be
Presented in the Income Statement (That s, Gross versus Net Presentation).” A consensus was reached that
entities may adopt a policy of presenting sales taxes in the income statement on either a gross or net basis. If
taxes are significant, an entity should disclose its policy of presenting taxes and the amounts of taxes. The
guidance is effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2006. We present company sales net of sales
taxes in our consolidated financial statements. The impact of this adoption did not change our method for
recording sales taxes in our consolidated financial statements. :

In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued FASB Interpretation No. (“FIN™)
48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes,” which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income
taxes recognized in the financial statements in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for income
Taxes.” FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 135, 2006. The impact of this adoptlon
will not be material to our consolidated financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements.” This statement defines
fair value, establishes a framework for using fair value to measure assets and' liabilities, and expands
disclosures about fair value measurements. The statement applies whenever other statements require or
permit assets or liabilities to be measured at fair value.” SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning
after November 15, 2007. The impact of this adoption will not be material to our conseolidated financial
statements. -

in September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 1358, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension
and Other Postretireinent Plans.” This statement requires companies to recognize a net liability or asset and
an offsetting adjustment to accumulated other comprehensive income to report the funded status of defined
benefit pension and other postretirement benefit plans. The statement requires prospective application, and
the recognition and disclosure requirements are effective for companies with fiscal years ending after
December 15, 2006. Additicnally, SFAS No. 158 requires companies to measure plan asséts and obligations
at their year-end balance sheet date. This requirement is effective for fiscal years ending after December 135,
2008. The impact of this adoption was not material to our consolidated financial statements and we are in
compliance with the measurement date provisions of this statement as of December 31, 2006.

In September 2006, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 108, “Considering the Effects of
Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements,” which
provides interpretive guidance regarding the consideration given to prior year misstatements when
determining matertality in current year financial statements. SAB No. 108 is effective for fiscal years ending
after November 15, 2006. The impact of this adoption was not material to our consolidated financial
statements.

In October 2006, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) FAS 123 (R}-5, “Amendment to FSP FAS
123 (R)-1.” FSP FAS 123(R)-5 addresses whether a modification of an instrument in connection with an
equity restructuring should be considered a modification for purposes of applying FSP FAS 123(R)-1. This
FSP states that no change in the recognition or the measurement (due to a change in classification as a result
of a modification solely to reflect an equity restructuring that occurs when the holders are no longer
employees) of the instruments will result if two conditions are met: (1) there is no increase in fair value of
the award or the antidilution provision is not added to the terms of the award in contemplation of an equity
restructuring and (2) all holders of the same class of equity instruments are treated in the same manner. The
effective date of FSP FAS 123(R)-5 is the first reporting period beginning after October 10, 2006. The
impact of this adoption was not material to our consolidated financial statements.
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In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
'Liabilities.” This statement permits entities to choose to measure miany financial instruments and certain
other items at fair value. - If the fair value option is elected, unrealized gains and losses will be recognized in
earnings at each subsequent reporting date. SFAS No. 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
‘November 15, 2007. We are currently evaluating the impact of this adoption on our consolidated financial
Statements. . \

l

3. Stock-Based Compensation X o | -

Our Board of Directors has approved the Amended and, Restated 1995 Equity Incentive Plan (“1995 Plan™)
and the 1999 Employee Incentive Plan (“1999 Plan™) which allow for the granting of stock options, SARs,
‘nonvested shares, performance units and performance shares to eligible participants. Grants of stock options
may be either incentive or nonqualified. There are 19,900,000 and 2,473,875 shares authorized under the
1995 Plan and the 1999 Plan, respectively. As of December 31, 2006, we estimate there are 3,382,155
shares available for grant under the 1995 Plan. This estimate is based upon the total number of SARs that
would be exercised using the market price of our stock as of December 29,-2006. We will not make
"additional grants under the 1999 Plan. Only shares actually issuediupon exercise of a SAR are counted
against the shares authorized under the 1995 Plan. We issue shares out of our treasury for stock option
exercises, SAR exercises and nonvested share issuances. |

‘In 2002, our Board of Directors approved performance share plans with a three-year. performance period.
Performance shares represent rights to receive our commen stock, cash or any combination thereof, based
upon certain performance criteria. In 2004, we reversed $447,000; of compensation expense previously
recognized due to the 2004 performance versus our three-year performance . criteria.  We recorded
compensation expense of $65,000 in 2005 related to these grants. These amounts \_)veré based on the market
price of our common stock at the end of each fiscal year. We no longer grant performance shares.

Prior to 2006, we accounted for these stock-based compensation equit]y awards under the intrinsic method of
Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25. APB Opinion No. 25 required compensation cost to
be recognized based on the excess, if any, between the quoted market price of the stock at the date of grant
‘and the amount an employee must pay to acquire the stock. All options awarded under both of our plans
'were granted with an exercise price equal to the fair market value on the date of the grant and, accordingly,
‘no compensation expense was recognized for stock option awards. In addition, we adopted the disclosure
provisions of SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure, an
amendment of FASB Statement. No.. 123.”. The statement required prominent disclosures in financial
. statements regarding the method of accounting for stock-based employee cor‘npensatiqn'and the effect of the

method used on reported results. . e ’ A

e e e = -
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Under APB Opinion No. 25, pro forma expense for stock-based compensation was calculated using & graded
vesting schedule over the explicit vesting period.- The following table presents the effect on our’net eaimings
and eamings per share had we adopted the fair value method of accounting for stock-based compensation
under SFAS No. 123, “Accountmg for Stock Based Compensation” for 2005 and 2004 (m thousands, except
for per share amounts)

2005 20047 e
oL
Net earnings, as reported..........ocrvermermrrrvrrveseneenns $ 101802-" 8§ 1 10;865 : I" -«
Add: Stock-based compensation expense . t S
*included in net earnings, net of related taxes.. ' 1,409 638
Less: Total stock-based employee v ,
compensation expense determined under : ' . T ‘
fair value based methods for all equity awards, v !
nét of related taxes™ ......oovoeeec i, 8,536 8,555 o )
- . o ) . .t : OB e
Pro forma net earmings............ocoveeeeceeeveerrvuserinnnes . $ 94675 $ 102948 -
. _ Sy e
Basic net earnings per common share, : '
A8 TEPOTTEd.....vecveieieeee v sente e eress s bebenees - $ 129 $ 1.36
Basic net eamnings per common share, . .
as adjusted. ... 8 1.20 3 1.26 '
Diluted net earnings per common share, : _ .
AS TEPOTERA ..cve i v $ 1.27 $ 1.33 .
Diluted net earnings per common share, = ' :
a8 AAJUSIEd.....veveiieer it $ 1.18  § 1.23 ‘

(1} SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004) requires compensation expense 1o be recognized over the requisite service period whxch is generally
from the grant date to the earlier of a) the explicit vesting date or b) the date on which the employee becomes rctirement eligible. 1f
pro forma expense for 2005 and 2004 had been derived using this approach, additional stock-based compensation would have been
52,731 and 32,013, net of tax, respectively, and pro forma pet income would have been $91,944 and $100,935, respectively.

Addltlonally, basic and diluted pro forma earnmgs per share would have been $1.17 and $1.15, respectively, for 2005 and $1.24.and
$1°21 respectlvely, for 2004. :

PR
* .

We adopted the fair value recognition provisions ‘of SFAS No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS
123(R)”) at the beginning of 2006. SFAS No. 123(R) Tequires all stock-based compensation, including
grants of employee stock options, to be recognized in the statement of earnings based on fair value. With
limited exceptions, the amount of compensation cost is measured based on the fair value on the grant date of
the equity or liability instruments issued. Compensation cost is recognized over the period that an employee
provides service for that award. We adopted this accounting treatment using the modified prospective
transition method; therefore, results for prior periods have not been restated.

Beginning in 2006, we changed our method of determining the fair value of stock-based equity awards from
the Black-Scholes model to a binomial model. The binomial model considers a range of assumptions
relative to volatility, risk-free interest rates and employee exercise behavior, which models actual employee
behaviors. We believe the binomial model provides a fair value that is more representative of actual and
future experience as compared to the Black-Scholes model.

_ Compensation costs for 2006 have been recognized for all new equity awards granted in 2006 and those
equity awards granted prior to 2006 that have yet to reach the end of their service period. As required by
SFAS No. 123(R), we began recognizing expense for employee stock-based compensation over the shorter
of the vesting period or the period from the date of the grant until the date the employee becomes eligible for




}
retirement. We recognize ‘expense for stock-based compensation over-.the graded . vesting period. We
LR " R e i . . [ . - o L . - B
recognized stock-based compensation in the consolidated financial statements as follows:

[P

+

L L e . 2006 4 2005 . 2004,

! Labor ..ovvooveeveresseresreaseesinene e $ 930 $ — $ —
General and administrative eXpenses ......... S " 20,864 2,231 975

i INCOmE tAXES o.vvvvrronreriereese VT . (7,410) (822) (337)

| Stock-based.compensation expense included . L

il in net earnings, net of related tax .........coo.e... $14384 | $ 1,409 'S 638

£ | . [N . A T R c: A
As of December 31, 2006, we had umecoggifed compensation expense for stock options and SARs of
?16,300,000 to be recognized over a weighted average period of 1.8 ye’zirls. T

};&s required by SFAS No. 123(R), unearned compex}sation of $2,614,0QO,‘W.Hich was previously reflected as -
a reduction to stockholders’ equity as of December 25, 2005, was recl,a‘ssiﬁed as a reduction to additional
paid-in capital upon our adoption of this statement. ' '

I
Stock Options

»

Prior to 2005, we granted substantially all of our equity awards fhrbiigl,l stock 6|J'tions once per )'/ear. These
stock options generally vest over three years and expire ten years from t‘he date of the grant.

fn 2005, we granted substantially all of our equity awards thrdugl"n'q%iarterly stock option ‘grants. Grants
issued in the first quarter of each year vest three years from the date of the grant, Grants issued in
subsequent quarters vest on the same date as the first quarterly stock oi)tion grant of that year. In 2005 and
2006, we also granted to certain employees stock options with 25% of the grant vesting four years from the
grant date and the remaining 75% of the grant vesting five years from the grant date. The 2005 option grants
expire six to seven years from the date of the grant. In the first quarter of 2006, we issued grants to certain
employees and members of the Board of Directors which vest either one or three years from the date of the
grant. As part of their compensation package, the outside members of fthe board of directors receive a grant
of options in the first quarter of every year-which expire ten years from the grant date. v
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Transactions for stock options relative to both plans for 2004 to 2006 were as follows:

1995 Plan

Options outstanding at
December 28, 2003 .............
Granted..........ccocovevvneen...
Exercised......ccooveveeeneen.
Forfeited .............cc.o..n...

Options outstanding at
December 26, 2004 .............
Granted........covvvevveneenee.

Options outstanding at
December 25, 2005 .............
Granted........cooceeeeeennen,

Expired............... e
Forfeited .......cccccoennenen...
Options outstanding at
December-31, 2006 .............
Options vested and expected to
vest at December 31, 2006 ..

Options exercisable at
December 31, 2006 .............

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining ‘
Number of Exercise Contractual Aggregate
Options Price Life Intrinsic Value
(in thousands)
5,487,048 3 12.84 7.4 years
1,596,944 § 2582 ‘
(1,445,331) $ 10.09 $ 22,138
(570,853) $ 1491
5,067,808 $17.48 . 7.3 years
3,277,725 . § 25.69 '
(638,163) $ 11.89 $§ 9,188
(341,437 $ 23.80 .
7,365,933 $ 21.33 6.3 years
453943 $ 2216
(1,058,021) $ 13.45 $ 10,838
(120} - $ 830
(586,486)  $ 25.62
6,175,249 $ 2233 5.8 years $ 20,139
5,667,470 $ 22,07 L1 years $.-19,786
1,985,145  $ 16.02 Sdyears - $ 17,473
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| ‘
' | - 1999 P]aL
: Weighted
Weighted Average
! Average Rcmammg
' Number of Exercise Contractual Aggregate
) Options Price 'Life Intrinsic Value
: . - ' ‘ ' | (in thousands)
' Options outstanding at : }
. December 28, 2003 ............ 1,775,097 $ 12.77 7.7 years
' Granted............. PR ) - = : ' ‘
' Exercised.............. e (572,048) $ 1046 : § 8,744
i Forfeited ......ooeveervvrenrennee. (73,439) $ 1481 |
Options outstanding at B .
December 26, 2004 ............. 1,129,610 $ 13.80 7.0 years
; Granted............... s — — l :
- Exercised........cccoooerruran (418,813) $ 13.67 1 ’ $ 5,325
i Forfeited .....cooovverevrneenns (46,141) § 16.02
Options outstanding at - 1 .
December 25, 2005 ............. 664,656 £ 1373 6.0 years °
| Granted........ooccvteeeeeienen — — !
Exercised...ooeveeeerineenes (213,758) $ 1374, ! $ 2,090
Expired.....ccociiiinninnns — — ;
Forfeited .......cccooencinrinns (505) $ 1322 'I
" Options outstanding at ) X .
' December 31, 2006 .......... 450,393 $§ 1372 4. 9 years $ 4933
* Options vested and expected to
vest at December 31, 2006 .. 450,315 $ 1372 4.;9 years $ 4932
+ Options exercisable at '
December 31, 2006 ............. 445893 - § 13.69 4.{9 years $ 4,895 .

I
The aggregate intrinsic value was ca10ulated using the difference between the current market pnce and the
grant price for only those equity awards that have a grant price that is less than the current market price.

l

'

§
|
-
|
|
|
|
|
|
l
|
|




The following table summarizes information relating to our fixed-priced stock options outstanding for both
plans at December 31, 2006.

Options Outstanding

Options Exercisable
Weighted . :
Average Weighted Weighted-
w Remaining Average Average
Range of Exercise Number Contractual Exercise Number Exercise
Prices Outstanding Life Price Exercisable Price
1995 Plan: - '
$ 618 to $1472 849,089 . - 4 0 years $11.40 849,089 $11.40
$16.12 to $21.00 820,438 6.0 'years $17.09 709,677 $16.54
$21.01 to $2322 1,136,137 6.0 years $22.39 136,330 $21.47
$23.35 to $2572 262,273 6.4 years $24.87 50,999 $24.80
$2579 to $25.79 940,453 7.0 years $25.79 131,220 $2579
$2585 to $26.29 111,705 7.8 years $2598 96,580 $26.00
$2630 to $26.30 1,429,000 5.6 years $26.30 — —
$2631 to $2891 626,154 5.6 years $27.95 11,250 $26.87
$ 6.18 to $2891 6,175,249 5.8 years $22.33 1,985,145 $16.02
1999 Plan: :
§ 724 to §$13.22 161,969 4.0 years $10.27 161,969 $10.27
§13.60 to $16.13 156,496 5.1 years 81512 151,996 $15.09
$16.15 o $17.60 131,928 5.9 years $16.29 131,928 $1629
$ 7.24 10 $17.60 450,393 4.9 years $1372 445,893 $13.69
The number of options exercisable for each plan are summarized below:
1995 Plan 1699 Plan
Weighted Weighted
_ Average . Average
Options Exercise Options Exercise
Exercisable Price Exercisable Price
. December 26, 2004.............. 1,572,468 $10.70 403,863 $ 1095
December 25, 2005.............. 1,919,347 $13.33 556,656 $13.24
December 31, 2006.............. 1,985,145 $16.02., 445,893 $13.69

We derived the following weighted-average assumptions usmg the binomial model in 2006 and the Black-

Scholes model for 2005 and 2004 for stock options:

Expected term in years.........ccccccecvnennrnnene
Expected stock price volatility ....................
Expected dividend yield.............ccouenennne.
Risk-free interest rate.........ccccovvvininnenerenes

2006 2005 2004
(Binomial) (Black-Scholes) (Black-Scholes)
4.8 5.1 48
31.5% 32.3% 41.6%

0.9% 0.7% 0.3%
4.6% 3.9% 2.7%
§ o685 5 843 5 9.84
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Stock Appreciation Rights ‘ |

Beginning in 2006, we began granting substantially all of our equity atwards through quarterly nonvested
share and SAR grants which are exercisable in shares of our common: stock. Grants issued for the first
quarter of each year vest three years from the date of the grant. Grants issued in subsequent quarters vest on
‘the same date as the first quarterly grant of that year. The SARs granted in 2006 expire six to seven years
from the date of the grant. Transactions for SARs for 2006 were as follows:

4

f

1995 Plan . . -
Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining
v S Number of Exercise = Conttactual - Aggregate =~
SARs - Price ~Life Intrinsic Value
| (in thousands)
SARs outstanding at i
December 25, 2005 ............. — L= o
: Granted® .......cocoeiicnen ~ 1,231,467 - T8 21.81 . I
Exercised.......cooorvuriineens —_ — ‘ . i
Expired......ccooeinviinierienne — — ‘
Forfeited ........cococvrererine (64,600) $ 2217 b,
SARs outstanding at o \
December 31, 2006 ............. 1,166,867 § 21.80 6.2 years $ 3354
SARs vested and expected to’ _ : . .
vest at December 31, 2006.. - 997.571 $ 21.80 . 22years . $ 2,868

SARs exercisable at ‘
December 31, 2006 ............. —

(1) Upon exercise of SARs, employees will receive the number.of shares of common stock equal in value to the appreciation in the
fair market value based on the difference between the fair market value on the grant date and the fair market value on the date of
exercise. The number of shares of common stock delivered as payment of such appreciation will reduce the shares available for
issuance under the 1995 Plan. ' ‘ . ' ‘

. !
The following table summarizes information related to our SARs outstanding at December 31, 2006.

: o ' SARs Outstanding ' SARs Exercisable
T Weighted ,
Average Weighted P Weighted
Remaining Average . Average:
Range of Exercise Number Contractual Exercise Number Exercise
Prices Qutstanding Life Price Exercisable Price
1995 Plan: - : E ' ,
$19.92 to $21.00. 598,164 6.2 years $2066 = — —
$2234 to $22.34 267,978 6.2 years $22.34° S =
$23.57 to $23.57.- _ -300,725 6.2 years $23.57 L= -
$19.92 to $23.57 1,166,867 6.2 years © §$21.80 b — —
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We derived the following weighted-average assumptions for SARs using the binomial model:

2006
Expected term in years 4.2
Expected stock price volatility 31.7%
Expected dividend yield : 0.9%
Rigk-free interest rate T 4.7%
Fair value of SARs granted $ 6.27

Assumptions

We determined our assumptions for stock options and SAR grants based on the following methodology:

Expected term: We have determined the expecfed term based upon the assumption that all outstanding
options and SARs will be exerc1sed at the midpoint of the current holding period and the full contractual
term.

Expected volatility: We have determined the expected volatility based on a weighted average of Applebee’s
volatility over the expected term, historical volatility of certain peer group restaurant volatlhtles and
Applebee’s implied volatility.

Expected dividend yield: We have determined the expected dividend yield based upon our expected
dividends as a percentage of our current stock price.

Risk-free interest rate: We have determined the risk-free interest rate using the U.S. Treasury yield curve in
effect at the time of the grant for the expected term of the equity award. :

Nonvested Shares

We grant nonvested shares under our 1995 Plan. Nonvested shares vest either one, two or three years after
the date of the grant. The fair value of nonvested shares granted is equal to the market price of the stock at
the date of grant. Transactions during 2004 to 2006 were as follows:

Weighted
Number of Average

Awards Fair Value
Nonvested share awards outstanding as of December 28, 2003................. 182,602 $ 16.59
Granted............ovveriiiericrr e e reretereeeasbeeinaersnneenns 84,882 25.08
VESLEA .ottt e et rassae s e e et e e eb s e e e e e erbenaaenrenin e (73,031) 14.99
FOITEITEA ..ottt e vttt e sttt et e s vres b sbeeeneanba et ae i (7,183) 22.26
Nonvested share awards outstanding as of December 26, 2004................. 187,270 $ 20.85
GRANMEA .. ioieiiiee et e e vt st as e e e s etas sassbbsebeesansabeastsstassnsersreers 117,679 27.66
VBSERM. o evviiioe ettt et e tb et e st b e eaeeems e as e b e eteeame et e e s s s besrteene et asrarin (33,917) 18.53
FOrfeited ...t et vee e bbb rens (13,219) 25.30
Nonvested share awards outstanding as of December 25, 2005................. 257,813 $ 2403
L) -1 111« DO OSSO cereereens 204,501 21.79
VESLEA.....crierieriiiie it rtrcat e e e e rrs st essae s s ee e e ss s sarasbbess e e s rre st erbessaransaenrere (105,168) 19.29
FOITEILEA oottt ee ettt ettt et st e et e st b s s eeeeeeeabte st asine (37,245) 25.85
Nonvested share awards outstanding as of December 31, 2006................. 319,901 $ 2395
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As of December 31, 2006, we had unrecognized compensation expense related to nonvested share awards of
approximately $2,200,000, which will be recognized over a weighted average period of 1.5 years.

l
Emplovee stock purchase plan

i
!
I

Our Board of Directors has authorized an employee stock purchase plan that allows associates to. purchase
shares of our common stock at a 15% discount through a payroll deduction. We record compensation for
this plan using the Black-Scholes valuation model in the quarter that the%purchase occurs. As of December
31, 2006, 142,480 shares of the 1,850,000 shares which were authorized under this plan were avallable for
purchase. : \ ‘

4. Acquisitions . A l . S

All of our acquisitions discussed below have been accounted for using the purchase method of accounting
and, accordingly, our consolidated financial statements reflect the resultsl of operations for each acquisition
subsequent to the date of acquisition. The assets acquired and liabilities assumed are recorded at estimates of
fair value as determined by management based upon information available. We finalize the allocation of

purchase price to the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed when we obtain information

sufficient to complete the allocation, but in each case, no longer than one year after the acqulsmon date. -

1 AL APV T O
In 'Apnl 2004, we completed our acqulsmon of the operations and assets of 10 Applebee’s restaurants
located in Southern California for approximately $13,800,000 in cash. The purchase price was allocated to
the'fair value of property and equipment of $2, 500 000, goodwﬂl of $10 800,000, and .other net assets -of

approx1mately $500,000. I
|

In May 2005, we completed the acquisition of 12 Applebee’s restaurants in Missouri, Kansas and Arkansas
which included one restaurant under construction, for approximately $39 500,000 in cash. The purchase
price was allocated to the fair value of property and equipment of $17, 500 000, goodwill of $21,500,000,
reacquired franchise rights of approximately $300,000, and other net assets of approxnmately $200,000.

In January 2006, we completed the acquisition of four Applebee’s restaurants in the Houston market for
approximately $8,100,000 in cash. The purchase price was allocated to the fair value of property _and
equipment of $7,400,000, goodwill of approximately $500,000, reacqulred franchise rights of approxlmately
$100,000, and other net assets of approximately $100,000. l

The following table is comprlsed of actual company restaurant sales for the three restaurant acquisitions
above which are included in our consolidated financial statements for each period presented, and pro forma
company restaurant sales. The pro forma company restaurant sales for 2006 include sales related to the
January 2006 acquisition discussed above as if the acquisition had occurrcd- as of the beginning of 2006. The
pro forma company restaurant sales for 2005 includes sales related to the f.Ianuary 2006 acquisition and the
May 2005 acquisition discussed above as if the acquisitions had occurred as of the beginning of 2005. The
pro forma company restaurant sale for 2004 includes sales related to the May 2005 acquisition and the Apnl
2004 acquisition discussed above as if the acquisition had occurred as of the; beginning of 2004.

i

2006 | 2005 2004
Actual company restaurant sales [
for acquired restaurants .........cocecovvernieeniienns $ 6,400 $i 17,000 $ 17,600
+  Pro forma company restaurant sales : I
i for acquired restaurants ...........cccooeeeirvreerrennns $ 7,100 . $! 32800 $§ 52,600

.; _ .‘
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In April 2005, we completed the acquisition of eight Applebee’s restaurants in the Memphls market, which
were closed in 2004 by a former franchisee, for approximately -$8,800,000 payable in cash. In connection
with this acquisition, we paid approximately $800,000 in 2004 and $8,000,000 in 2005. The purchase price
of $8,800,000 was allocated to the fair value of property and equipment of approximately $8,200,000 and
goodwill of approximately $600,000. We have remodeled and opened seven restaurants and the remaining
restaurant was sold to a third- party :

. lnventory Impairment - * : " ' . LT
In 2004, we determined that-we had excess inventories of riblets that no longer met our quality standards.
Accordingly, we recorded an inventory impairment of $2,000,000 ($1,300,000, net of income taxes) in our
consolidated statements of earnings for 2004. The portion of the riblet mventory impairment related to the
company’s historical usage of approximately $400,000 was recorded in food and beverage cost and the
portion related to the franchisee’s historical usage of approx1mately $1,600,000 was recorded in cost of other
franchise income in the consolidated statements of earnings. '

6. Impairment and Other Restaurant Closure Costs

In 2006, we recorded impairment and other restaurant closure costs of $8,800,000 ($5,830,000, net of taxes)
consisting of $5,500,000 of property and equipment and lease acquisition costs, $1,500,000 for a write-down
of an investment, $900,000 for restaurant closure costs and $900,000 for a write-down of a corporate aircraft.
This charge has been included in our consolidated statement of earnings for 2006.

In 2005, we recorded an impairment of $3,900,000 ($2,500,000, net of income taxes) consisting of a
$2,600,000 write-down of the carrying value of the property and equipment of three restaurants that were not
performing as expected and one restaurant that was closed and relocated and a $1,300,000 write-down of one
other long-lived asset. This impairment charge has been included in our consolidated statements of earnings
for 2005. '

In assessing restaurants for impairment, we use current and historical operating results to estimate future
cash flows on a restaurant by restaurant basis. The asset impairment charges for 2005 and 2006 were -
calculated by comparing the carrying value of the restaurants’ assets to the estimated future cash flow
projections. In assessing the above non-restaurant assets for impairment, we used an estimate of their fair
market value. '

7.  Assets Held for Sale

We classify assets as held for sale when there is a plan for disposal of assets and those assets meet the held
for sale criteria as defined in SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets.” During 2006, we began to actively market our existing corporate headquarters under a plan
approved by management. Consequently, we have classified the bunldmg and land as held for sale as of
December 31, 2006. In addition, we began to actively market a corporate aircraft and other assets with
immaterial carrying values. We ceased amortizing these assets when we classify the assets as held for sale.
In February 2007, the corporate aircraft was sold and we recognized an immaterial gain.
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8. ) Receivables e, ] : 1
L

Fieh
Réceivables are comprised of the following (in thousands): ; ’
<o December 31, December 25,
2006 2005 .
| Franchise royalty, advertising and trade receivables.................. 5 39{,123 $ 27,098
1 Credit card receivables. .. 9,492, 8,853
rOther ...................................... BRI L 73 2,246
T : g 48,688 38,197..
- 4Less allowance £Or DA dEbLS.. reroeeeeeeeereeeeoeerreeressseesrenn e '917 l 340 - .o
e, . o : § 47771 $ 37857 .

T

We had a provision for bad debts of $592,000 in 2006. We did not have a ]lrovmon for bad debts.in 2005 or

2004. We had write-offs against the allowance for bad debts of $15,000, $77,000 and $627,000 durmg 2006,

2005 and 2004, respectively.

9. Prepaid and Other Current Assets
pet

Prepaid and other current assets are comprised of the following (in thousands):
X _ - |

+
———— o —

s t
December 31,

December 25,

2006 2005 '
" l r
" Deferred iCOME taXES.vevrvroreereerrnscresercnsnc e § 5825 S 6338 . .
OTHET....eveoreereeresseessereessessreomeeremresseees s ssssssnssss s 9,430 17,180
! S 15255 § 13,518
" > - i
10. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets !

We have completed the annual goodwill 1mpa1rment test requlred under the provisions of SFAS No 142
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” in the fourth fiscal quarter for each year reported in our consolldated
staternents of earnings. We determined that no impairment. existed and as a result, no impairment Iosses

were recorded in any year. |

|

Goodwill is summarized below (in thousands):

, Decembefr 31, December 25,
" 2006 2005

: o o l —
Carrying amount, beginning of the year.......... e 8 138443 $ 116,344
Goodwill acquired during the year.........cooocvinniiniraniess 507 22,099
Carrymg amount, end of the year.............. trrr e ettt rranea $ 138,950 S 138443

1

|
|
g
|
|
l
|
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Intangible assets subject to amortization pursuant to SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,”
are summarized below (in thousands): Lot

December 31, 2006
Gross Carrying Accumulated Net Book
Amount Amnortization Value
Amortized intangible assets: :
Franchise interest and rights.......... $ 6,371 3 6,172 $ 199
Lease acquisition costs'” ............... 3,430 650 2,780
Noncompete agreement................. 350 199 151
Total...ocioie e, Heeereereonconae $ 10,151 $ 7,021 $ 3,130
] December 25, 2005
Gross Carrying Accumulated Net Book
Amount Amortization Value
Amortized intangible assets: '
Franchise interest and rights.......... $ 6,371 $ 5,896 $ 475
Lease acquisition costs™ .............. 4,939 743 ) 4,196
Noncompete agreement.......... v 350 109 241
Total....oiec s $ 11,660 $ 6,748 3 4912

M 1n connection with the review of long-lived assets during our preparation of the second guarter of fiscal 2006
condensed consolidated financial statements, we recorded an asset impairment charge of approximately $1,100,000, net
of accumulated amortization, for lease acquisition costs related to two restaurants whose carrying amounts were not
deemed recoverable (Note 6).

Amortizable other intangible assets consist of franchise interest and rights, lease acquisition costs and a
noncompete agreement.

Franchise interest and rights represent the allocation of the purchase price of our 1988 acquisition of the
Applebee’s concept to the restaurants we acquired and the franchise agreements that we assumed based on
an independent valuation. We amortize the allocated costs over the estimated life of the restaurants or the
franchise agreements on a straight-line basis which originally ranged from 7 to 20 years.

. Franchise interest and rights are being amortized over the next one to two years, lease acquisition costs are
being amortized over the next 5 to 18 years and the noncompete agreement is being amortized over the next
two years,

We expect annual amortization expense for amortizable other intangible assets for the next five fiscal years
to range from approximately $200,000 to $500,000.

Intangible assets not subject to amortization are summarized below (in thousands):

December 31, December 25,
2006 2005
Carrying amount, beginning of the year..................... p 3,138 § 2,793
Nonamortizable intangible assets acquired
during the Year.......ccoevevevreiennrceneeeee e 140 345
Nonamortizable intangible assets amount,
end of the year..........coceveviiieeccceeeeene $ 3,278 $ 3,138

In connection with our acquisition of four Applebee’s restaurants in Houston from a franchisee in January
2006, we recorded approximately $100,000 of reacquired franchise rights (Note 4).
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In connection with our acquisition of 12 Applebee’s restaurants in Mlssourl Kansas and Arkansas from a
franchlsee in May 2005, we recorded appr0x1mately $300 000 of reacqu1red franchise rights (Note 4).

The amount allocated to reacquired franchise fights is based upon the initial franchise fees received from
these franchisees. This intangible asset has an 1ndeﬁmte life and, accordmgly, will not be amortized but
tested for impairment at least annually.

11, Other Assets : . . |l
{

Othér assets are comprised of the folloWing (in thousands): i

. December 31, December 25,
' . 2006 2005
- Nonqualified deferred compensation plan ‘ ll
Coinvestments (INOE 20) oot '§ 18,729 $ 14,493
LIQUOT THEENSES ..ceveieremneeicr e sr et . 15,8 14 6,541
TNOLES TECEIVADIE v vvvevireieeiesesesinssese st et aeees . 1,305 1,478
Deferred financing COSIS, NEL......ovvieverroe e seecaceneenseseeerereene 1,013 664
Minority investment in unaffiliated company, at net realizable ]
U WAIUE (o iintiet v s rrrseiesessisnrse s sesassasssssstsnnserseeseannrennareseessrersnntene L1750 2,250
IOther ..................... _— 6,807 6,473
o - § 35418 $ 31,899

12. \Property and Equipment

Property and equipment, net, is comprised of the following (in thousands):

Decembier 31, December 25,
2006 2005

- 11T SO UR USROS e $ 1 07-, 193 $ 97476

Buildings and leasehold improvements..............c.coinininn, 527,049 482,074

Furniture and equipment ...........coooocuoeiueieeece e, 291,501 263,526

Construction in progress ............................................................. 28,757 25,755

' 954,500 868,831
Less accumulated depreciation and capnahzed |

lease amortization. ... ..o s 318,469 278,238

! $ 636,031 3 590,593

We have recorded capitalized leases of $4,055,000 at both December 31, ‘ 2006 and December 25, 2005,
which are included in buildings and leasehold improvements. We had accumulated amortization of such
property of $2,258,000 at December 31, 2006 and $2,025,000 at December 25, 2005. These capitalized
leases relate to the buildings on certain restaurant properties. The land portlon of the restaurant property
leases is accounted for as an operating lease. ‘ ‘

We had depreciation and capitalized lease amortization expense relatingl to property and equipment of

$64,738,000 for 2006, $54,580,000 for 2005 and $46,051,000 for 2004. Of these amounts, capitalized lease

amortization was $233,000 during 2006, $240,000 during 2005 and $239,00q during 2004,
| ‘ |

We lease certain of our restaurants. The leases generally provide for payment of minimum annual rent, real

estate'taxes, insurance and maintenance and, in some cases, contingent rent (calculated as a percentage of
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sales) in excess of minimum rent. Total rental expense for all operating leases is comprised of the followmg
(in thousands):

R

2006 2005 2004°
MIRIMUM FENt.....c.coovinrirreiriecieneniaes o 8 26,860 $ 23,929 $ 20,416
Contingent fent.......cc.covvuererrererererirresecnnns . 1,453 1,389 1,254 -

[

$ 28313 $ 25,318 $ 21,670

The present value of capitalized lease payments and the future minimum lease payments under
noncancelable operating leases over the lease term as defined in Note 2 (including leases executed for snes
to be developed in 2007) as of December 31, 2006 are as follows (in thousands):

Capitalized Operating

: . Leases Leases
2007 ceereierrcnenreniens et SRR R $ 822 $ 29,307
2008.....ee et e e et naes 851 29,234
2009.....cceicrrerierereriaries it s st st s st et a e rae s e s s e sres e e nasenreieas 880 28,977
20010 ... e, ST S 895 28,544
2001 oo s e 896 28,298

© TheTeafter .......vveeeeeecereisr oo SR 3,178 257,659
Total minimum lease paymMents. ......c..covieerrreees e e 7,522 % 402,019
Less amounts representing interesl... ..o vivievieriorererereririssicrerens _ 3,606 '
Present value of minimum lease payments..........ccoovecverenecrceriencnnnne § 3916 .

In October 2006, we entered into a sale-leaseback arrangement with a third-party finance company involving
five restaurant propertics. As a result of this transaction, we recorded a deferred gain of approximately
$3,100,000 which will be recognized over the 10-year remaining lease term on a straight-line basis. .

13. Notes Payable and Long-Term Debt

Our debt, which includes both notes payable and long-term debt, including capitalized lease obligations, is
comprised of the following (in thousands):

December 31, December 25,
2006 2005

Notes payable; interest at federal funds rate plus 0.50% at

December 31, 2006, at federal funds rate plus 0.625% at

December 25, 2005 ..o et e e e $ — $ 7,900
Unsecured revolving credit facility; interest at LIBOR plus

0.5% or prime rate at December 31, 2006, due

December 2011 and LIBOR plus 0.625% or prime

rate at December 25, 2005 ... iievcrin e e 170,000 175,000
Capitalized lease obligations (Note 12). it 3,916 4,054
01T O SRR UO RO e 1,269 1,413
Total notes payable and long-term debt ... 175,185 188,367
Less notes payable and current portion of long-term debt ................ 265 8,159

" Long-term debt, less current portion ..........coccovveecrrcccneenenns e $ 174,920 $ 180,208

In December 2006, we entered into a new five-year revolving credit facility. The terms of the bank credit
agreement provide for $400,000,000 in unsecured revolving credit and an additional $200,000,000 of
revolving credit upon satisfaction of the conditions set forth in the credit facility. The facility is subject to
various covenants and restrictions which, among other things, require the maintenance of stipulated fixed
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'charge and leverage ratios, as defined. -There is no limit on cash dividends provided that the declaration and
payment of such dividend does not cause a default of any other covenant'contained in the agreement. The
facility is subject to other standard terms, conditions, covenants and fees. l
As of December 31, 2006, we are in compliance w1th the covenants contamed in our credit agreement. As of
December 31, 2006, we had borrowings of $170,000,000, letters of credlt of $15,600,000 outstanding and
approximately $214,400,000 available under our revolving credit facility. t _

In'December 2004, we had a $150,000,000 unsecured revolving credit facnllty The bank credit agreement
provided for a $150,000,000 five-year unsecured revolving credit facﬂlty, of which $40,000,000 could be
used for the issuance of letters of credit. The facility was subject to vanous covenants and restrictions
which, among other things, required the maintenance of stipulated fixed charge leverage and indebtedness to
cap1tahzat10n ratios, as defined. There was no limit on cash dividends provided that the declaration and
payment of such dividend does not cause a default of any other covenant contained in the agreement. The
fac1llty was subject to other standard terms, conditions, covenants, and fees! ‘

In September 2005, we entered into an amendment to our credit facility which increased the revolving credit
commitment available from $150,000,000 to $200,000,000. In October ;2005 we entered into a second
amendment to our credit facility which increased the revolving credit commitment available from
$200,000,000 to $250,000,000 and provided for an additional $75, OOO 000 of revclvmg credit upon
satisfaction of the conditions set forth in the credit facility. - -l

‘ . .
Mattlrities of notes payable and long-term debt, including capitalized lease obligations, ending during the
years indicated, are as follows (in thousands): ' |

D007 oo eeer g e e sess et b $ 265
2008 ..e.evee oo ee e sese e e s s e e e s eee s eee e s ee e s e ST S 292
200900 eveeeeeeeeeeoeeeeseeeeseessesess e eessessesess s eessesessssessesseeseesssees e sesneesesseeee) L 368
2000 1eeeeeer e eeresseeessessssseesessesseseessessesene st eeseese st esesrens e sseesseese e et nr s enes ereens 458
2011........ et s et e et e s s - 170,519
TREIEATIET .....ccvereereeeee ettt ib et e e a e e e iae s e e raenra s e ranranranne rrenas 3,283

T $ 175,185

|

14, Captive Insurance Subsidiary

In 2002, we formed Neighborhood Insurance, Inc., a Vermont corporatlon and a wholly-owned captive
insurance subsidiary to provide Applebee’s Internatlonal Inc. and quallfied franchisees with workers®

compensatmn and general liability insurance. In 2005, we reduced the types of insurance coverage plans
offered which resulted in fewer franchisee participants in our captivé 1nsurance program. Through 2005,

Applebee s International, Inc. and covered franchisees made premium payments to the captive insurance
company which pays administrative fees and insurance claims, subject to individual and aggregate maximum
claim, limits under the captive insurance .company’s reinsurance policies. l Franchisee premium amounts
billed by the captive insurance company were established based upon thlird~party actuanal estimates of
settlement costs for incurred and anticipated claims and administrative fees. Franchisee premiums were
included in other franchise income ratably over the policy year and the related offsetting expenses were
included in cost of other franchise income. In 2006, we discontinued wrltmg insurance coverage for new or
existing participants. Cost of other franchise income includes costs related to the resolution of claims arrsmg
from franchisee participation in our captive insurance program.. We do not expect franchisee participation in
the captlve insurance company to have a material impact on our net eammgs Our consolidated balance
sheets include the following balances related to the captive insurance subsnd1a|ry R

e - Franchise premium receivables of approximately $400,000 and $l,7Q0,000 as of December 31, 2006
| and December 25, 20035, respectively, included in receivables related lto captive insurance subsidiary.

o ' ‘
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o Cash equivalent and other long-term investments restricted for the payment of claims of
approximately $12,600,000 and ‘$18,600,000 as of December 31, 2006 and December 25, 2005,
respectively, included in restricted assets related to captive insurance subsidiary.

» Loss reserve related to captive insurance subsidiary of approximately $12,600,000 and $20,700,000
as of December 31, 2006 and December 25, 2005, respectively. Approximately $6,500,000 and
$10,500,000 for December 31, 2006 and December 25, 2005, respectively, is inciuded in other non-
current liabilities. '

Our activity in the loss and loss adjustment reserve, which includes Applebee’s International, Inc. and
participating franchisees, is summarized in the table below (in thousands):

December 31, December 25,
2006 2005
Total balance, beginning of the vear.........c..coevevnnnneninninenn. 20478 $ 18,801
Incurred related to:
Current year.......c.ccooervvmieann, ettt ettt et e e n i b esben - 7,i4]
PriOr ¥EAT ..ttt e (2,190) 2,406
Total INCUITEd c..eivrvveieee et e e e e ‘ (2,190) _ 9,547
Paid related to:
CUITENT YEAT ...ttt st sn s rasse s - - 1,546
PriOr YEAT ... n st ree s oo e sressesnne e e e 5,878 6,324
TOMAY PAIA .....ooocioveoe et sss s ssr s 5,878 7,870
Total balance, end of the year ..., 12,410 20,478
LesS CUITENT POTLON oocvirirevrrenre oo ne s s et saas 5,910 9,976
Long-term portion (Note 16).......ccooirrcercncseniincsens 3 6,500 $ 10,502

Loss reserve estimates are established based upon third-party actuarial estimates of ultimate settlement costs
for incurred claims (which includes claims incurred but not reported) using data currently available. The
reserve estimates are regularly analyzed and adjusted when necessary. Unanticipated changes in the data
used to determine the reserve may require us to revise our estimates.

Deferred policy acquisition costs include premium taxes, fronting fees and net commissions and are deferred
and amortized over our fiscal year and, accordingly, we did not have any deferred policy acquisition costs as
of December 31, 2006 or December 25, 2005. We had acquisition expenses payable of $184,000 as of
December 31, 2006 and $259,000 as of December 25, 2005 that were included in the current portion of loss
reserve and unearned premiums related to captive insurance subsidiary in the consolidated balance sheets.

15. Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities are comprised of the following (in thousands): .

December 31, December 25,
o 2006 2005

L 4 TR oT: ' LS S STOUOo s § 48,252 $. 39,162
Compensation and related taxes........c.cccoeeneenne. o 31,701 35,488
Restaurant oCCupancy CoStS .......cccviiriviniiniinniimiise e, 13,821 9,271
Sales and USE tAXES ...oiveeueeiee e et ettt , , 7914 6,798
TNSULANCE LOSS TESEIVES - .ovneeeeeeeeeeeeesseeeeeeeeseereeeesee s eeseseaneeereereee 4,120 5,327
L0111 11 (OSSO e e e e e eres 7,833 4,949

S 113,641 § 100,995

F-28




16. Other Non-Current Liabilities ., . " e

Other non- current liabilities are compnsed of the fo]lowmg (in thousands) |
. !

Lo Decem]ner 31, December 25,
2006 - - 2005

\ ReStaurant 0CCUPANCY COSIS.........uwrmieumerireonsrisresrersissenseseesseeens § 22307 4. % 19969 .

' Nonqualified deferred compensation plan , '

, liabilities (NOte 20)......covmmriierionmmnnsiicisisninsesnonsisssnienns 18,729 - 14,493
Long-term insurance 10s5 reSEIVes .......couuemvuivrieiinemeniessaionincie, BT A -
Loss and loss adjustment reserve related 1o i . i .

captive insurance subsidiary..........ccccevivieieieiieeieenrsreseeessinns 6,500 10,502

. Deferred gain on sale-leaseback.......cocoevveeiccninecnceniec e, . 2,706- —
Compensation.......coevoervevieienas e i it e ee et et ertateassas st ntentaates ,2,190 3,033

TOHEL. e treeeae e et et aretaene 2,288 2,377

' | ) ' $ 61,837 $ 50374

] - . b

17. |Income Taxes . i ,
‘ -
We }along with our subsidiaries, file a consolidated federal i income tax retum - The income tax provision
consists of the followmg (in thousands) !
}
2006 | 2005 2004
: !
Current provision: | {
Federal ... cnieneeenaerenconis $ 42,902 $ l 40,198 $ 30,171
~ State Y s ) IR 10,422 4,633 2,146
Deferred prowsmn (benefit): . _
Federal |.....c.ccooooriivnrnnnns: O OO (10,559) ' 9,248... . 23,625 .
State and local...........cocieieiencriienee. e eas (1,524) 623 1,688
Income taxes before cumulative effect of change o
in accounting principle........cocoievvenciivineneeneanenn, 41,241 154,702 57,630
Income taxes related to the cumulative effect of ‘ ' ,
change in accounting prin¢iple .......cccovvvniecrnnene. —. i (125) —
Total INCOME TAXES . vvvevereeeeeevereeresereeeesererarereeeereseesns $ 41,241 $ 54,577 $ 57,630
. i :
The deferred income tax provision (benefit) is comprised of the following (il'l thousands):

: : 2006 2005. . 2004
DepreCIatlon and amortization .........c.eeeeveeeviveenieerennes § 2339 3 l 13,090, $ 24,278
Stock-based compensation..........c..co.cooereereriicienienanes (6,842) - ' —
Impalrment and other restaurant ¢losure costs............ (3,300) 1(1,463) —
Other ........... ettt br et en et b S (4,280) 1(1,756) 1,035
Net charige in deferred income taxes .......cocveee e, $ (12,083) ° § ! 9871 $ 25,313

i )
T
: '
1
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A reconciliation between the income tax provision and the expected tax determined by applying the statutory,
federal income tax rates to earnings before income taxes follows (in thousands):

2006 2005 2004
Federal income tax at Statutory rates.........ccoocereermernes 5 42,751 $ 54,851 $ 58,973 L
Increase (decrease) to income tax expense: ' ‘
State and local income taxes, net of
federal benefit.......occcevcnncinercreerrene 5,200 3,764 3,083
Employment related tax credits, net...................... (6,596) (4,502) (3,894)
Other ... et (114) . 589 (532)
Income taxes before cumulative effect of change
in accounting principle.........coiverncncnininn, 41,241 54,702 57,630
Income taxes related to the cumulative effect of - ; -
change in accounting principle ..o, — {125) —
Total INCOME LAXES .ovvvverrerrenreeeeneiceeseeeerireserarassassans $ 41,241 $ 54,577 $ 57,630

The net, current deferred income tax asset amounts are included in prepaid and other current assets and the
net non-current deferred income tax liability amounts are included in other non-current liabilities in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The significant components of deferred income tax assets and
habllltles and the related balance sheet classifications are as follows (in thousands):

December 31, December 25,
2006 2005
Classified as current: "
Accrued expenses .......cccecereenne e teeee s e tie b aeasanerareran $ 3,032 $ 3879
Allowance for bad debts ................ e IR 783 128
OhET, NET oot cir sttt rre e re s s e e ssmras 2,010 2,331
Net deferred InCOME tAX ASSEL........cccevecrevievvrererreeaersnennes $ 5825 $§ 6,338
Classified as non-current:
Depreciation and amortization.............cinenincninnnn, $- (48,984) $ (48,530)
Stock-based compensation. ... . 1,926 -
Impairment and other restaurant closure costs..........ceceunne 3,300 ' 1,463
Franchise deposits. ... 648 446
OthET, MEL .ot et vsr s s s e e nas 11,984 8,899
Net deferred income tax liability ......ocoovveivicicninicneecnnns $ (25,126) $ (37,722)

18. Commitments and Contingencies

Litigation, claims and disputes: We are subject from time to time to lawsuits, claims and governmental
inspections or audits arising in the ordinary course of business. Some of these lawsuits purport to be class
actions and/or seek substantial damages. In the opinion of management, these matters are adequately
covered by insurance, or, if not so covered, are without merit or are of such a nature or involve amounts that
would not have a material adverse impact on our business or consolidated financial position.

Lease guarantees and contingencies: In connection with the sale of restaurants to franchisees and other
parties, we have, in certain cases, remained contingently liable for the remaining lease payments. As of
December 31, 2006, we have outstanding lease guarantees of approximately $15,300,000. In addition, we or
our subsidiaries are contingently liable for various leases that we have assigned in connection with the sale
of restaurants to franchisees and other parties in the potential amount of $12,300,000. These leases expire at
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various times with the final lease agreement expmng in' 2018. We did not record a llablhty related to these
contmgent lease liabilities as of December 31, 2006 or December 25, 2005 I

Franchisee guarantees: In 2004, we arranged for a third-party ﬁnancing company to provide up to
$250,000,000 to qualified franchisees for loans to fund development of new restaurants through October
2007, subject to our approval. We will provide a limited guarantee of 10% of certain loans advanced under
this program. We will be released from our guarantee if certain operating results are met after the restaurant
has been open for at least two years. As of December 31, 2006, there were loans outstanding to five
franchisees for: approxnmately $65,800,000 under this program. The fair. value of our guarantees_under this

financing program is approximately $130,000 and is recorded in non-currént liabilities in our consolidated
balance sheet as of December 31, 2006. ' S }
' . . ! o

Severance agreements: We have severance and employment agreements with certain officers providing for
severance payments to be made in the event the officer resigns or is termmated not related to a change in
control, some of which require payments to be made only if we enforce certam terms in the agreements. If
the severance payments had been due as of Decémber 31, 2006, we would have been requlred to make
payments totalmg approximately $10,600,000. In addition, we have severance and employment agreements
with certain officers which contain severance provisions related to a change in control. The agreements
define the circumstances which will constitute a change in_control. Those provisions would have required
additional aggregate payments of approximately $5,300,000 if such officers had been terminated as of
Decernber 31, 2006. ‘

19. Stockholders’ Equity | l

In October 2005 our Board of Directors authorized repurchases of our comrrllon stock of up to $175,000,000
during 2005 and 2006, subject to market conditions. In November 2006 our Board of Directors authorized
addmonal repurchases of our common stock of up to $150,000,000, subject to market conditions. During
2006, we repurchased 1,760,506 shares of our common stock at an average price of $21.88 for an aggregate
cost of approximately $38,522,000. As of December 31, 2006, we had approximately $240,400,000
remaining under our 2005 and 2006 repurchase authorizations.

A reconciliation of our treasury shares for the past three fiscal years is provided-below (shares in thouéands):
- . 1

| :
f ' Treasury
L . Shares
Balance as of December 28,2003 .. e oo 25,716
; Purchases of treasury stock ...........ccccevvievierneensesiecceenee. | 3,994
Stock options exXercised..........cvvvvieviceiceeeeece e o (1,982)
Shares issued under employee benefit plans ..........covvvniniae. | (275)
‘Nonvested shares awarded under equity incentive. plans | (78)
Balance as of December 26, 2004 ..............civviiviriiensdonnnne I 27,375
: Purchases of treasury StOCK .....cvvvvrueeeeioeeneeesierinnarrsrissnns . [ . 8,288
; Stock Options eXercised..........oovivecveeeeveeeevesiensee e 1 (1,045)
. Shares issued under employee benefit plans...................... i (209)
f Nonvested shares awarded under equity incentive plans ..... i (104)
Balance as of December 25, 2005 ........oovoveorcromeeesrereneeni 34,305
Purchases of treasury Stock ...........eeeeviiicncoicciciicncrinnenn, ! 1,761
' , Stock options exercised...............ccoveminieniicieiien e emvemes b (1,268)
Shares issued under employee benefit plans........................ “ (237)

. Nonvested shares awarded under equity incentive plans..... . (1e8)
Balance as of December 31, 2006 '
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| 20. Employee Benefit Plans. o
! PR

Nonqualified deferred compensation plan: Tn 2002, we entered into a rabbi trust agreement to protect the
assets of the nonqualified deferred compensation plan for certain of our associates. Each participant’s
account is comprised of their contribution, our matching contribution and cach participant’s share of
eamnings or losses in the plan. In accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force No. 97-14, “Accounting for
Deferred Compensation Arrangements ‘Where Amounts Are Held in a Rabbi Trust and Invested,” the
accounts of the rabbi trust are reported in our consolidated financial statements. As of December 31, 2006
and December 25, 2005, our consolidated balance sheets include the investments in other assets and the
offsetting obligation is included in other non-current liabilities. The deferred compensation plan investments
are considered trading securities and are reported at fair value with the realized and unrealized holding gams
and losses related to these investments recorded in other income (expense) and the offsetting amount is
recorded in general and administrative expenses

Employee retirement plans: Durmg 1992, we estabhshed a proﬁt sharing plan and trust in accordance with
Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. We make matchmg contributions of 50% of associate
contributions not to exceed 4.0% of an associate’s compensation in any year. Through 2004, we made our
contributions in shares of our common stock. Beginning in 2005, we make our contributions in cash. In
2005, our contributions vested at the rate of 20% after the associate’s second year of service, 60% after three
years of service, 80% after four years of service and 100% after five years of service. In 2006, our vesting
schedule changed to 100% vesting immediately. Contributions under these plans were $2,614,000 in 2006,
$2,429,000 in 2005 and $2,158,000 in 2004,
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Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudited)

b
I

The foﬂowmg presents the unandited consolidated quarterly results of operatmns for 2006 and 2005. The
fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2006 contained 14 weeks. All other fiscal quarters contained 13 weeks.
All amounts, except per share amounts, are expressed in thousands. |

3
, ' . [ 2006 .
' T ’ - Fiscal Quarter Ended .
March 26, June 25, September 24, December 31,
: 2006 2006 2006 2006
Operating revenues: . v
Company restaurant sales ..........ocvvrevcvvnvevnissreccnnes 5 307,899 $ 296, 128 $ 286,938 $ 305,293
Franchise royalties and fees..........covevieicenriiirnrinnne 35,935 34 306 33,340 - 36,274
Other franchise iNCOME . ...oovciereererceeee e escsiee e 445 539 371 453
- Total operating fevenues ...........cocooeveverueanssecee: 344,279 330,973, 320,649 342,020
Cost of company restaurant sales: co " .
Food and beverage .......oocovvviniieeee i 82,236 78,433, . 76,616 82,528
Labor... 101,031 100,296 99,105 | 103,084
Direct and occupancy ............................................. 78,946 80,411 80,047 84,439 7
Pre-opening expense.. e et 750 1,157 1,115 1,326
Total cost of company restaurant sates 262,963 260,2971 256,883 271,377
Cost of other franchise income.. 766 281 ‘ 694 958
General and administrative expcnses ................................ 35,606 32,320 35,601 37,297
Amortization of intangible assets .. 204 204 154 159
Impairment and other restaurant closurc costs 1,600 3,000: 1,900 2,300
Loss on disposition of property and equlpment ................. 577 430 685 881
Operating Carmings «.....ceeeeevnrecenienrrrrirrrneessearernssssse s snes 42,563 34,441, 24,732 29,048
Other income (expense): !
IDVEStMENt INCOME.........oevvsoeereeeeerereereereserene 745 (285), 885 1,423
TNLEIESE EXPENSE cocovorrnenecisiire i crreni s rirsenees . {2,554) (2,985), (2,970 (2,912)
OhEE INCOME wvvvv.eoe e srereseereereeseessenereron 136 1018 301 (522)
~ Total othet Income (€Xpense).........covverrerrveenien. (1,673) 3,169y (1,784) (2,011)
Earnings before income taxes.......covvvvveevicenicireerennndd o 40,890 31,272 22,948 27,037
FCOMIE TAXES. ..o et et see et e e e e e - 13,739 10,868 . 8,107 - 8,527
NEL CAIMUNES ... rersen s snseserssneneeenens 3 20,151 $ 20404 | S 14,841 $ 18,510
Basic net eamnings per common share ........ccoiccvcinnvcene. _ $ 037 $ 028 l § 020 - 8 025
Diluted net earnings per common share .......ccoevvveviveee. 5 0.36 $- 027! $§ 020 $§ 025
1
Basic weighted average shares outstanding................ S 74,147 - 74,112 , 73,902 73,883
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding ................... 75,281 75,083 ¢ 74,673 74,859
{
: |
i
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2005
Fiscal Quarter Ended
March 27, June 26, September 25, December 25,
. 2005 2005 2005 2005
Operating revenues:
Company restaurant sales ........oennenmonemnss 3 270,458 $ 272,703 $272,673 $ 266,807
Franchise royalties and fees........ccccoomvmiiiinininannans 33,008 32,493 31,589 -31,723
Other franchise INCOME........veceivicverereriernnreeerrennrecss 1,065 1,424 1,064 1,643"
Total Operating reVeNUeS ...c..co.ccovrvcrmiiississisensns 304,531 306,620 305,326 300,173
Cost of company restaurant sales:
Food and beverage 71,635 72,565 71,555 70,767
Labor .. 88,724 90,115 90,231 89,493
Direct and occupancy s 06,367 71,038 74,706 75,545
Pre -opening expense... 1,167 1,268 1,089 1,243
Total cost of company restaurant sales 227,893 234,986 237,581 237,048
Cost of other franchise income... 819 . 1,229 790 2,054
General and administrative expenses 26,946 27,980 26,329 28,513
Amortization of intangible assets... N o228 226 204 220
Impairment and other restaurant closure costs .................... : _ — 3,900 —_
Loss on disposition of property and equipment..........c....... 297 564 480 726
Operating arnings ......c.coovimiminnisirerssisnesesesneress 48,348 41,635 36,042 31,612
Other income (expense):
INVEStMENT INCOME. .....oviueeereeerenecrercemrereeressissssrsnsranes (41) 449 568 . . 719
INLEIESE EXPENSE 1. oceccneecsivi it rse b sen e (337 (634) (1,232) (2,162}
Other iNCOME ..o v eereioeies 435 584 593 150
Total other income (EXPENSE).. oruuemenee. _— 57 399 (70 (1,293)
Earnings before income taxes and cumulatlve effect of _

change ift accounting principle............oinmnreenee 48,405 42,034 35,971 30,319
Income taxes . 16,748 14,544 13,836 9,574®
Earnings before cumulanve effect of change in accountmg

principle ... 31,657 27,490 22,135 20,745
Cumulative effect of change in accountmg prmmple

NEL OF EAK. oo s _ — — .« (225)
NEE CAITUNES .v.vvecvrvrrernsresierereeemenrmssssrissnsensesssssiossnresneces 931,657 § 27,490 $§ 22,135 $ 20,520
Basic net earnings per common share:

Basic earnings before cumulative effect of change in -

ACCOUNENG PHNRCIPIE 1..ruecrer et niene § 039 -5 034 $ 028 § 027
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, _ _ -

0L OF BAX .- oveeeveeeee ettt e tene s sr s s sassams b oasr s - — — —
Basic net earnings per common share ... $  0.39 $ 034 $ 028 $ 027
Diluted net earnings per common share:

Diluted earnings before cumulative effect of change in

ACCOUNING PHANCIPIE ..ot $ 038 § 034 $ 028 $ 027
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle,

TIEE OF 18X, 11rvvirree et ss bbbt ra e e — — —_ —
Diluted net earnings per common ShAre .......ccooveemsisininecss 5 038 § 034 $ 028 $ 027
Basic weighted average shares outstanding..........coocoveveenes 80,705 79,897 78,485 75,525
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding ............c.o.ce.. 82,375 81,360 79,601 76,542

O Fourth quarter 2005 net earings reflect a decrease in income tax expense of $1.1 miltion due to the resolution of a state income
tax matter.
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' " 'APPLEBEE’S INTERNATIONAL, INC]

EXHIBIT INDEX I

! . |
e Deseription of Exhibit l - o

‘ "-'7_._1 3.1
oy

f
3.2

10.1
10.2
10.3

10.4
!

10.5

Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, of the Registrant (mcorporated by reference to

" Exhibit 3.1 of the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended

December 31, 1995) ' 1

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Applebee’s lntemanonal Inc. (incorporated by
reference to the Registrant’s Form 8-K filed on August 30, 2006).

Certificate of the Voting Powers, Designations, Preferences and Relative’ Participating,

" Optional and Other Special Rights and Qualifications 'of Series A Participating

Cumulative Preferred Stock of Applebee’s International, Inc.) (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.2 of the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form-10-K for the fiscal year ended

December 25, 1994). | : ‘ i

Form of Applcbee’s De\'felopment Agreement.

Form of Applebee s Franchise Agreement. |

Schedule of Applebee’s Development and Franchise Agreel‘lnents as of December 31,
2006. .

Revolving Credit Agreement dated as of December 18, 2006 (mcorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant’s Form 8-K filed on December 20, 2006).

Management Contracts and Compensatory Plans or Arrangements

Aimended and Restated 1995 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.3 of the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June
26 2005). l

Amendment to-the Amended and Restated 1995 Equity Incertive Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
fiscal quarter ended June 25, 2006). , [

Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as amended (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4
of the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the ﬁscal quarter ended June 26,
2005) : I

1999 Management and Executive Incentive Plen' (incorporated By reference to Exhibit
10.13 of the Registrant’s Annuai Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal 'year ended

December 26, 1999). . i

1999 Employee Incentive Plan, as amended (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14
of the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the ﬁsca]\year ended December 26,
1999) :

|
|
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Exhibit
Number

Description of Exhibit -

10.10

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16
10.17

10.18

10.19
10.20

10.21

1022

2001 Senior Executive Bonus Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 of the
Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 30, 2001).

Current Form of Change in Control and Noncompete Agreement (mcorporated by.
reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
fiscal quarter ended September 26, 2004) and schedule of parties thereto.

Form of Officer Nonqualified Stock Ootion Agreement (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant’s Form 8-K filed on December 15, 2004).

Form of Officer Incentive Stock Option Agreement (incorporated by reference. to Exhibit:
10.2 of the Registrant’s Form 8-K filed on December 15, 2004). '

Form of Officer Restricted Stock Award Agreement (incorporated by reference to
Exhlblt 10.3 of the Registrant’s Form 8-K filed on December 15, 2004).

Form of Officer Restricted Stock Award Agreement for shares subject to the Company s
stock ownership guidelines (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Reglstrant ]
Form 8-K filed on December 15, 2004). .

Form of Nonqualified Stock Optlori Agreement for Nonemployee Directors
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of the Registrant’s Form 8-K filed on
December 15, 2004).

Form of Restricted Stock Award for Nonemployee Directors (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.6 of the Registrant’s Form 8-K filed on December 15, 2004).

Executive Nonqualified Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2
of the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 27,
2004).

Form of Indemnification Agreement with all Officers and Directors (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
fiscal quarter ended June 27, 2004) and schedule of parties thereto. .

Executive Retirement Plan, as amended (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the
Registrant’s Quarterty Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 28, 2004
and Exhibit 10.5 of the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter
ended June 26, 2005).

Executive Health Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 28, 2004).
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Exhibit
Number

1023
10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.29

10.30

1031

10.32
i

10.33

10.34

10.35

1028

i
Description of Exhibit |
Dlrector Compensation Pollcy !

FlexPerx Program (mcorporated by reference fo Exhibit 10 l of the Reglstrant s Form 8-
K filed on .Ianuary 7, 2005). : i

l

" Form of Stock Apprecratron Rights Agreement (1nc0rp0rated by reference to Form 8- K

ﬁled on February 22, 2006) - O

CEO Use of the Cornpany Airplane Polrcy (mcorporated by reference to Exh1b1t 10.6 of
the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the ﬁscal quarter ended June 26,
2005)

Personal Use of Corporate’ Aucraft for Semor Team (1ncorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.7 of the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10 Q for the fiscal quarter
ended June 26, 2005). L L

Asset Purchase Agreement with The Ozark Apples Itlrc dated April 8, 2005
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Regrstrant’s Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended Jine 26, 2005).

Memorandum of Understanding, dated October 5, 2002 and Amendment |'dated July 1,
2005, with Louis A. Kaucic (incorporated by reference ito Exhibit 10.14 of the
Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 28, 2003
and Exhibit 10.1 1o the Registrant’s,Quarterly Report on Form‘ 10- Q for the fiscal quarter
ended June 26, 2005). -
Employment Agreement'dated as of January 9, 2006 by and between the Company and
David L. Goebel (incorporated by reference to the Reglstrant s Form 8-K filed on
January 9, 2006). P

Employment Agreement dated as of January 9, 2006 by and b'etween the Company and
Steven K. Lumpkin (mcorporated by reference to the Reglstrant s Form 8-K filed on
January 9, 2006). - L 1

2001 Senior Executive Bonus Plan, as amended (mcorporated by reference to the
Registrant’s Form 8-K filed on May 16, 2006). i

Separation Agreement, Release and Waiver dated May 17, 2b06 by and between the
Company and John C. Cywinski (1ncorp0rated by reference to the Registrant’s Form 8-K
filed on May 18, 2006).

l
Personal Use of Corporate Aircraft by Non-Executive Chdirman (incorporated by
reference to the Registrant’s Form 8- K filed on August 30, 2006)

Severance Plan for Officers (mcorporated by reference to the Regrstrant s Form 8-K
filed on August 30, 2006).




Exhibit
Number

Description of Exhibit

10.36

10.37

10.38 -

10.39

21

23.1.

24

31

312
32

Amended and Restated Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plan (incorporated’ by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
fiscal quarter ended September 24, 2006).

New Form of Officer Restricted Stock Award Agreement for shares subject to the
Company’s stock ownership guidelines (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 24,
2006).

New Form of Ofﬁcer Restricted Stock Award Agreerrient for Participants in the
Executive Retirement Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 24, 2006).

Amended Executive Stock Ownership Guidelines (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.3 of the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q for the fiscal quarter ended
September 24, 2006) .

Subsidiaries of Applebee’s International, Inc. '

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP. -, ' ‘ - '

Power of Attorney (see page 47 of the Form 10- K)

Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to SEC Rule 13a-14(a).
Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to SEC Rule _1_3a-14(a).
Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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Corporate Information ‘

Corpor:atu Headquarters

4551 West 107th Street

Ovcrlar:1d Park, Kunsas‘ 66207 :
(913) 9|67r4000
Fax: (913) 341-1694

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm '
Deloitte & Touche LLP : s
1100 \W:dnut Street, ‘§|u|u: 3300

Kansas Clry, Missouri i641()( 1

Financial Cammumty Information '

Inquiries from institutional investors, financial analysts, registered represen-
atives, portfnlm manaigers and individual shareholders Shou]d be directed

w: lnvesmr Relations Dcpartmem at Applebec’s corporate headquarters, as
listed abovc. (913) 9671-4000 Information may also be obtained by visiting

our website at www.applebees.com.
!

Registrai\r and Transfcll' Agent

Wells Fargo Bank, N.A, !
Shareowner Services

161 No:rth Concord E.Ixchange

South Slt. Paul, Minne.lsom 55075-1139
Phone: (800) 468-9716

Annual|Meeting

Qhareholders are cordially invited to attend the 2007 Annual Meeting of
Stockholr.[ers which wn]l be held on May 25, 2007, at the Rivz Charles,
9000 West 137th Streér Owverland Park, Kansas 66221.

Management urges all shareholders to vore their proxies and thus participate
1
in the decisions that will be made ar this meeting,

|

Common Stock Information

Our commeon stock trades on The NASDAQ Global Select Marker?
under the symbol AP[’B The table at right sets forth for the fiscal quarters
indicated the reported ‘hlgh and low sale prices of our common stock, as
reported on The NASDAQ Global Select Market.

+

Dividends ! .
"The 2006 annual dividend was $0.22 per share, paid in January 2007.

Shareholders )
There were approximately 35,400 beneficial shareholders and 2,072

shareholders of record as af March 2007.

Trademarks E [ 3. o |
The fol]owmg are rr:gme{ed rrademarks of Applebee’s intemanona! Inc.:
Applebccs “Applebees Neighborheod Grill & Bar and Amenca’s

Favorite Neighbar. i
!

Certain statements contamed in this annual reporr are forward-looking

Forward-Looking Statements

and based on current expectations. There are several risks and uncertainties
that could cause actual results to differ materially from those described,
including but not limited ta the ability of the company and i%s franchisees
to open and operate additional restaurants profirably, the ability of its
franchisees 1o obtain ﬁhancing, the continued growth of its franchisees
and its ability to artract and rerain qualified franchisees, the ifnpact of
intensc competition in the casual dining segment of the restaurant indus-
try and its ability to control resraurant operating coses which ﬂ::m tmpacted
by marker changes, mlmmum wage and other employment la}vs, food
costs and inflation. For addmonal discussion of the principal factors that
could cause aceual rcsu[ts[to be materially different, the reader is referred
to the company’s annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal y}i:ar ended
December 31, 2006, The company disclaims any obligation cE) update

these forward-locking statements. i

2006 2005
High Low High | Low
First Quarter . $26.47 $21.62 $29.19 i $24.69
Sccond Quarter $25.04 $19.43 $28.65 | $24.25
Third Quarter $23.07 31729  $26.79 1 $19.95

Fourth Quarter $2547 %2077 $23.98
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